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Commissioner

Marcella Jordan Bobinsky
Acting Director

May 5, 2015
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services,
Bureau of Population Health and Community Services, Oral Health Program, to exercise renewal
options and enter into amendments to existing agreements with the vendors listed in the table below to
provide access to preventive and reparative oral health treatment for individuals participating in the
statewide community and school based oral health program, by increasing the price limitation by
$173,192, from $173,192 to $346,384, and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to
June 30, 2017, effective July 1, 2015 or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is
later. Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreements on June 19, 2013 (Item #93)
and July 10, 2013 (Item #48). 44.7% Federal Funds, 55.3% General Funds.

Summary of contracted amounts by vendor:

Vendor Location SFY 2014-2017 Total Amount
Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc. Keene $108,192
Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. Nashua $142,400
Manchester Health Department Manchester $95,792
TOTAL: $346,384

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017, upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY
SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

See attachment for financial details
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EXPLANATION

Funds in these agreements will be used to continue to provide a statewide program of
community and school based oral health services to low income and uninsured children and adults who
do not have regular access to oral health care. Services provided include oral health education, oral
health assessments, screenings or exams, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and assistance in
connecting individuals with local oral health professionals for needed treatment to repair decayed teeth.

Oral health problems, such as dental caries (decay) in children and tooth loss in adults, are still
common in New Hampshire. Individuals with oral pain and infection end up in hospital emergency
departments where treatment is costly and their dental issues remain unresolved. This program is
designed to reduce the incidence of decay and tooth loss, and to increase the number of individuals
receiving oral health care, through two distinct approaches: community based settings wherein
children of all ages and adults 19 years and older access these services; and school based settings
wherein second and third grade students additionally receive oral health educational presentations.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the Oral Health Program
will be unable to annually serve more than 23,000 children, teens, pregnant women, and adults from
low-income, uninsured families living in New Hampshire who need oral health care services, and the
Department’s statewide efforts to reduce the rate of dental decay and tooth loss in New Hampshire for
this targeted population will not occur.

These agreements are three of a total fifteen contracts awarded as the result of a competitive
bid process. Ten originally awarded contracts were previously submitted to the Governor and
Executive Council under a separate request. Two remaining contracts will be submitted in the coming
weeks. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ web
site on January 3, 2013, and again on February 18, 2013. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Governor and Executive Council letters that originally approved these
agreements, both the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section and the original agreements contained
the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. Because each
of these vendors have continually well-performed its contractual responsibilities, the Department is
exercising this option.

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for School-
Based oral health services:

Number of 2" and 3" grade students that return parental consent forms

Number of 2™ and 3™ grade students that receive oral screenings

Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened to access oral health needs

Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent

molar

e Percent of all 2" and 3" grade students screened with untreated decay that are referred for
service

e Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened with a history of decay
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The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for
Community-Based oral heaith services:

Number of pediatric clients that receive oral screenings
Number of adult clients that receive oral screenings
Percent of clients that receive prophylaxis (cleanings)
Percent of clients that receive restorative treatment
Percent of children that receive dental sealants
Percent of broken dental appointments

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 44.7% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant, Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance
Number, 93.758, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #B010T009037, and 55.3% General
Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

75 e o

Marcella Jordan Bobinsky
Acting Director

Approved b;%, K&k

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
tn providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES, ORAH HEALTH PROGRAM
SFY 2014/2015 - 44.7% Federal Funds and 55.3% General Funds

Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc. (Vendor #1679280-B001)
Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: Community Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $28,472 $ 0 $28,472
2015 $25,624 $ 0 $25,624
2016 $ 0 $28,472 $28,472
2017 $ 0 $25,624 $25,624
Subtotal $54,096 $54,096 $108,192

Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. (Vendor #158470-B001)
Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: Community Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $36,100 $ 0 $36,100
2015 $35,100 $ 0 $35,100
2016 $ 0 $36,100 $36,100
2017 $ 0 $35,100 $35,100
Subtotal $71,200 $71,200 $142,400

Manchester Health Department (Vendor #177433-B009)
Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: Community-Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $22,808 $ 0 $22,808
2015 $25,088 $ 0 $25,088
2016 $ 0 $22,808 $22,808
2017 $ 0 $25,088 $25,088
Subtotal $47,896 $47,896 $95,792
[ TOTAL [ $173,192 | $173,192 | $346,384
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES &

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

// ~
&’ NH DIVISION OF
Public Heal th,Serwces

-] for 8l

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 033016527
603-271-4535 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4535
Nicholas A. Toumpas Fax: 603-271-4506  TDD Aceess: 1-800-735-2964

Commissioner

José Thicr Montero ;
Director . H

"} May 24,2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan :
and the Honorable Council i

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION
f
Authorize the Department of Health and Human Serv1ces Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services, Oral Health Program, to enter into agreements with vendors for an
amount not to exceed $770,694.00 to provide access to preventwe and reparative dental treatment for individuals s,
participating in the statewide school-based and/or commumty—{based dental programs, to be‘effective July 1, 2013
or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whlchever is later, through June 30, 2015.

Summary of confracted amounts by vendor: 3 L’ L/ 7b/0 pw 9 5 3% ﬁlq-‘

Vendor l’ SFY 2014/2015 Amount
Concord Hospital ) $47,000.00
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. ! $194,000.00
Easter Seals New Hampshire ’ $71,200.00
Families First of the Greater Seacoast |} $102,668.00
Goodwin Community Health ; - $94,896.00
Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. { $71,200.00
Health First Family Care Center $47,896.00
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. $48,197.00
Manchester Health Department $47,896.00
Speare Memorial Hospital 2 $45,741.00
TOTAL $770,694.00
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Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for SFY 2014 and
- SFY 2015 upon the availability and continued appropnatlon of funds in the future operating budgets with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further
approval from Governor and Executive Council. —

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS§,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY
SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

See attachment for financial details

H
H

EXPLANATION
This requested action seeks approval of ten of 15 agreements that represent $770,694.00 of the
$1,039,982.00 total anticipated to be spent statewide to prov1de increased access oral health care services. These
services include oral health education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and treatment needed to repair
decayed teeth for low income and uninsured children and adilts statewide. The Department anticipates that the
remaining five-agreements will be presented to Governor and Council on July 7, 2013.

"Oral health problems, such as dental caries (decay) in children and tooth loss in adults, are still common
in New Hampshire. The causes of oral health problems are multifaceted: Individuals with less income, less
education or who have disabilities are less likely to be able to access dental care and more likely to have dental
problems. In difficult economic times, more people have less access to dental care. Individuals with oral pain
and infection end up in hospital emergency departments where treatment is costly and their dental issues remain
unresolved. Among third grade students, without access to care and assessed in the 2009 statewide school-based
survey forty-three percent (43%) had a history of tooth decay. Among older adults in six senior centers and
congregate meal sites, thirty-one percent (31%) had untreatedldecay In addition, increasing numbers of refugees
have even greater difficulty accessing oral health care when the need for foreign language interpretation presents
another barrier to dental treatment.

Second and third grade children eligible for schoél-based dental services will receive oral health
education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and treatment needed to repair decayed teeth within the .
school environment. Children through age 19, and adults ellgﬂ)le for community-based dental services will
receive oral health basic preventive, diagnostic, and restoratlve dental services at a community dental provider’s
office. Anticipated outcomes from this program will include ffewer numbers of low-income, uninsured residents
with untreated decay and more residents receiving preventive Qral health care in New Hampshire.

. Should Governor and Executive Council not authorlze this Request, children, teens, pregnant women,
and adults from low-mcome uninsured families living in New Hampshire may not receive oral health care
services.

This contract is awarded as the result of a competitiye bid process. On January 3, 2013 and again on
February 18, 2013 the Division posted a Request for Proposals on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ web site for statewide ‘School- and Commumty-Based oral health services. In addition, oral health
stakeholders statewide were notified by e-mail of the Request for Proposals and a bidder’s conference was held
on January 16, 2013. An agency could apply to deliver community, school-based services, or both.

i .
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Sixteen agencies submitted 19 proposals. An evaluation committee of fourteen reviewers, internal and
external to the Division of Public Health Services, evaluated the proposals. The reviewers represent seasoned
public health administrators and program managers experrenéed in contract and vendor management, as well as
professionals who work external to the Division of Public Health Services who hold leadership positions in
municipal, nonproﬁt public health, and health policy advocacy organizations.

Fifteen agencies were selected for funding. The selectron was based on review criteria specified in the
Request for Proposals. The criteria evaluated the agency’s capacrty to carry out a program that provides oral
health screening services to children and other vulnerable populatlons assurance of ongoing oral health services
* with dentists in the community; program structure and plan to successfully complete the work; a reasonable and
justifiable budget; and the appropnate format requested by the proposal. The proposals were scored and selected
by taking an average of all reviewers’ scores. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Sectlon, these competitively procured Agreements
have the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contmgent upon satisfactory delivery of servrces available
fundmg, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for School-Based oral
health services: K :

e Number of 2* and 3" grade students that return consent forms
e Number of 2 and 3™ grade students that receive oral écreenings
e Percent of all 2* and 3™ grade students screened to accll:'ess oral health needs
e - Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent molar
© . e Percent of all 2 and 3™ grade students screened with 1Lflntreated decay that are referred for service
¢ Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened with a history of decay

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for Commumty-Based
oral health services:

. Number of pediatric clients that receive oral screemngs
e Number of adult clients that receive oral screenings

e Percent of clients that receive prophylaxis (cleanings) '
e Percent of clients that receive restorative treatment

¢  Percent of children that receive dental sealants

e Percent of broken dental appointments

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 44.7% Federal Funds from the Preventrve Health and Human Services Block Grant and
55.3% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program. 0

Respectfully submitted,

i, r
:o& a"
José Thier Montero, MD

i - Director

Approved t; h J\&« ™\

¥ Nicholas A. Toumpas
t  Commissioner
§ .
?

t
v

i
A

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
1
)
!
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Commissioner

José Thier Montero
Director

June 18,2013

%o
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan L /q ?

and the Honorable Council 2 Z
State House § é
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services, Oral Health Program, to enter into agreements with vendors for an
amount not to exceed $269,288.00.to provide access to preventive and reparative dental treatment for individuals
participating in the statewide school-based and/or community-based dental programs, to be effective July 1, 2013
or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015.

Summary of contracted amounts by vendor:

Vendor SFY 2014/2015 Amount
Catholic Medical Center $71,200.00
Dental Health Works $54,096.00
Monadnock Hospital $47.896.00
Sullivan County $47,896.00
Tri-County Community Action Program $48,200.00
TOTAL $269,288.00

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for SFY 2014 and
SFY 2015 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further
approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY
__SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

See attachment for financial details
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EXPLANATION

This requested action seeks approval of the final five of 15 agreements that represent $268,288.00 of the
$1,039,982.00 total anticipated to be spent statewide to provide increased access oral health care services. The
first ten agreements were presented to, and approved by, Governor and Council on June 19, 2013, Item #93.
These services include oral health education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and treatment needed to
repair decayed teeth for low income and uninsured children and adults statewide.

Oral health problems, such as dental caries (decay) in children and tooth loss in adults, are still common
in New Hampshire. The causes of oral health problems are multifaceted: Individuals with less income, less
education or who have disabilities are less likely to be able to access dental care and more likely to have dental
problems. In difficult economic times, more people have less access to dental care. Individuals with oral pain
and infection end up in hospital emergency departments where treatment is costly and their dental issues remain
unresolved. Among third grade students, without access to care and assessed in the 2009 statewide school-based
survey forty-three percent (43%) had a history of tooth decay. Among older adults in six senior centers and
congregate meal sites, thirty-one percent (31%) had untreated decay. In addition, increasing numbers of refugees
have even greater difficulty accessing oral health care when the need for foreign language interpretation presents
another barrier to dental treatment.

Second and third grade children eligible for school-based dental services will receive oral health
education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and treatment needed to repair decayed teeth within the
school environment. Children through age 19, and adults eligible for community-based dental services will
receive oral health basic preventive, diagnostic, and restorative dental services at a community dental provider’s
office. Anticipated outcomes from this program will include fewer numbers of low-income, uninsured residents
with untreated decay and more residents receiving preventive oral health care in New Hampshire.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, children, teens, pregnant women,
and adults from low-income, uninsured families living in New Hampshire may not receive oral health care
services.

This contract is awarded as the result of a competitive bid process. On January 3, 2013 and again on
February 18, 2013 the Division posted a Request for Proposals on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ web site for statewide School- and Community-Based oral health services. In addition, oral health
stakeholders statewide were notified by e-mail of the Request for Proposals and a bidder’s conference was held
on January 16, 2013. An agency could apply to deliver community, school-based services, or both.

Sixteen agencies submitted 19 proposals. An evaluation committee of fourteen reviewers, internal and
external to the Division of Public Health Services, evaluated the proposals. The reviewers represent seasoned
public health administrators and program managers experienced in contract and vendor management, as well as
professionals who work external to the Division of Public Health Services who hold leadership positions in
municipal, nonprofit public health, and health policy advocacy organizations.

Fifteen agencies were selected for funding. The selection was based on review criteria specified in the
Request for Proposals. The criteria evaluated the agency’s capacity to carry out a program that provides oral
health screening services to children and other vulnerable populations; assurance of ongoing oral health services
with dentists in the community; program structure and plan to successfully complete the work; a reasonable and
justifiable budget; and the appropriate format requested by the proposal. The proposals were scored and selected
by taking an average of all reviewers’ scores. The Bid Summary is attached.
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As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, these competitively procured Agreements
have the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for School-Based oral
health services:

Number of 2™ and 3™ grade students that return consent forms

Number of 2™ and 3™ grade students that receive oral screenings

Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened to access oral health needs

Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent molar
Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened with untreated decay that are referred for service
Percent of all 2* and 3" grade students screened with a history of decay

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for Community-Based
oral health services:

e Number of pediatric clients that receive oral screenings
Number of adult clients that receive oral screenings
Percent of clients that receive prophylaxis (cleanings)
Percent of clients that receive restorative treatment
Percent of children that receive dental sealants

Percent of broken dental appointments

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 44.7% Federal Funds from the Preventive Health and Human Services Block Grant and
55.3% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

7] /W/\D?’L (

José Thier Montero, MD
Director

Approved by: %»&Q&

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,

ORAH HEALTH PROGRAM
SFY 2014/2015 - 44.7% Federal Funds and 55.3% General Funds

Catholic Medical Center (V,endor #000000)

Class/Object ‘ Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total A

102-500731 | Contracts for Program Sves | Community-Based | 90072003 $36,100.00 $35,100.00 $71,200.00
. . ¥
Concord Hospital (Vendor #177653-B011)

Class/Qbject Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total

102-500731 | -Contracts for Program Sves | Community-Based | 90072003 $23,500.00 $23,500.00 $47,000.00
Coos County Family Health Services, Ihc; (Vendor #155327-B001)

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015 .Total

102-500731 | Contracts for Program Sves | Community-Based 90072003 '$97,000.00 $97,000.00 $194,000.00
Dental Health Works (vendér #00000-B001)

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided | Activity Code| SFY 2014 SEY 2015 . Total

102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs 90072003 $28,472.00 $25,624.00} $54,096.00
Easter Seals New Hampshire (Vendor #177204-B005)

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided | Activity Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Sves | Community-Based 90072003 $36,100.00 $35,100.00 $71,200.00

C Families First of the Greater Seacoast (Vendor #166629-B001)

Class/Object |- Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code] SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total

-~ | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs | Community-Based | 90072003 $23,500.00 $23,500.00 $47,000.00
1 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs School-Based 90072003 $29,299.00 $26,369.00 $55,668.00
S'pbtotal $52,799.00] ~ $49,869.00 $102,668.00
i
Goodwin Community Health (Veéndor #154703-B00 1)

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided Activity Code] SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs | Community-Based | 90072003 $23,500.00 $23,500.00 $47,000.00
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs School-Based 90072003 $22,808.00 $25,088.00 $47,896.00

Subtotal $46,308.00 $48,588.00 $94,896.00
v Greater Nashua Dental Connection, In{i. (Vendor #158470-B001)

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided | Activity Code|] SFY 2014 SKY 2015 Total

102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs | Community-Based | 90072003 $36,100.00 $35,100.00 $71,200.00
Health First Family Care Center (Vendor #158221-B001)

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code|{ SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total

102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs “School-Based 90072003 $22 808.00 $25,088.00 $47,896.00
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (Vendor #177677-R001) |

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided [Activity Code] SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total

102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs School-Based 90072003 $25,367.00 $22,830.00 $48,197.00

H
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULA’I‘ION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
ORAH HEALTH PROGRAM
SFY 2014/2015 - 44.7% Federal F unds and 55.3% General Funds

Manchester Health Department (V ‘endor #177433-B009)

Class/Object Class Title Service Provided Actn(_v1ty Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Sves | Community-Based | 90072003 $22,808.00 $25,088.00 $47,896.00
Monadnock Hospital (Vendor #000000-B001)
Class/Object Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code] SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs School-Based 90072003 $22,808.00 $25,088.00 -$47,896.00
' Speare Memorial Hospital (Venldor #177178-B002)
Class/Object Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015. Total
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs School-Based 90072003 $24,074.00 $21,667.00 $45,741.00
Sullivan County (Vendor #00000-B001)
Class/Object Class Title ‘| Service Provided |Activity Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015 - Total
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs School-Based 90072003 $22,808.00 $25,088.00 $47,896.00
Tri-County CAP (Vendor #00000-B001)
Class/Object Class Title Service Provided |Activity Code| SFY 2014 SFY 2015 Total
102-500731 | Contracts for Program Svcs School-Based 90072003 $22,952.00 $25,248.00 $48,200.00
-
. R
TOTAL $520,004.00 | $519,978.00 | $1,039,982.00

;
i~
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 1”) dated this 2nd day of February, 2015, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 69 Island Street, Suite 5, Keene, NH
03431.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 10, 2013, (Item #48), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may amend
the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and increase
the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:

1) Amend Form P-37, Subject to read Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services
2) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2017

3) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $108,192

4) Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1

5) Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #1

6) Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1

7) Add Exhibit C-1

8) Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1

9) Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
Page 1 of 3 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

5/71

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

fig/kf{ilﬁkx/

Date
S-22-1S

Date

Acknowiedgement:

State of New H pmpsh

Brook Dupee v
Bureau Chief

Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc.
/”

LS e

NAME | Sicphen &, Ho FFpmpa DM D
TITLE gx@éu-{»tve DS/‘GC‘(C/ 4

«1 ¢ County of (,\’\PSL\H r< on Mp ik 23 20i< pefore the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s’/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

M —
Nafag'and™T itle/bf Notary or"Justice of the Peace

JONATHAN D. BLAIS, Notary Public
My Commission Expires May 9, 2017

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1
Page 2 of 3

Contractor Initials: VV\

Date 3-25-15



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1515 N
=] gL

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the' Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
Page 3 of 3 Date:_ >



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. General Provisions

The Contractor shall provide oral health assessment, preventive services, and referrals for restorative care for
low-income, uninsured and underinsured children within the defined service area who don’t haveregular
access to oral health care.

1.1. Numbers Served

Oral assessment services are to be provided to a minimum of 2,300 students throughout each year of
the contract term.

1.2. Eligibility and Income Determination

1.2.1. Low-income children and families are defined as < 185% of the U.S. Department of Healthand
Human Services (USDHHS), Poverty Guidelines, updated annually and effective as of July 1of
each year, in the State of New Hampshire.

1.2.2.  If parental permission forms indicate that the child may be eligible for enroliment inMedicaid,
the Contractor shall assist the family to complete the most recent version of the Medicaid
enrollment form.

1.3. The contractor shall use one of the following models to provide the following services:

1.3.1. The “clinic model” that provides on-site comprehensive preventive and/orrestorative
treatment.

1.3.2. The “combination clinic voucher model” that provides preventive treatment at one siteand
provides care coordination to link clients with restorative treatment at another site.

1.4. Oral health care services for the targeted population(s) shall include:

1.4.1. risk assessment;

1.4.2. oral health education;

1.4.3. oral screening;

1.4.4. early diagnosis of oral diseases;

1.4.5. preventive care focused on age appropriate dental sealants, {nterim Therapeutic Restorations
(ITRs) placed by a Certified Public Health Dental Hygienist, and fluoride varnish application;and

1.4.6. care coordination that links children to restorative treatment and disease management ina
“dental home”.

1.5. Relevant Policies and Guidelines
The school-based oral health program shall:
1.5.1.  Require no fee for any Medicaid client.

1.5.2.  Assist eligible families with Medicaid enrollment directly or through referral.
1.5.3. Become a Medicaid provider for qualified clients.

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _

Page 1 of 5 Date 3[ 33[ /S



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1
1.5.4. Provide a sliding fee scale for children from families without Medicaid or privatedental
insurance.
1.5.5. Assist students in finding a dental home that will provide ongoing comprehensive oral health
care.

1.5.6. Direct resources to evidence-based interventions.
1.5.7. Explore and secure future funding sources.

1.6. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care
The Department of Health and Human Services {DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access health services. To ensureequal
access to quality health services, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors
shall provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the foliowing guidelines:

1.6.1.  Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

1.6.2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumerswith
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

1.6.3. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English astheir
primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are such that they
are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the services providedto
them without language assistance.

1.6.4. Offer consumers a forum through which families of children served through the program have
the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and organizations regarding culturaland
linguistic issues that may deserve response.

1.6.5. The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall describethe
way in which the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstancesin
which interpretation services are provided and the method of providing service (e.g. trained
interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the client or language line).

1.7. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attentionis
called to the foliowing statutory responsibilities:

1.7.1. The Contractor shall report all cases of communicable diseases according to NewHampshire
RSA 141-C and He-P 30, effective 01/05.

1.7.2.  Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New
Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults andRSA
631:6, Assault and Related Offenses.

1.7.3.  The contractor shall comply with standards developed by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

1.8. Publications Funded Under Contract

1.8.1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all originai materials
produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource
directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

1.8.2. Alldocuments (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract
shall have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

1.8.3. The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract followingthe

instructions outlined in Exhibit C-1 (5). /g [
Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

1.9. Subcontractors

if services required to comply with this Exhibit are provided by a subcontracted agency or provider, the
DPHS Oral Health Program must be notified in writing, receive a copy of the subcontract or
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), and approve the subcontract {MOA) prior to its initiation. In
addition, subcontractors must be held responsible to fulfili all relevant requirements included inthis
Exhibit.

2. Minimum Scope of Core Services
2.1. Service Requirements
The school-based oral health program shall consist of the following components:

2.1.1. Clinical services shall be provided under the supervision of a dentist licensed to practice in New
Hampshire.

2.1.2.  Visual oral screenings or exams by a NH Licensed Dentist or a NH Registered Dental Hygienist
with screening results available to clients or to parents of children screened.

2.1.3. Oral health educational presentations by health professionals to individual students at chairside
or to groups in a classroom setting as part of a health care curriculum.

2.1.4. Topical fluoride application as part of a regular preventive routine or, when appropriate,
through a school-based fluoride rinse program in schools wishing to participate.

2.1.5. Apreventive dental program, that shall at minimum include the requirements of 1.4.5 above,
for children through a school-based program that assesses risk of dental disease andtooth
eruption.

2.1.6.  With the exception of orthodontic care, the program shall provide assistance inobtaining
restorative care for children without an established dental provider.

2.1.7.  Oral health data collection to support a knowledge base and dental data surveillance system for
use in policy development, assessment, and capacity building at state and local levels.

2.1.8. Notice to families without access to dental services that a sliding fee scale is available and that
no student will be denied school-based dental services for inability to pay. The sliding fee scale
must be updated annuaily based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as published in the Federal
Register.

Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to the legai
requirements governing human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the Oral Health Program
prior to initiating any research related to thiscontract.

2.2, Staffing Provisions

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with the New Hampshire Dental Practice Act. All
dental health professionals shall have the appropriate New Hampshire license and certification. The
Contractor shall provide the DPHS Oral Health Program with a resume, a copy of the NH licenseif
appropriate, and job description for any current professional staff in the program and notify the Statein
writing of any staffing changes, along with a copy of the resume of any new staff hired within one month
of date of hire.

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials K M/
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

2.3. Staffing Changes

2.3.1.  New Hires: The Contractor shall notify the Oral Health Program in writing within one month of
hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this
scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee and New
Hampshire license if appropriate shall accompany this notification.

2.3.2. Vacancies: The Contractor must notify the Oral Health Program in writing if the dentist or
dental hygienist positions are vacant for more than one month. This may be done througha
budget revision. In addition, the Oral Health Program must be notified in writing if at anytime
any program funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to performall
required services for more than one month.

2.4. Coordination of Services

2.4.1. The agency shall make arrangements for coordination of oral health services and exchange of
information with other health care providers and agencies. Attach copies of appropriate
contractual agreements, memoranda of understanding, or letters of support from the
appropriate persons summarizing the nature of the collaboration and indicating the levelof
support.

2.4.2.  Agencies that deliver oral health services in communities that are part of a Public Health Region
(PHR) should be active participants in the PHR. As appropriate, agencies should participatein
community needs assessments, public health performance assessments, and the development
of regional public health improvement plans, all of which integrate oral health. Agenciesshould
also engage PHR staff as appropriate to enhance the impiementation of community-based
public health prevention initiatives being implemented by the agency.

2.5. Meetings and Trainings

The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to meetings and trainings required by the Oral Health
Program, including but not limited to the Annual Oral Health Forum and Calibration Clinic for School-
Based Hygienists.

3. Quality or Performance Improvement
3.1. Work plans

3.1.1. Performance work plans are required bi-annually for this program and are used to monitor
achievement of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this contract.
The work plans are a key component of the Oral Health Program performance-based
contracting system and of this contract.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall incorporate required performance measures into quality/performance
improvement plan. Reports on Oral Health work plan progress/outcomes shall explain howthe
program plans for future improvement describing activities that monitor and evaluate the
program’s progress toward reaching performance measure targets.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall submit a performance-based work plan with this application forfunding
and by July 15th of the second contract year.

3.1.4. The Contractor shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the work plan and
annual report format as requested by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program will
provide the Contractor with advance notice of such changes and the Contractor is notexpected
to incur any substantial costs relative to such changes.

.
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3.2. Data and Reporting Requirements

In addition to performance work plans, the Contractor shall submit to the Oral Health Program the
following data used to monitor program performance:

3.2.1. Work plans and work plan outcome reports according to the schedule and instructions provided
by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program shall notify the Contractor at least 30
days in advance of any changes in the submission schedule.

3.2.2.  AYear End Report Form shall be completed annually to describe the reach of the school-based
program beyond the second and third grade target population.

3.2.3. The Sources of Revenue report must be resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue
threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the planned program.

3.2.4. Acopy of the Sliding Fee Scale shall be submitted by March 1st of each contract year. The
sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on the US DHHS Poverty Guidelinesas
published in the Federal Register.

3.2.,5. An annual summary of feedback from teachers, school nurses, administrators and families
obtained during the prior contract year and of the method by which the results were obtained
shall be submitted on request to the DPHS Oral Health Program to accompany the annual work
plan.

3.3. On-Site Reviews

3.3.1. The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the Oral Health Programto
periodically review the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collectionand
submission, clinical, and financial management in order to assure systems are adequateto
provide the contracted services.

3.3.2.  The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted
services are not found to be provided in accordance with this Exhibit.

3.3.3. On-Site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of the Oral HealthProgram,
upon submission of satisfactory reports of reviews such as the Health and Human Services
Administration (HRSA) Office of Performance Review (OPR) or reviews from nationally
accredited organizations such as the Joint Commission, the Community Health and
Accreditation Program (CHAP) or the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care
(AAA). Abbreviated reviews will focus on any deficiencies found in previous reviews, issues of
compliance with this Exhibit, and actions to strengthen performance as outlined in theagency
performance work plan.

3.4. Performance Measures

Second and third grade students represent a group of children whose oral health status can be
compared across New Hampshire programs, with children in other states and in the Nationa! OralHealth
Surveillance System.

3.4.1. School-Based Performance Measures:

¢ A minimum of 60% of 2nd and 3rd grade students returning consent forms

¢ A minimum of 300 2nd and 3rd grade students shall receive oralscreenings

* Percent of all 2nd and 3rd grade students in the school screened to assess oral health needs

¢ Percent of all 2nd and 3rd grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent
molar

¢ 100% of all 2nd and 3rd grade students screened with untreated decay are referred for
service

® Percent of all 2nd and 3rd grade students screened with a history of decay X 7S
Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _ (¢
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for costs and expenses incurred in
the performance of services during the period of July 1, 2015 and June 30, 2017 shall not
exceed:

a. $28,472 in SFY 2016 and $25,624 in SFY 2017 for oral health initiatives, for a total
amount of $54,096.

b. Funding is available as follows:

o $24 181 - 44.7% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, CFDA #93.758, Federal Award ldentification Number (FAIN),
B010OT009037

e $29,915 ~55.3% from General Funds

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and
indirect costs and expenses inciuding but not limited to personnel costs and operating
expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the attached SFY 2016 and 2017 budgets
(Exhibits B-1). Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees
not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or
any other costs not approved by the State.

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period.
Reimbursement shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous
month.

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State
for each of the Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty
(20) working days following the end of the month during which the contract activities were
completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later than sixty (60) days after
the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable costs
and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by
the Contractor to cover the costs and expenses incurred in the performance of services.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment limited to
adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers, within the price limitation,
may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds

to purchase any equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a
useful life beyond one year.

L~
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc.

Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

Total Salary/Wages

Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services

28,472.00

5

28.472.00

Employee Benefits

Consultants

el Food I b

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

Travel

Occupancy

e I 2

Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

Software

10.

Marketing/Communications

11.

Staff Education and Training

12.

Subcontracts/Agreements

13.

Other (specific details mandatory):

TOTAL

AR | |R AR ||| |A|A | |R AR AR |R|A R |R| AR |A|A R | AR AR R |A |

28,472.00
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28,472.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc.
Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 256240019 $ 25,624.00

2. Employee Benefits $ - $ - $ -

3. Consultants $ - 18 - 189 -

4. Equipment: $ - 18 - 13 -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - 189 - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - |3 - $ -

5. Supplies: $ - |8 - 13 -
Educational $ - $ - $ -
Lab $ - |8 - |8 _
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ - $ - $ -

|6. Travel $ - $ - $ -

7. Occupancy $ - 13 - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ - $ - $ -
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $ -
Insurance $ - 189 - $ -
Board Expenses $ - 18 - $ -

9. Software 3 - $ - $ -

10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -

11. Staff Education and Training $ - |8 - 13 -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
. TOTAL $ 256240019 - $ 25,624.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS /@ /7(
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federaland
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as welias
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if itis
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin
excess of costs;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C Amendment #1

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure tomake
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractoris
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly refiect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs suchas
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required bythe
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of applicationand
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any oftheir
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, itis
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or
federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of suchan
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

o
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions containedin
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the reportand
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of theterm
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contractand/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractoras
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Heaith and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations offederal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant
to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation
of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or permit
shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if ithas
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form tothe
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or publicgrantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonabie steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblowerrights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), inall
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the samecontractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

I
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed
19.56. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established inaccordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall meanthat
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B ofthe
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

1.

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following

language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

Renewal:

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewal Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices orin
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. TheAct
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of servicesor
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State andlocal
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination onthe
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed whenthe
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G- Amendment #1 s
Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G ~ Amendment #1

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

g“ﬂplw,\ ; uﬁ ‘Pvpmf]»b“

Contractor Name:

3[55/is 1/ S

Date/ Name:
/ Title: )(E?Cu(')“’ @rf(f{
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | - Amendment #1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSQCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. ‘Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIIl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
20089.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j-  “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. /% k

Contractor Initials . ¢

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

()

*Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, andthe
HITECH

Act.

Busi , jate U | Discl f Protected Health Inf i

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain ortransmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
Il For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _ X L/k
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Exhibit | Amendment #1

(3)

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligati | Activities of Busi : iate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officerimmediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit| Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _ A%
Health Insurance Portability Act
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meetthe
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity foran
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disciosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity fora
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection withthe
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed toin
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business g y

48
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires thatthe
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4)  Qbligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHL.

(5)  Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6)  Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. X /
1

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement g
Page 5 of 6 Date _ 93 {(



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this endthe
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, returnor
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) 1, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

NJ// ’D)////, Df,v‘lfA‘ H(JAH”L LUG/{/S O&C(A(;S[/"‘\P

The State Name of the Contractor ( Cux [ 7

T~ Dyor ANAANA

Signature of Authorized Representative  Signatuf€ of Authorized Representative

/\Pﬁ/bj ’/DVPKL S‘(( L\(’rv ? HO'PFm,qk DMO

Name of Authorized Representative Name &f Authorized Representative
'73,/%"%A (/hb‘( gﬁgcu'{ J < D'; (¢Cc\ e 7
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
Vv ’ !
et V)7 3/2? (
Date Date | /
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State of Nefo Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY, INC. is a New
Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed April 13, 2004. I further certify that it is in
good standing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the

fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 8" day of April, A.D. 2015

ey Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Eileen Fernandes, of Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc., do herby certify
that:

1. I am the duly elected president of Dental Health Works’ Board of Directors.

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Agency duly held on March 23, 2015.

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency
to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents,
agreements, and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force
and effect as of the L 3 day of March, 2015.

4. Stephen F. Hoffman, DMD is the duly elected Executive Director of the Agency.

(
/Eileen Fernandes, Pfesident

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Cheshire

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this %3 day of March, 2015,
By Eileen Fernandes.

Nﬁa/mic/h?ﬁice of the Peace

JONATHAN D. BLAIS, Notary Public
My Commission Expires; My Commission Expires May 9, 2017




ACORD.

Client#: 45653

HOFST2

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oA R

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁ?ﬂm
Davis Towle Morrill & Everett {AIE: No, Ext): 603 225-6611 ‘m’é No): 603-225-7935
115 Airport Road ADDRESS:
P O Box 1260 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Concord, NH 03302-1260 wsurer A: CNA Insurance Companies
INSURED IN B:

Stephen F. Hoffman DMD; Dental Health m::::::o

Works Of Cheshire County Inc. INSURER D:

62 Acrebrook Road INSURER E

Keene, NH 03431 :

INSURERF :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

/ADDLISUBR
WVD

POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) |(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY 272407013 08/02/2014|08/02/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PR R eence) | $250,000
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY  |$1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - compioP AGG | 31,000,000
POLICY RO LoC $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &c;hgggg%gﬂsmae LIMIT N
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED "
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED l [ RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN TORY LIMITS ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEREXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED D N/A $
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $
if yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A |Professional 272407013 08/02/2014|08/02/2015 $1,000,000/$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Director Division of Public
Health

NH Dept. of Health & Human
Services 129 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

AeTanul o

#5179058/M179049

&7 =7 7 ©1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of1 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SP




MISSION:

To provide dental care to the residents of Cheshire County who have limited access
to oral health services. '

VISION:

e Dental Health Works will cooperate and collaborate with other community
dental and medical health programs, and social service agencies, to achieve
the common goal of increasing access.

e Dental Health Works will work toward educating the community with
regard to dental health needs.

e Dental Health Works will enlist the help of local dental professionals to help
fulfill our mission.

e Dental Health Works will be a resource to agencies with a similar mission
and to community agencies with no oral health component.

e Dental Health Works will provide education and clinical experience for
dental students in order to expand the dental services that we are able to
provide.

e Dental Health Works will maintain a business model that allows services to
as many target groups as possible, and function in a fiscally sustainable
manner.
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Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a){1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations}

» Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

P> Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at

and ending Jé% 30, 2014

OMB No. 1545-0047

2013

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 201 3
B Check it C Name of organization D Employer identification number
wolable: | DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Address

change INC.

change | Doing Business As 30-0275867

foton Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite { E Telephone number

Termin- 69V ISLAND ST., UNIT 2B 603-358-6624
Dfme"ded City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts $ 1 ' 090 ’ 655.
[ Jipte | REENE, NH 03431 H(a) Is this a group retum

P I e Name and address of principa officer JONATHAN BLAIS for subordinates? [Cves [XIno

SAME AS C ABOVE H{(b) Ave all subordinates inciuasarl__lves [_JNo

| Tax-exempt status: mﬂc)(ii) L] 501(c) (

) (insertno.) L_J 4947(a)(1)or || 527

J Website: > N/A

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)
H{c) Group exemption number P>

K Form of organization; LX ] Corporation || Trust [ ] Association [ Other B>

T Year of formation: 20 0 4] m State of legal domicite: NH

[Part 1] Summary
o | 1 Brisfly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: PROVIDE CESS TO DENTAL AND
§ ORAL HEALTH SERVICES TO ECONOMICALLY DIS TAGED RESIDENTS OF
§ 2 Check this box P> LT the organization discontinued its operations or disy e than 25% of its net assets.
3 | 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1a) 11
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the goveming body (Part VI, 11
@ { 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, ii 12
g 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . ... . ... . . N 0
§ 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Vill, column (C), line 12 ., QM. 7a 0.
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, li e 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
ol 8 5,600. 56,150.
g 9 1,039,225, 1,033,610.
é 10 1,155. 895.
1 0. 0.
12 1,045,980. 1,090,655.
13 0. 0.
14 0. 0.
g|15 686,918, 788,880.
% 16a Professional fundraising f 0. 0.
a .
13 o -
ul 4y 272,693, 279,107,
18 959,611. 1,067,987.
19 '86,369. 22,668,
gz‘g Beginning of Current Year End of Year
23120 Total assets (Part X, ine 16) ..., 1,363,288.]  1,381,778.
Zo| 21 Total liabilties (Part X, e 26) ... ... 67,427, 63,249.
22{ 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtractline 21 fromline 20 ... 1,295,861. 1, 318 , D 29.
%Ert Il | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and befief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here JONATHAN BLAIS, TREASURER
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date e [ J| PTIN
Paid  [THOMAS E. ZALUKI stongops 00999610
Preparer | Firm's name p HOGANCAMP PC FirmsENy 02-0374591
Use Only | Firm's address 17 WILDER STREET, PO BOX 743
KEENE, NH 03431 Phone n0.603-352-2233
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) .. U_U Yes L No
332001 10-29-13  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2013)
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 page2
[ :i 1] | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part I ... D

1 Brisfly describe the organization’s mission:
PROVIDE ACCESS TO DENTAL & ORAL HEALTH SERVICES TO ECONOMICALLY
DISADVANTAGED RESIDENTS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY.

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on

the prior Form 990 0 990-622 [Cves (XIno
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? . . .. DYes [E No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.
4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.
43 (Code: } (Expenses § 951,8880 including grants of § ) (Revenue$ 11033:610' )
SEE ATTACHED STATEMENT 1

} (Revenus § )

4b  (Code: } (Expenses $

4c  (Code: } (Expenses s including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)

(Expenses $ including grants of § ) (Revenue $ )
4e_ Total program service expenses > 951,888.
332002 Form 990 (2013)
10-29-13
2
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 page3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) {other than a private foundation)?
If “Yes," complete Schedule A e 11X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule 8, Schedule of Contributors? 2 | X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part| 3 X
4 Section 501(c}{3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? If "Yes,* complete Schedule C, Part 1l 4 X
5 s the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes," complete Schedute C, Partitf 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part! | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part#f 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f “Yes, * complete
Schedule D, Partll e 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, bt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV o e, 9
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in tem| ed endowments, permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? If “Yes," complete Schedule D, PartV & ~ -~ Q& 10 X
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then s VI, VIL, VIIL 1X, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipmen 107 If "Yes," complete Schedule D,
11a]| X
b
11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program
assets reported in Part X, line 167 /f "Yes, " complete 2 11c
d
............. 1 1d x
o 11e| X
f . or the tax year include a footnote that addresses
ger FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule O, Part X 11f X
12a financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,* complete
........................................................................................................... 12a X
b endent audited financial statements for the tax year?
e 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X/ and X!l is optional 12b X
13 izath ibed irQEg 170(b)(1)A)i)? If *Yes,” complete Schedule € 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, emoyees, or agents outside of the United States? . .~ 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? If *Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 1and IV e, 14b X
15  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? If "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts lland lv. 15 X
16  Did the organization report on Part iX, column (A}, line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? If "Yes,* complete Schedule F, Parts lliand vV 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), flines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part 1 | . 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VI, lines
icand 8a? If *Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part i 18 X
19 Oid the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part Vi, line 9a? /f "Yes, "
complete Schedule G, Part Il 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital fac:lmes? If "Yes," complete ScheduleH 20a X
b_If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statementstothisretum? ... . 20b
Form 990 (2013)
332003
10-29-13

3
18250121 102249 3849 2013.05040 DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHES 3849 1



DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 paged
I_P_aﬁ'lVL] Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes | No
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
govemment on Part 1X, column (A), line 1? if "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts fandtt 21 X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States on Part IX,
column (A), line 27 If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts fand Il e, 22 X
23 Did the organization answer *Yes" to Part Vil, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? /f "Yes," complete
SCREAUI Y e e 2| X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If *NO*, go to i€ 258 e 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? .. 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-ex8MpPt DONAST | | . e e 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during theyear? . .. ... ... .. . .. 244
25a Section 501(c)3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit transaction with a
disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! ... 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualifie; 'son in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990, 0-EZ7? If "Yes," complete
Schedule L, Part! el e 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables o any current or
former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated em) i i ersons? If so,
complete Schedule L, Part . ... ... ..M o . 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an oﬁlcer dir
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, o to controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part lli g @4 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with oné see Schedule L, Part IV :
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceg
a A cument or former officer, director, trustee, or key € 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, dirg 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, ¢
director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? 28¢c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contrib
contributions? /f "Yes," complet 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate,
If *Yes,* complete Scheduie N, PN 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange,
Schedule N, Partll N 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entityGisregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 /f *Yes," complete Schedule R, Part/ 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f "Yes,* complete Schedule R, Part Il, lll, or IV, and
PANtVI NG T oo e oo 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a X
b if *Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b}(13)? /f "Yes, " complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 35b
36 Section 501(c)3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, lin@ 2. e 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? /f *Yes,” complete Schedule R, PartVi 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O e 38| X
Form 990 (2013)
332004
10-29-13
4
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30—0275867 Page5
Pa Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any linein thisPartv. D
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -O-if not applicable . . ... 1a 4
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -O- if not applicable . ... ... ... ... 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
{gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1c | X
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisretumn . . . 2a 12
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax retums? . . ... .. 2b X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) ... ... ..
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during theyear? . . . . . 3a X
b If "Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? /f "No," to line 3b, provide an explanation in SchedquleO 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . 48 X
b If “Yes,*® enter the name of the foreign country: >
See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22.1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts.
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear? . . ... ... ... 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax sheji@®ransaction? .. . 5b X
c If "Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . . . .. Sc
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $1 did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? & 7 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, X
b If "Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express state bons or gifts
were nottaxdeductible? . ... .M. o, 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under secti :
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of thagaaods or servicl@rovided? 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of ta
YYD 7 . WD 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed duriggetbe year AW . =~
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly odiffeCNilto pay [mMiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e
t Did the organization, during the year, pay preggfhs, direcfilfor indire§@l, on a personal benefit contract? . 7t
@ If the organization received a contribution of § 7
h [f the organization received a contribution of car3 E, airplanes, Or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? | 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining g - d section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did the supporting '
organization, or a donor advised fung : grganization, have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations m$
B Did the organization make any taX istributi nder section 49667 9a
b Did the organization make a distribu , donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions incl3ded on Part VIl line12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part Viii, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c) 12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders ... ... 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If *Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued duringthe year .. ... . |_12b l
13 Section 501(c}{29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more thanone state? . 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans . . 13b
¢ Enterthe amountof reservesonhand . . 13¢
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 14a X
b 14b
Form 990 (2013)
332005
10-29-13
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 Ppage6
overnance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes® response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any fine inthis Part VI .. i [XI
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear 1a 11
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the gaverning body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule 0.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . . 1b 11
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, orkey BmMpIOYEe? e e 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, or trustess, or key employees to a management company or otherperson? . . 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? . 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . . . 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or StockhOIders? | . i 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) m rs, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing body? I <4 RU SOOI b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undel ¢ year by the following:
a Thegovemningbody? oo ‘ g8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI,
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes, " provide the names and addresSCRENSCheg@F O .. .. ... ... 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not Pby the Internal Revenue Code.)
R Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates N SN A 10a X
b If *Yes,* did the organization have written policies and proceduré i pctivities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consiste { Pt puUrPOSes? 10b
11a 1a| X
b
12a 12a] X
b 2| X
c
12¢| X
13 13X
14 17}l X
15
a The organization’s CEQ, Executive Director¥or top managernent official 15a] X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? . . . e e 16a X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization'’s
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . e i6b

Section C. Disclosure

17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed > NH

18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website D Another’'s website @ Upon request ':] Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how), the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial

statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization: p»

DAWN FORCIER - 603-358-6624
69V ISLAND ST., UNIT B, KEENE, NH 03431
332006 10-29-13 Form 990 (2013)
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 page?
[Part VI[ Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Vii

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Compilete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

® List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® |ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of “key employee.”

® List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee} who received report-
able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® |ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persons.

[:l Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A} 8 {C) (D) (€) {F)
Name and Title Average | oo ufgfﬁ\'ggmm one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week ofticer and a directorfirustas) from related other
(list any g organizations compensation
hours for | 3 (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | 2| & organization
organizations| £ g £ and related
below (3121, |%|[zE organizations
ine) 1218 |2 |5 (305
(1) JANE SHAPIRO 2.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(2) DOTTIE BITTNER 2.00
SECRETARY X 0. 0. 0.
(3) F. JAY EASON 2.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(4) RHONDA LAKE 2
VICE PRESIDENT ‘ X 0. 0. 0.
(5) JENNIFER CHARLAND .00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(6) KENNETH JUE 2.
DIRECTOR 0. 0. 0.
(7) CHARLES POST 00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(8) LANCE MILLER 00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(9) MARY ANN BOYNTON 2.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(10) EILEEN FERNANDES 2.00
PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(11) JONATHAN BLAIS 2.00
TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
{12) STEPHEN HOFFMAN 50.00
EXECUTIVE DIR / DENTIST X 286,594, 0.] 60,472.
332007 10-29-13 7 Form990(2013)
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18250121 102249 3849

DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 Page8
a l Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B} (C) (D} (E) (F)
p Position i
Name and title Average do not cheok more than one Reportable Repodab{e Estimated
hours per | 5ox, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a directortrustee) from from related other
(istany | % the organizations compensation
hours for | 3 = organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related | 3 | £ 2 (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| 2 | £ H :EE and related
below 2l 188 s organizations
. £ 12 8t= |23l e
tine) |2|2[8]5 5]
b Subtotal o ) 286,594. 0. 00,472,
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part Vil, Sectiongay. .~ W4 . | 2 0. 0. 0.
d Total(addlinestband1c) ... ... AP W W » 286,594. 0.] 60,472.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not lig listed al ) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization 1
Yes | No
Ristes, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
................................................................................................ 3 X
prtable compensation and other compensation from the organization
Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recel¥ Ompensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services .
rendered to the organization? If "Yes, " c8 chedule JIOrSUCh PErSON ... 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
(A) {B) (9]
Name and business address NONE Description of services Compensation
2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization P>
Form 990 (2013)
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 Page9
[@ Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lingin this Part VI ... L__j
(A} {B) {C) A LD) luded
Total revenue Related or Unvelated ?P’:r"‘]”mfﬁcngef
exempt function business sections
revenue revenue 512-514
*gg 1a Federated campaigns 1a
53| b Membershipdues ... .. 1
.;E ¢ Fundraisingevents 1c
55 d Related organizations . 1d
G E e Govemment grants (contributions) 1e
éa‘_i f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
,3% similar amounts not included abave | 1¢ 56,150.
Eg g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-11: §
85| h TotalAddlinestatf ... > 56,150.
Business Co
8 | 2a DENTAL FEES 621300 979,696. 979,696.
%o b CHESHIRE SMILES 621300 28,472, 28,472,
42| . AGENCY REVENUE 621300 | 25,442.] 25,442,
E.’E d
o e
o f Al other program service revenue
g Total.Addlines2a-2f .. ... .. . ... » 1,033, .
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
othersimilaramounts) > 835 895.
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
5 Royalties ...l >
{i) Real (ii) Pers:
6 a Gross rents
b Less:rental expenses
¢ Rentalincome or (loss)
d Netrentalincomeor(loss) ... P .
7 a Gross amount from sales of i) Secu i er
assets other than inventory
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses
c Gainor(loss) . .
d Netgainor(oss) ... Q... ... . . . >
o | 8 a Gross income from fundrais vents (not
g including $ of
E contributions reported on line 1c).
5 PantIV,linet8 . @ a
g b Less: direct expenses b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ... . >
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line 19 a
b Less: direct expenses b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities ... . »
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
andallowances . .. ... a
b Less: costof goodssold o
¢ _Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ... »
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Codef
11a
b
c
d All other revenue
12 1,090,655.[1,033,610. 0. 895.
10-29-13 Form 990 (2013)
9
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC.

30_0275867 Page10

| Part IX| Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule Q contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part IX ... ... i L]
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total éfgenses Program service Managésm)ent and Func(i?a)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part Viil. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and
organizations in the United States. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in
the United States. See Part IV, line22
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 .
4 Benefits paidtoor formembers .
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees . .. 347.066- 277,177~ 69:889-
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4358(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . .
7 Othersalariesandwages ... . . ... .. .. 345:310- 331:3 . 13,983-
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 19,320. -1 . 2,017.
9 Other employee benefits . 38 ,044. ’ 2, 769.
10 Payrolitaxes . 39,140. 3,685. 5,455.
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
a Management .
B Legal .. e 1,619. 1,619.
¢ ACCOUMING ... > 0.]" 5,650.
d Lobbying .. '
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
1 Investment managementfees .
g Other. (! line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A} amount, list ine 11g expenses on Sch O, 26,088.
12 Advertising and promotion N
13 Office expenses ... . 2,990. 748.
14 Information technology .
15 Royaties ... . M .3
16 Occupancy ... €& . . 2,488. 20,239. 2,249.
17 Travel . S 1,745. 1,745.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment 8
for any federal, state, or focal public offi8
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings @
20 Interest ...
21 Payments to affiliates ..
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 28,046. 25,241. 2,805,
23 Insurance ... 4,812. 4,331. 481.
24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above, (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If line
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A}
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a DENTAL SUPPLIES 66,843, 66,843,
b DENTAL LAB EXPENSE 48,830. 48,830.
¢ UTILITIES 15,151. 13,636. 1,515.
d EQUIPMENT EXPENSE AND L 14,827. 13,344. 1,483.
e Al other expenses 39,270. 33,834. 5,436.
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 1,067,987. 951,888. 116,099. 0.
26  Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising soficitation.
Check here Jp» if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)
332010 10-29-13 Form 990 (2013)
10
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 pageit
{ Part X | Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any linein this Part X ... ... ... LJ
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-noninterestbeanng ... .. ... 40,500.] 4 38,400.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 624 , 404.} 2 708 , 986.
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net 3
4 Accountsreceivable,net 97,822.] 4 50,589.
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,

trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part Il of Schedule L 5

6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary

g employees' beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Partliof Sch L 6
2 | 7 Notesandloansreceivable,net ... 7
< | 8 inventoriesforsaleoruse . . 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9 4 ’ 325.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other :
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 960,214. V L
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 382,596 598,702.] 10c 577,618.
11 Investments - publicly traded securites ) 11
12 Investments - other securities. See PartiV,line11 . 4 12
13  investments - program-related. See Part IV, line11 =~ 4 13
14 Intangibleassets ... Q.. 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, fine 11 1,860.] 15 1,860.

16__ Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal fine 34) 1,363,288.] 16 1,381,778.

17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . Al 13 ’ 309.] 7 9 ’ 180.
18 Grantspayable ... .. ... ... 18
19 Defemmedreverve . . . e . 35,554.1 1o 34,221,
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities ... ... 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Corg 21
@ |22 Loans and other payables to current a
E key employees, highest compensated emp
jg Complete Partilof Schedule Lol A . 22
< |23 Secured mortgages and nojgayable T@arelalSg@bird parties 23
24  Unsecured notes and loa@@ibayable to unr&illed thifd parties . 24
25 Other liabilities (including fe¥
parties, and other liabilities no es 17-24). Complete Part X of
SchedueD .. .. . . NP 18,564.] 25 19,848.
___1 26 Totalliabilities. Add lines 17 throughW5 .. ... .. 67,427.] 26 63,249.
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here p D—ﬂ and
& complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. ‘
g Unrestricted netassets 1,255,861. 27| 1,318,529.
& (28 Temporarily restricted netassets ... ... ... 28
b 29 Permanently restricted netassets
2 Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here p [:]
S and complete lines 30 through 34.
% 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
g 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 31
% | 32 Retained eamings, endowmnent, accumulated income, or other funds = 32
Z |33 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances . 1,295,861.] 33 1,318,529.
34 _Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances .. ... . 1,363,288.] 34 1,381,778.
Form 990 (2013)
332011
10-28-13
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Form 990 (2013) INC. 30-0275867 page 12
[ Pﬂ Xl | Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part XI. . . ... [:]
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIl, column (&), line 12) ... 1 1,090,655.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, Column (A), N 28) ... 2 1,067,987.
3 Revenueless expenses. Subtract line 2 from N 1 3 22 s 668.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year {must equal Part X, line 33, column (A)} ... .. . ... 4 1 ' 295 ’ 861.
5 Netunrealized gains (losses) oninvestments e 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities ... 6
7 Investment eXpenses e 7
8 Priorperiod adjustments e 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances {explainin Schedule O) 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
QO (B)) oo et 10 1,318,529.
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X1 ... [IJ
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash IXI Accrual D Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other,” ain in Schedule O
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent ntant? 2al X

If “Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year iled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis D Consolidated basis L__] Both consolid

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent
If “Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements
consolidated basis, or both: )
Separate basis D Consolidated basis

review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of ef; g 2c| X

3a As aresult of a federat award, was the organizatiol

Act and OMB Circular A-133? 3a X
b If *Yes,” did the organization undergo the req¥
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and descrit) 3b
Form 990 (2013)

332012
10-29-13
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SCHEDULE A OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-E2) Public Charity Status and Public Support 20 1 3

Compilete if the organization Is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

Intormal Revenuo Service P> Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.jrs, gov/fc m990. Inspection

Name of the organization DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY, Employer identification number
INC. 30-0275867

[PartT ] Reason for Public Charity Status (Al organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box.)

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)( 1{A)i).

A school described in section 170{b){ 1A}ii). (Attach Schedule E.)

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b)( 1{ANiii).

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170{b} 1XAXiii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b}{ 1XAXiv). (Complete Part Il.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170{b)( 1{AXv).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b}{ 1{AXvi). (Complete Part Il.}

A community trust described in section 170{bX 1A)vi). (Complete Part i1.)
An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from utions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) n 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from byasi by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)2). (Complete Part lil.)

An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public
An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit O
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or 509(a)(2). See section 509{a)3). Check the box that

& ON -

(2]

90 00 O

10
1"

10

describes the type of supporting organization and completg
Typel b Type il c d D Type lit - Non-functionally integrated
-] [:l By checking this box, { certify that the organization is not col ' indirectly by one or more disqualified persons other than
foundation managers and other than one or moregublicly sy organizations described in section 503(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determi bat it is a Type |, Type I, or Type il
supporting organization, check this box 8F" B N s -
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organizd 8 iihar ontribution from any of the following persons?

(i) A person who directly or indirectly con { ogether with persons described in (ii) and (i) below, Yes | No
the governing body of the SSEENRLOrgaN@RION? 11g(i)
(i) A family member of a pg RO e 11g(ii
(iii} A 35% controlled en@K ; in(or@above? 119(iii)
h Provide the following informa ported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (ii}EIN Bt organization Kiv) IS the organization| (v) Did you notify the (‘”)t'f the 1. | (vii) Amount of monetary
organization bed on lines 1-9 Jn col. (i) listed in your| organization in col. ‘(’,')gg,'gﬁﬂ%'ﬂ]‘ige support
above or IRC section  {governing document?| (i) of your support?
see instruction
(see instructions)) Yes No Yes No Yes No
Total
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
Form 990 or 990-EZ.
332021
09-25-13
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2013 INC. 30-0275867 page2
[Eﬂ] Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b){(1){A}{iv) and 170{}{A){A){vi)
{Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lil. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lil.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P> (a) 2009 (b) 2010 {c) 2011 (d) 2012 {e) 2013 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants."}

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through3

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
column (f)

6 _Public support. subtract line 5 ¥om lina 4.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) > (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (d) 2012 (e} 2013 (f) Total

7 Amounts fromlined

8 Gross income from interest,

dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royatties
and income from similar sources

9 Net income from unrelated business

activities, whether or not the
business is regularty camied on
10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part1v.)
Total support. Add lines 7 throug

12 |

14 Pubiic support percentage for 2013 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f})} 14 %

15 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part |1, tine 14 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2013, if the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 33 1/3% support test - 2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2013. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the organization
meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... . . .
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how the

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

332022
09-25-13
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2013 INC.

30-0275867 pages

[Pdrt T Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

{Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization failed to quality under Part |1. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 1.}

Section A. Public Support

Galendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p>
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to

or expended on its behalf

5§ The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received

from other than disqualified persons that

exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the

amount on line 13 for the year
¢ Add lines 7a and 7b
8 Public support i
Section B. Total Support

(a) 2009 (b) 2010 {c) 2011 {d) 2012

(e) 2013

{f) Total

5,000. 5,000. 5,200. 5,600.

56,150.

76,950,

904,654. 940,836.] 1058800.] 1039225.

1033610.

4977125.

909,654.] 945,836. 4825,

1089760.

5054075.

5,000. 5,000. 0.

55,000,

75,000.

0.

51000.

55,000.

75,000.

4979075.

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P>

9 Amounts fromiine6
10a Gross income from interest,

dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income

(less section 511 taxes) from busina

acquired atter June 30, 1975
¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,

whether or not the business is
regularly carfiedon
12
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part IV.)

13
14

Other income. Do not include gain

Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

(c) 2011 (d) 2012

{e) 2013

{f) Tota

1064000.] 1044825.

1089760.

5054075.

1,237. 1,155.

895.

6.453.

¥ . 876. 1,237. 1,155.

895.

6,453.

911,944./ 946,712.] 1065237.] 1045980.

1090655.

5060528,

First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

ChBCK s DOX AN S 0D N OEO o o iiiiieiiiiiiiieiisiiiiiieieseeeseiesisesieseessseesiciissirtiesissississiiicis » L]
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2013 (iine 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 98.39 %
16 _Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Partll line 16 ... . ... 16 99.36 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2013 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column(f)} = 17 .13 o
18 Investment income percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Panrt lll, line17 18 .23 o
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton > le

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2012. if the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization » D

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ... | D

332023 09-25-13

18250121 102249 3849

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-£7) 2013 INC. 30-0275867 pages
Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part I, line 17a or 17b; and Part lll, line 12.
Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions).

332024 09-25-13 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
16
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors

OME No. 1545-0047
(Form 990, 990-EZ, P Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF,

- P

g;:“ow Z’m reasury » Information about Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) and 20 13

Internal Revenus Service its instructions is at wyw irs. gov/form990 -

Name of the organization Employer identification number
DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE CQUNTY,
INC. 30-0275867

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ m 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization
Form 990-PF

501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private fou ion

00000

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note. Only a section 501(c)7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for boti Gel ule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

[E For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that rec
contributor. Complete Parts | and H.

ear, $5,000 or more (in money or property) from any one

Special Rules

D For a section 501(c)(3) organization filing For
509(a)(1) and 170{b)(1)(A)(vi) and rg
of the amount on (i) Form 990§

90-EZ thal'met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under sections
e contributor, during the year, a contribution of the greater of (1) $5,000 or (2) 2%
990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and {1,

D For a section 501(c)(7), (8), or R izati g Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the year,
total contributions of more than $
the prevention of cruetlty to children ol . Complete Parts |, Il, and Ill.

I:] For a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the year,
contributions for use exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but these contributions did not total to more than $1,000.
If this box is checked, enter here the totai contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
purpose. Do not complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $5,000 or more during the year » 3

Caution. An organization that is not covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules does not file Schedute B (Form 890, 990-EZ, or 990-PF),
but it must answer "No” on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to
certify that it does not meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2013)

323451
10-24-13



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2013)

Page 2

Name of organization
DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

INC.

Employer identification number

30-0275867

Part |

Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a)
No.

(b

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

1

CHESHIRE HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC.

580 COURT STREET

$ 5,000.

KEENE, NH 03431

Person IX]

Payroll
Noncash [:l

{Complete Part Ii for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

CHESHIRE MEDICAL CENTER

580 COURT STREET

KEENE , NH 03431

50,000.

Person [X]
Payroll  [_|

Noncash

(Complete Part |l for
noncash contributions.)

(a)

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

Person l:l
Payroll

Noncash [:

(Compilete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b]
Name, address, a

(c)

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

Person D

Payroll
Noncash D

(Complete Part It for
noncash contributions.}

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

Person D
Payroll D
Noncash E]

(Complete Part |l for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b}
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

Person D
Payroll D
Noncash D

{Complete Part i} for
noncash contributions.)

323452 10-24-13

18250121 102249 3849

18
2013.05040 DENTAL

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 890-PF) (2013)

HEALTH WORKS OF CHES 38489 1



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2013)

Page 3

Name of organization

DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
INC.

Employer identification number

30-0275867

P#rt Il Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a)
No.
from
Part |

(b}

Description of noncash property given

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(see instructions)

(d)

Date received

(a)
No.
from
Part |

(b)

Description of noncash property given

(c)
FMV [or estimate)
(see instructions)

(d)

Date received

(a)
No.
from
Part |

(b)

Description of noncash property given

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(see instructions)

(d)

Date received

(a)
No.
from
Part |

Description

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(see instructions)

(d)

Date received

(a)
No.
from
Part

(b)

Description of noncash property given

()
FMV (or estimate)
(see instructions)

(d)

Date received

(a)
No.
from
Part |

(b}
Description of noncash property given

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(see instructions)

(d)

Date received

323453 10-24-13

18250121 102249 3849
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2013) Page 4

Name of organization Employer identification number
DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
INC. 30-0275867

m Exclusivel reﬁioua, charitable, etc., individual contributions to seclion ci7), (8), of orgamzations That total more than 91,000 Tor 1he
year. éomglete columns (8) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations completing Part 11, enter
the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. {Enter this information once.)

Use duplicate copies of Part lil if additional space is needed.

(a} No.
g:rtml (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gitt is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
gt:'tml (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transf
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No.
gOrT' (b} Purpose of gift of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
al
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, ad s, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
g:}'{‘u (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
323454 10-24-13 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2013)
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements Y ST
(Form 990) » Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 3
Part iV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢c, 11d, 11e, 111, 12a, or 12b.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. OPen to Public
internal Aevenus Servics ) Information about Schedule D {Form 990) and its instructions is at yunw i< gaw/fnrmagn Inspection
Name of the organization DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY ' Employer identification number
INC. 30-0275867

] Partl | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

N & WON =

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number atend of year ...

Aggregate contributions to (during year)
Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value atendofyear

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? I:! Yes I:! No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private benefit? ... ... Clves [ Ino

{Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Fo
1

Qo oo

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization {check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Presel of an historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat D Pre, a certified historic structure

D Preservation of open space

Compiete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservatio

day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements . O, 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . NN 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structi@R THggadin () & . ... . . . 2¢c
Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after a historic structure
listedinthe National Register o A4 TV 2d
Number of conservation easements modified, trangffe p kinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year p»
Number of states where property subject to 8 iz (¥cated P>
Does the organization have a written policy regar8 ® periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the cqg RS It OIS T I:! Yes I:! No
Staff and volunteer hours devoted and enforcing conservation easements during the year p»

g, and enforcing conservation easements during the year p» $
Does each conservation easemen (d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(}}

and section 170(N{AXBY)? . N . e

In Part XIll, describe how the organizatio conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnot®to the organization’s financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for

conservation easements.

| Pért 1] l Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958}, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part Xiil,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

(i) Revenues included in Form 990, Part VHIl line 1 |
{ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X > $
2 if the organization received or heid works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenues included in Form 990, Part Viil, line 1
b Assetsincluded in Form 890, Part X e
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
%51
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Schedule D (Form 990} 2013 INC. 30-0275867 page2
rtilll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assetscontinued)
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items

(check all that apply):
a D Public exhibition d D Loan or exchange programs
b D Scholarly research e Other

c D Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIII.
5§ During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ... .. ... D Yes

[Zm Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

DNO

1a s the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
OnFOM Y0, Part X? | e
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIll and complete the following table:

DNO

Beginning balance .
Additions during the year
Distributions during the year
Endingbalance . .. s
Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line21? . ... . ..

If *Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIll. Check here if the explanation has bee
I Part v l Endowment Funds. Complete i the organization answered "Yes* t

{a) Current year (b) Prior

g’-mno

o

{c) Two year (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance
b Contributions ... .. ...
¢ Net investment eamings, gains, and losses
Grants or scholarships ... ...
Other expenditures for facilities

and programs

Administrative expenses

g End of year balance

Q

-

, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment P>
b Permanent endowment p»
¢ Temporarily restricted endowment P

The percentages in lines 2a, 2b, ag
3a Are there endowment funds no

by:

(i) unrelated organizations

(ii) related organizations . ..\ ) 3a(ii)

b K *Yes" to 3a(ii), are the related organizationJMisted as required on Schedule R? 3b
4 Describe in Part Xill the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
V] {Land, Buildings, and Equipment,
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Yes | No

3a(l)

Description of property

(a) Cost or other
basis (investment)

{b) Cost or other
basis (other)

{c) Accumulated
depreciation

(d) Book value

b Buildings

496 ,515.

42,437.

454,078.

189,773.

84,584.

¢ Leasehold improvements

105,189.

273,926. 255,575.

18,351.

577,618.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013

332082
09-25-13
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Scheduls D {Form 990) 2013 INC. 30-0275867 page3
] P§rt VII[ Investments - Other Securities.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or category (inciuding name of security} {b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financialderivatives . ... ...
(2) Closely-held equity interests
(3) Other

()]

(B)

©

D)

(3]

(3]
(S

H)
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) b
| Pgrt VIIII Investments - Program Related.

Complete it the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11¢. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a) Description of investment (b} Book value {c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

()
@
)]

(O]

)
06
U]
(8)

)]
Total. (Col. {b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) >
[ Pgrt IX | Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes* to 990, ne 11d.See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
i (b) Book value

)

(4]

3

(<]

)

(6)
S (4]

(6)

8
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 980, Part X, cR (B)line 15.) ...............................ocoooio >
irt X | Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

@ ACCRUED VACATION PAYABLE 19,848.

(©]

@

(5}
8

U]

(8)

9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)line 25.) ... ... . » 19,848.

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XliI, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part Xiil D

Schedule D (Form 990} 2013

52
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2013

DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
INC.  30-0275867 page4

rt XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete it the organization answered *Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Netunrealized gains on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities . 2b

¢ Recoveries of prioryeargrants ... L2

d Other(DescribeinPart XNIL) .. 2d

e Addlines2athrough 2d 2e
3 Subtractline2e fromline 1 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIl line7b . ... ... 4a

b Other{DescribeinPart XIN) . 4b

c Addlinesd4aand 4b e 4c
5§ __Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. . (This must equal Form 990, Part [, line 12.} . ................................ 5

[Pdrt Xil JReconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part iX, line 25:
Donated services and use of facilities

Prior year adjustments
Other losses

Other {Describe in Part XIli.)
Add lines 2a through 2d
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1

® a0 Uo

4 Amounts included on Form 890, Part 1X, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7§

b Other {Describe in Part Xill.)
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b

.......................................................................... 2c

..................................................................... 2d
.. 2e
3

................. 4a
4c

ad 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,

lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xl|, iines 2d and 4b. Also ai¥e any additional information.

332054
09-25-13
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2013

Department of the Traasury P~ Attach to Form 990. P> See separate instructions. Open to Public .
Internal Revenue Servics ) Information about Schedule J (Form 990} and its instructions is at urww irq gav/farmq9o Inspection
Name of the organization DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY, Employer identification number
___INC. 30-0275867
|Part| | Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
ta Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form 990,
Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part lll to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
Firstclass or charter travel D Housing allowance or residence for personal use
Travel for companions ':] Payments for business use of personal residence
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments D Health or social club dues or initiation fees
D Discretionary spending account D Personal services (e.g., maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No,” complete Part lHtoexplain . . . . . 1b
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked in 2
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the co
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for meth
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part il
Compensation committee Writt
D Independent compensation consultant D Com
Form 990 of other organizations [X] Approv.
4 During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Sect
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? AP T 4a )_(__
Participate in, or receive payment from, a suppleme 4b X
¢ Participate in, or receive payment from, an equi 4c X
If *Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons a
Only section 501(c)3) and 501(c}4)
5 For persons listed in Form 990, Payg
contingent on the revenues of:
a Theorganization? . NN B, 5a X
b Anyrelated organization? NN M 5b X
If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, describe in Part
6 For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Sect®n A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net eamings of:
a The organization? X
Any related organization? X
If "Yes" to line 6a or 6b, describe in Part Iil.
7 For persons listed in Form 990, Part Vi1, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed payments
not described inlines 5 and 67 If Yes,” describeinPartil e 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes,” describeinPartt 8 X
9 If "Yes" to line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations SeCtion 53.4008-6(C) 7 . . . e 9
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2013

332111
09-13-13
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DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013 INC. 30-0275867 Page 2
Part |l || Officers, Directors, Trust Key Empl , and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space Is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported in Scheduie J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii).
Do nat list any individuals that are not listed on Form 990, Part Vit

Note. The sum of columns (BK{)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Farm 990, Part V11, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E} amounts for that individual.

{B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation | {C) Retirement and
other deferred
compensatio

(D} Nontaxable |{E) Total of coumns| (F) Compensation
benefits (BY){D} reported as deferred
in prior Form 990

{i) Base (i} Bonus & {il) Other
compensation incentive reportable
compensation compensation

(A) Name and Title

(1) STEPHEN HOFFMAXN w] 286,594. Q. 0. 26,662, 347,066. 0.
EXECUTIVE DIR / DENTIST (i) 0. 0. 0. 0
(0]
(i1}
0]
fii}
U]
(i)
0]
{ii}
(i}
{1}
(i)
(U]
(11}
(i)
(0]
U]
W
()]
[0)
(i}
(0]
{ii}
(0]
{il)
4]
il
(i)
i
0]
il
332112 Schedule J (Farm 990} 2013
09°13:93 26




DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,
Schedule J (Form 990) 2013 INC. 30-0275867 Paged
| Part 11| Supplementai Information
Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part {, ines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 53, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part I. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Q&

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013

332113
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ °§”ﬁ’jis§”

{Form 990 or 990-E2) omplete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
intornal Revere Service P> intormation about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is atww irs gau/fazmgan Inspection
Name of the organization DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY, Employer identiflcation number
INC. 30-0275867

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

CHESHIRE COUNTY.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 8B:

EXPLANATION: ALL DECISIONS AND ACTS ARE AT THE BOARD LEVEL

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11:

EXPLANATION: COPIES OF FORM 990 PROVIED TO AL D MEMBERS. BOARD REVIEWS

AND VOTES TO APPROVE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTIO

EXPLANATION: BOARD DO ANMARAL, REVIEW OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

COMPENSATION. IT UT OUS COMPARABILITY DATA AVAILABLE (AMERICAN

DENTAL ASSOCIATION, E

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

EXPLANATION: COPIES AVAILABLE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST.

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C:

EXPLANATION: FULL BOARD OVERSIGHT

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2013)
33221
09-04-13
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In fiscal year 2013-2014 Dental Health Works completed our 12th year of operations. We again set a
high mark for unreimbursed community care for our patients, surpassing $330,000 for the year. We
have also passed a total unreimbursed care figure of $2 million dollars as we entire our 12" year. This is
an accomplishment we are very proud of.

The practice continues to partner with community agencies, as well as always exploring ways to include
new target groups. Dental Health Works is the only practice in the county to work with these vulnerable
groups. Many of these clients would go without care without our services. We are the only
comprehensive care provider for adult Medicaid recipients in the county, offering a sliding fee scale and
free care to those who qualify. This allows these patients to access services not covered under the state
adult Medicaid program. The practice also accepts patients on New Hampshire Health Access. Thisis a
program sponsored by most of the State’s hospitals which offers slidi
accept referrals from our local hospital, Cheshire Medical Center, {

e care to the uninsured. We
is group and honor their fee
scale.

The practice supported four externs from Boston Universj
to be the only practice in the state that serves as a Bos
facility for the students, and during this upcoming year it ain host 4 students. The students work
under the supervision of the Director and are at¢E¥agility for
patients. Dental Health Works receives no financ
housing and other expenses to continuegdas 3 ese externs work with our target population
and help us to-expand our reach to tj

The practice and Director continue
Currently we co- sponsor a
program rotates through
This work and other ini
supports this program thro®
support.

B nany local and state oral health initiatives.

ee clinic called the “Traveling Adult Dental Service”. This

al offices in our area offering free care to patients of need.
without any financial remuneration. Dental health works

ind donations, and also through administrative and financial

The practice now oversees Cheshire County’s school- based hygiene program, Cheshire Smiles. Dental
Health Works is the sole administrator for this program and has added the program’s 2 staff people to
our employee base. Additionally, we have become the fiscal agent for State Grant support of this

program. We also assume additional administrative and financial support as well. This program is the

only one of its kind in our county, and provides in- school services to both elementary and middle school
children.

Our twelfth fiscal year brought over 400 new patients to the practice, with two- thirds from its target
populations. The practice continues to be a top provider for children participating in the NH Medicaid
program, both in our area, and within the state. As we continue to pursue our mission, the staff of
Dental Health Works looks forward to broadening our vision to include more of those in need.



Fom 8868 Application for Extension of Time To File an
(Rev. January 2014) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 15451709

o the Traasory P> File a separate application for ea.ch return.
Internal Revenue Service P> Information about Form 8868 and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/formB8868 -

® [f you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part land checkthisbox . . . . .
® if you are filing for an Additional (Not Automatic} 3-Month Extension, complete only Part Il (on page 2 of this form).

Do not complete Part If unless  YOou have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868.
Electronic filing ¢e_fije) . You can electronically file Form 8868 if you need a 3-month automatic extension of time to file (6 months for a corporation
required to file Form 990-T), or an additional (not automatic) 3-month extension of time. You can electronically file Form 8868 to request an extension
of time to file any of the forms listed in Part | or Part 1} with the exception of Form 8870, Information Retumn for Transfers Associated With Certain
Personal Benefit Contracts, which must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic fiting of this form,
visit www.irs.gov/efite and click on e-file for Charities & Nonprofits.

[Part] | Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).

A corporation required to file Form 990-T and requesting an automatic 6-month extension - check this box and complete

P L OlY e e » L]
All other corporations (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time
to file income tax returns. Enter filer’s identifying number
Type or | Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. Employer identification number (EIN) or
print DENTAL HEALTH WORKS OF CHESHIRE COUNTY,

' INC. 30-0275867
::Z:::« Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions. Social security number (SSN)
singyer | 69V _ISLAND ST., UNIT 2B
instuctions. | City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, se:

KEENE, NH 03431

Enter the Return code tor the retum that this application is for (file a separate applic or each retum)

Application Ret aeation Return
Is For Cod Is F; Code
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 990-T (corporation) 07
Form 990-BL 02 m 1041-A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 4720 (other than individual) 09
Form 990-PF 5227 10
Form 990-T {sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Formm 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12
DA FOR R

® The books are in the care of »» ISLAN T., UNIT B - KEENE, NH 03431

Telephone No.p» 603-358- Fax No. p 603-358-6641
® If the organization does not have an offic: lace siness in the United States, checkthisbox . ... ... » D
® |f this is for a Group Return, enter the organi our digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is for the whole group, check this

box P D _If it is for part of the group, check th® box P D and attach a list with the names and EINSs of all members the extension is for.
1 Irequest an automatic 3-month (6 rmonths for a corporation required to file Form 990-T) extension of time untit
FEBRUARY 15, 2 015 , to file the exempt organization return for the organization named above. The extension
is for the organization’s retum for:

» [ calendar year or
» (X tax year beginning JUL 1, 2013 ,andending JUN 30, 2014
2 Ifthe tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: D Initial return D Final retumn

Change in accounting period

Ja  if this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a]$ 0.
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3Bbls 0.
¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. include your payment with this form, if required,
by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. | $ Q.
Caution. If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EQ and Form 8879-EO for payment
instructions.
gg:‘«” For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2014)
12-31-13
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Dental Health Works Board of Directors
Committee Assignments 2014/2015

Executive

Chair: Eileen Fernandes, Board President
Members:

Jonathan Blais, Board Vice-President
Dottie Bittner, Secretary

e Jay Eason, Treasurer

Steve Hoffman, Executive Director

Governance

Chair: Jon Blais, Board Vice-President
Members:

e Rhonda Lake

e MaryAnn Boynton

Finance

Chair: Jay Eason, Treasurer
Members:

e Renee Morrison

e Charlie Post

Facilities

Chair: Sandy Clark
Members:

e Lance Miller

e Birgitte Hastings

Ad-Hoc: Foundation Research

Chair: Fileen Fernandes
Members:

e Jon Blais



Office Address:

Education:

Postgraduate and
Fellowship Training;

Faculty Appointments:

Non-Academic
Appointments:

Curriculum Vitae

Stephen F. Hoffman, D.M.D.

VA

“

Dental Health Works
69V Island Street
Keene, NH 03431

1978-1982:
1982-1986:

1986-1987:

1987-1988:

1988-2002:

1994-1997:

1997-2002:

2004-present

1991-1995

1988-2002:

2002-present:

B.S., Biology, University of Connecticut
D.M.D., University of Medicine and
Dentistry of New Jersey

General Practice Residency,
Danbury Hospital, Danbury, CT

Fellowship, Danbury Hospital,
Danbury, CT

Section Chief, General Dentistry,
General Practice Residency Program,
Danbury Hospital

Vice-Chairman, Department of Dentistry,
Danbury Hospital

Chairman, Department of Dentistry,
Danbury Hospital

Extramural Faculty, Boston University
Goldman School of Dental Medicine

Staff Dentist, Ella T. Grasso Center,
Connecticut Dept. of Mental Retardation
Stratford, CT

Full time private practice, General
Dentistry, Newtown, CT

Executive Director, Dental Health Works
Keene, NH
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Hospital Appointments:

Licensure:

Awards and Honors:
research in

Memberships in Professional
and Scientific Societies:

2002/present‘ Dental Director, Dental Health Works,
Keene, NH

1988-2002:  Attending, Danbury Hospital,
Danbury, CT

1986-2002  Connecticut (Northeast Regional Boards)
2002-present New Hampshire

1986: Astra Student Scholarship for original
pain control
National: American Dental Association

American Association of Hospital Dentists

Local: New Hampshire Dental Society Trustee
Monadnock Region Dental Society
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Marcia Renee Levesque

SKILLS SUMMARY: [ have practiced Dental Hygiene for the past 20 years in a
variety of settings. I have vast experience with organizing community events and helping
start up programs to help those in need. I am an active volunteer in my community with
a special interest in working with children.

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Dental Health Works — 2003 — present
Keene, NH
Dental Hygienist

Provide preventative dental hygiene services in a public health setting.
We serve a widely varied group of patients from the Medicaid program,
local social agencies and private pay patients.

Cheshire Smiles — 2013 — present
Keene, NH
Dental Hygienist

Serve 27 schools in Cheshire County, providing dental education and
preventative services. We communicate with parents and local dentists,
arranging for restorative care and establishing a dental home.

WIC — Pay For Prevention — May 2014 - present
Keene, NH
Dental Hygienist

A grant funded project that serves pregnant women and children up to age
five offering education, guidance, and preventative services (fluoride
application and dental sealants). Services are delivered at the WIC site in
Keene.

Dr. James Henderson, DDS — 1993-2002
Keene, NH
Dental Hygienist

Provided preventative services to patients, in a team-oriented practice with
a strong emphasis on optimal care for lasting oral health.



Court Street Veterinary Hospital, PC — 1986-1991
Keene, NH
Head Technician

Responsible for organizing work day for a busy practice, assisted in
treatment and maintenance of hospitalized patients, and maintained
ordering system.

EDUCATION:

New Hampshire Technical Institute — 1990 - 1992
Concord, NH
Associate of Science, Major — Dental Hygiene

Vermont Technical College — 1983-1985
Randolph, VT
Associate of Applied Science, Major — Animal Technology

PROFESSIONAL AND COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES:

Marlow School Board — 2009 — present

Marlow Food Pantry — 2008 — present
Started program and organize monthly collection and distribution to
families in need in the Marlow community.

Marlow United Methodist Church — Active in church community
serving in the choir and Christian education coordinator for the youth.
Organize a holiday craft fair that supplies funding for the women’s
fellowship yearly charitable giving.

REFERENCES: Available on request.




EDUCATION:
1975-1977

EMPLOYMENT:

2000-Present

1980-2000:

1980-1982:

1978-1980:

Ann E. Mahoney, RDH

Y |

Forsyth School for Dental Hygienists, Boston MA
Certificate in Dental Hygiene
Northeastern University, Boston MA
. Associate of Science Degree

Registered Dental Hygienist

Cheshire Smiles (school based dental program)

Cheshire Medical Center, Keene, NH

Duties include set-up and breakdown of portable dental equipment,

dental prophylaxis, classroom education, initiating fluoride rinse programs,
providing referral services, scheduling services at schools and sealant clinics,
participation at Health Fairs, and presentations to parent groups.

Registered Dental Hygienist

Dr. Donald Metivier, Keene NH

(full t1me)

Drs. Thomas and Bngltte Hastmgs Keene, NH
(per diem)

Registered Dental Hygienist
Dr. William Wellman, Keene, NH

Registered Dental Hygienist

Dr. James Kane and Dr. David Tesini

Natick, MA (pedodontic/orthodontic practice)
Dr. Gregory Paskarian, Framingham, MA

Drs. Paul and Joseph Spinalli, Framingham, MA
Dr. Robert McGuane, Wellesley Hills, MA

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:

MEMBERSHIPS:

CERTIFICATION:

American Dental Hygienists’ Association
New Hampshire Dental Hygienists” Association
New Hampshire Dental Society-Allied Member

Basic Life Support for Healthcare Providers
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Ann E. Mahoney

COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTEER SERVICE:

Cheshire Dental Public Health Task Force
" Head Start Advisory Committee '
St. Margaret Mary Church-Eucharistic Minister and Social Hour Hostess

Previous volunteer service:
. Secretary and treasurer of the Greater Southwestern Component of the
New Hampshire Dental Hygienists” Association
Cheshire Smiles Dental Screenings, Sealant Days and Community Health F air
Jonathan Daniels Elementary School — room.parent, chaperone, PTA member
Keene High School - Baseball and Basketball (treasurer) Booster Club member
St. Margaret Mary Church: CCD instructor



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: School-based oral health services will be provided to sudents in Cheshire County.
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

1.2 State Agency Address

29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504

1.3 Contractor Name

Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc.

1.4  Contractor Address
69 Island Street, Suite 5
Keene, NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number
Number 05-95-90-902010-4527-102-
(603) 358-6624 500731

1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

June 30, 2015 $54,096

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN
Bureau Chief

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-4501

1.11 Contractor Signature

ooy 19—

1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Eilaon Trenandes  fres perr

1.12.

.13 Acknowledgement: State of p{ # | County of CAsgeuric

Onﬂh 2, (f?forg the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.13.}  Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

seal %L@ UJ%

1.18.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Jolie b wolf, Notary.

1.14 State Agency Signa
7
TR Dages-

115 Name and Title of Sta(e 'Agency Sngnatory
{30 U
I:-ISG-E—BBJHO Bureau Chief

By:

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

%
By: mcf’ Mo KPhr1E~ On:

)G AAD, .20)3'

L18 Approval by the Governor and Executlve Council

- N

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price. - e -

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

—
Contractor Initials: r’
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall fumnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this '
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials:
Date:



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to

- enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
-laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4 of 4

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

i~
Contractor Initials:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services
School-Based Oral Health Services
CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015
CONTRACTOR NAME: Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc

ADDRESS: 69 Island Street, Suite 5
Keene, NH 03431

Executive Director: Stephen Hoffman, DMD.
TELEPHONE: (603) 358-6624

The Contractor shall provide school-based oral health services as specified below:

L General Provisions:

The contractor shall provide oral health assessment, preventive services, and referrals for restorative treatment
for low-income, uninsured, and underinsured children within the defined service area who don’t have regular
access to oral health care.

A. Numbers Served
Oral assessment services are to be provided to a minimum of 2,300 students throughout each year
of the contract term.

B. Eligibility and Income Determination

1. Low-income children and families are defined as < 185% of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (USDHHS), Poverty Guidelines, updated annually and effective as of July 1 of
each year), in the State of New Hampshire.

2. If parental permission forms indicate that the child may be eligible for enrollment in NH
Medicaid, the Contractor shall assist the family to complete the most recent version of the
Medicaid enrollment form.

C. The contractor shall use one of the following models:

1. The “clinic model” that provides on-site comprehensive preventive and/or restorative treatment.
2. The “combination clinic referral model” that provides preventive treatment at one site and
provides care coordination to link clients with restorative treatment at another site.

D. Oral health services for the targeted population(s) shall include:

risk assessment;

oral health education;

oral screening;

early diagnosis of oral diseases;

preventive care focused on age appropriate dental sealants and fluoride application;

and care coordination that links children to restorative treatment and disease management in a
“dental home”.

S s -
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E. Relevant Policies and Guidelines

The school-based oral health program shalil:

b

6.
7

Require no fee for any NH Medicaid client.

Assist eligible families with NH Medicaid enrollment directly or through referral.

Become a NH Medicaid provider for qualified clients.

Provide a sliding fee scale for children from families without NH Medicaid or private dental
insurance.

Assist students in finding a dental home that will provide ongoing comprehensive oral health
care.

Direct resources to evidence-based interventions.

Explore and secure future funding sources.

F. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access health services. To ensure equal
access to quality health services, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors
shall provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines:

1.

2.

Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their
primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are such that they
are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to them
without language assistance.

Offer consumers a forum through which families of children served through the program have the
opportunity to provide feedback to providers and organizations regarding cultural and linguistic
issues that may deserve response.

The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall describe the
way in which the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances in which
interpretation services are provided and the method of providing service (e.g. trained interpreter,
staff person who speaks the language of the client or language line).

G. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is

1.

called to the following statutory responsibilities:

The Contractor shall report all cases of communicable diseases according to New Hampshire RSA
141-C and He-P 30, effective 01/05.

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials: éf/

September 2009
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2. Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New
Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults and
RSA 631:6, Assault and Related Offenses.

3. The contractor shall comply with standards developed by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

H. Publications Funded Under Contract

1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original
materials produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures,
resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

2. All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract shall
have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

3. The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract following the
instructions outlined in Exhibit C-1 (5).

I. Subcontractors

If services required to comply with this Exhibit are provided by a subcontracted agency or provider, the
DPHS Oral Health Program must be notified in writing, receive a copy of the subcontract or
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), and approve the subcontract (MOA) prior to its initiation. In
addition, subcontractors must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant requirements included in this

Exhibit.

I. Minimal Scope of Core Services

A. Service Requirements

The school-based oral health program shall consist of the following components:

1.

Standard Exhibits A - J
September 2009
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Clinical services shall be provided under the supervision of a dentist licensed to practice in
New Hampshire.

Visual oral screenings or exams by a NH Licensed Dentist or a NH Registered Dental
Hygienist with screening results available to clients or to parents of children screened.

Oral health educational presentations by health professionals to individual students at
chairside or to groups in a classroom setting as part of a health care curriculum.

Topical fluoride application as part of a regular preventive routine or, when appropriate,
through a school-based fluoride rinse program in schools wishing to participate.

A preventive dental sealant program for students through a school-based or school-linked
program that assesses risk of dental disease and tooth eruption.

With the exception of orthodontic care, the program shall provide assistance in obtaining
restorative care for students without an established dental provider.

Oral health data collection to support a knowledge base and dental data surveillance system
for use in policy development, assessment, and capacity building at state and local levels.
Notice to families without access to dental services that a sliding fee scale is available and
that no student will be denied school-based dental services for inability to pay. The sliding
fee scale must be updated annually based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as published in the
Federal Register.

Contractor Initials: é ‘

Date:



Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to
the legal requirements governing human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the Oral
Health Program prior to initiating any research related to this contract.

B. Staffing Provisions

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with the New Hampshire Dental Practice Act.
All dental health professionals shall have the appropriate New Hampshire license. The Contractor
shall provide the DPHS Oral Health Program with a resume, a copy of the NH license if
appropriate, and job description for any current professional staff in the program and notify the
State in writing of any staffing changes, along with a copy of the resume of any new staff hired
within one month of date of hire.

Staffing Changes

1.

New Hires: The Contractor shall notify the Oral Health Program in writing within one month of
hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this
scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee and New
Hampshire license if appropriate shall accompany this notification.

Vacancies: The Contractor must notify the Oral Health Program in writing if the dentist or dental
hygienist positions are vacant for more than one month. This may be done through a budget
revision. In addition, the Oral Health Program must be notified in writing if at any time any
program funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to perform all required
services for more than one month.

C. Coordination of Services

I.

2.

The agency shall make arrangements for coordination of oral health services and exchange of
information with other health care providers and agencies. Attach copies of appropriate
contractual agreements, memoranda of understanding, or letters of support from the appropriate
persons summarizing the nature of the collaboration and indicating the level of support.

Agencies that deliver oral health services in communities that are part of a Public Health Region
(PHR) should be active participants in the PHR. As appropriate, agencies should participate in
community needs assessments, public health performance assessments, and the development of
regional public health improvement plans, all of which integrate oral health. Agencies should also
engage PHR staff as appropriate to enhance the implementation of community-based public
health prevention initiatives being implemented by the agency.

D. Meetings and Trainings

The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to meetings and trainings required by the Oral Health
Program, including but not limited to the Annual Oral Health Forum and Calibration Clinic for
School-Based Hygienists.

IL Quality or Performance Improvement (QI/PI)

A. Work Plans

1.

Performance Work Plans are required annually for this program and are used to monitor
achievement of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this contract.
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2.

3.

4.

The work Plans are a key component of the Oral Health Program performance- based contracting
system and of this contract.

The Contractor shall incorporate required performance measures into quality/performance
improvement plan. Reports on Oral Health Work Plan Progress/Outcomes shall explain how the
program plans for future improvement describing activities that monitor and evaluate the
program’s progress toward reaching performance measure targets.

The Contractor shall submit a performance-based work plan with this application for funding and
by July 15" of the contract year.

The Contractor shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the work plan and
annual report format as requested by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program will
provide the Contractor with advance notice of such changes and the Contractor is not expected to
incur any substantial costs relative to such changes.

B. Data and Reporting Requirements

In addition to Performance Work Plans, the Contractor shall submit to the Oral Health Program the
following data used to monitor program performance:

1.

Work Plans and Work Plan Outcome reports according to the schedule and instructions provided
by the Oral Health Program The Oral Health Program shall notify the Contractor at least 30 days
in advance of any changes in the submission schedule.

A Year End Report Form shall be completed annually to describe the reach of the school-based
program beyond the second and third grade population targeted for dental sealants.

The Sources of Revenue report must be resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue
threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the planned program.

A copy of the Sliding Fee Scale provided to participating students’ families shall be submitted on
request to the DPHS Oral Health Program. The sliding fee scale must be updated annually based
on the US DHHS Poverty Guidelines as published in the Federal Register.

An summary of feedback from teachers, school nurses, administratbrs and families obtained
during the prior contract year and of the method by which the results were obtained shall be
submitted on request to the DPHS Oral Health Program to accompany the annual work plan.

C. On-Site Reviews

1.

The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the Oral Health Program to
periodically review the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and
submission, clinical, and financial management in order to assure systems are adequate to provide
the contracted services.

The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted services
are not found to be provided in accordance with this Exhibit.

On-Site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of the Oral Health Program, upon
submission of satisfactory reports of reviews such as the Health and Human Services
Administration (HRSA) Office of Performance Review (OPR) or reviews from nationally
accredited organizations such as the Joint Commission, the Community Health and Accreditation

~
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Program (CHAP) or the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care (AAA).
Abbreviated reviews will focus on any deficiencies found in previous reviews, issues of
compliance with this Exhibit, and actions to strengthen performance as outlined in the agency
Performance Work Plan.

D. Performance Measures

School-Based Oral Health Performance Measures

Second and third grade students represent a group of children whose oral health status can be compared
across New Hampshire programs, with children in other states and in the National Oral Health Surveillance
System.

¢ A minimum of 60% of 2nd & 3rd grade students that return consent forms

¢ A minimum of 300 2nd & 3rd grade students screened in school

e Percent of all 2nd & 3rd grade students screened to assess oral health needs

e Percent of all 2nd & 3rd grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent molar

e 100% of all 2™ and 3™ graders screened with untreated decay who are referred for treatment

e Percent of all 2nd & 3rd grade students screened with a history of decay

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B

Purchase of Services
Contract Price

School-Based Oral Health Services

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

l.

CONTRACTOR NAME: Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc.
ADDRESS: 69 Island Street, Suite 5
Keene, NH 03431

Executive Director: Stephen Hoffman, DMD
TELEPHONE: (603)358-6624

Vendor #167928-B001 Job #90072003 Appropriation #05-95-90-902010-4527-102-50073 1

The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses incurred in the performance of
the services during the period of the contract shall not exceed:

$54,096 for oral health initiatives, funded from 44.7% Federal funds from the Centers for Disease Control
(CDC) (CFDA #93.991) and 55.3% from General funds.

TOTAL: $54,096

2.

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and
expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as
detailed in the attached budgets. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply
such funds for capital additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the
State.

This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period. Reimbursement
shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous month.

Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State for each of the
Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) working days following the
end of the month during which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be due to
the State no later than sixty (60) days after the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a
description of all allowable costs and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs
and expenses incurred in the performances of the services.

The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service category through line item increases,
decreases, or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for

/‘
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that particular Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written
approval by the State. Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20™ of each contract year.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds to purchase any
equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a useful life beyond one year.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as
follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms, required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary
to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor
shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that
each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with
Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in
order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State
may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments,
gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees
or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any
services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made
for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual
applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that
the individual is eligible for such services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate
which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts
reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by
the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such service. If at any time during the
term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall
determine that the Contractor has used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such
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costs, or has received payment in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine
the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds
paid by the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the
Department to be ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records
established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses,
and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each recipient), records regarding the provision
of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within nine months after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit
Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs,
Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to
financial compliance audits.

10.] Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for
“purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. :

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it
is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal
audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which
exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.
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11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be
disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the
Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials
requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes directed connected to the
administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of
any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the
Department or the Contractor’s responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited
except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the
Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such
other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder.
Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory
by the Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within sixty (60) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract
and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to
be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall
terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall
disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at
its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, with funds
provided in part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were
available or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, eounty
and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall
impose an order or duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of
the services at such facility. If any government license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said
facility or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at
all times comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
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foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the
facilities shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire
Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning
codes, by-laws and regulations.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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16. Insurance: Select either (1) or (2) below:

As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form,
the Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable to this contract:

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) contractors whose annual gross amount of contract work with
the State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, XTIV, (Supp. 2006): The general liability insurance
requirements of standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed
$500,000, is comprehensive general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1,000,000 per claim or
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified.

X (1) The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) contractor whose annual total amount of contract
work
with the State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500,000.

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp.
2006), Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor
shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain
and maintain in force, both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehensive general liability
insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 per incident or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the State of NH determines
contract activities are a risk of lower liability.

O (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV
(Supp. 2006). '

17. Renewal:
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the

option to renew for two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

18. Audit:

The State of New Hampshire has determined that the contract activities do not warrant a full financial audit and
therefore the parties have waived the requirement of Exhibit C, 10.1. Audit and instead accept an Annual
Financial Review.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shail
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shail have the
right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any
other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30
days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as described above.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and federal regulations
promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

/@k M A 165 weni—

C?{ltra\gtor §igp{ture Contractor’s Representative Title
Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc. ¢/ o/// 7
Contractor Name Dhte
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I :
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY AC
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply
with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of
the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services.

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
a) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal

Regulations.

¢. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations™ shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operatibns” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIl1, Subtitle D, Part | & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health and
Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health information”

in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or

on behalf of Covered Entity.

i~
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“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section

164.501.
“Secretary’

designee.

2]

shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information™” means protected health information that is not secured by a

technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or indecipherable
to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is
accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under 45

C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I1. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
111 For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by

~additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to

the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional
security safeguards.
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3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.13402.

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of
the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will
be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose
of use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

f.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up
tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make
the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered
Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business
Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

P
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(6)

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect to the
PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit [ or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given
effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are
declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retun or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement. '

~1
Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor [nitials: fz ]

September 2009
Page 27 of 30 Date: q



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 4 DENTAL HEALTII WORKS of CHIESHIRE COUNTY, INC.
The State Agency Name Name of Contractor
Stgnature of Authorized Représentative Signature of Aut’hog’i’ed Representative
(3 ~n Dpe
LISAE-BUMNO-MSN-APRN E/lePa  Fenppvoe
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
BUREAU CHIEF //Zﬂ (DENT IZ‘/MO gr ’Dl e
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

CSES) 3 ({/q//}

Date Date
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Agency Name: Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc.

Name ofBureau/Section: Community Health Services/Community and School Based Oral Health Services

Stephen F. Hoffman, Executive Director

$258,019
current salary 4 $0
$0
$0
$0

$0
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line ltem 1 of Budget request)

Stephen F. Hoffman, Executive Director $0

Salaries are not determined this far in advance $0

$0

$0

$0

$0

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc.),and
individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager, etc.). These
personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name, titie, annual salary and
percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 1”) dated this 2nd day of February, 2015, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State” or "Department") and Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 31 Cross Street, Nashua, NH 03064.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2013, (Item #93), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may amend
the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and increase
the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:

1) Amend Form P-37, Subject to read Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services
2) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2017

3) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $142,400

4) Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1

5) Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #1

6) Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1

7) Add Exhibit C-1

8) Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1

9) Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials¢
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Brook Dupee
Bureau Chief

@ashua Dentaj Connfction, Inc.
6\@\15 )\

¢ AME—" | -
Date ’TYITLE { e M‘Y» b\ﬂo CL{‘YL

Acknowledgement 1 -

State of -L\ ounty of H—: | LSQU/D on /1/161/\0‘151( 2! pefore the WTI\JM
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

. Linds J. Scalxt
\ : NOTARY PUBLIC
Name and Title of Notky j Justice of thé Peace State of New Ha
My Commission Expires 3/6/2018 :

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

glis]ls

Date [ / '

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

-

\
CA/DHHS/100213 W
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

Scope of Services

The Contractor shall provide community-based oral health services as specified herein:

1. General Provisions
1.1. The contractor shall use one of the following models to provide the following services:

1.1.1.  The “clinic model” that provides on-site comprehensive preventive and/or restorative
treatment.

1.1.2. The “combination clinic voucher model” that provides preventive treatment at one site and
provides care coordination to link clients with restorative treatment at another site.

Oral health care services for the targeted population(s) shall include risk assessment, oral screenings
with appropriate referrals, oral health education, early diagnosis of oral diseases, preventive care
focused on age appropriate dental sealants, links to restorative treatment and disease management.
Resources shall be directed to providing evidence-based oral health interventions.

1.2. Eligibility and Income Determination

1.2.1. The Contractor shall provide oral health services to low-income, uninsured, and underinsured
children and adults within the defined service area who don’t have regular access to oral health
care. Low-income children and families are defined as < 185% of the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services (USDHHS), Poverty Guidelines, updated annually and effective as of July 1
of each year, in the State of New Hampshire.

1.2.2. If parental permission forms indicate that the child may be eligible for enroliment in Medicaid,
the Contractor shall assist the family to complete the most recent version of the Medicaid
enrollment form.

1.3. Relevant Policies and Guidelines
The community-based oral health program shall:

1.3.1. Require no fee for any Medicaid client.

1.3.2.  Assist eligible families with Medicaid enrollment directly or through referral.

1.3.3. Become a Medicaid provider for qualified clients.

1.3.4. Provide a sliding fee scale for children from families without Medicaid, SCHIP or private dental
insurance.

1.3.5.  Assist students in finding a dental home that will provide ongoing comprehensive oral health
care.

1.3.6. Resources shall be directed to evidence-based interventions.

1.3.7. Explore and secure future funding sources.

1.4. Numbers Served

Oral screening services are to be provided to a minimum of 1,750 individuals throughout each year of
the contract term.

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

1.5. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Cuiturally and
linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access health services. To ensure equal
access to quality health services, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors
shall provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines:

1.5.1.  Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

1.5.2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

1.53. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their
primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are such that they
are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to
them without language assistance.

1.5.4.  Offer consumers a forum through which families of children served through the program have
the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and organizations regarding cultural and
linguistic issues that may deserve response.

1.5.5. The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall describe the
way in which the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances in
which interpretation services are provided and the method of providing service (e.g. trained
interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the client or language line).

1.6. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1.6.1. The Contractor shall report all cases of communicable diseases according to New Hampshire
RSA 141-C and He-P 30, effective 01/05.

1.6.2. Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New
Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults and RSA
631:6, Assault and Related Offenses.

1.6.3. The contractor shall comply with standards developed by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

1.7. Publications Funded Under Contract

1.7.1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original materials
produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource
directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

1.7.2. All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract
shall have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

1.7.3. The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract following the
instructions outlined in Exhibit C-1 {5).

Exhibit A Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

1.8. Subcontractors

If services required to comply with this Exhibit are provided by a subcontracted agency or provider, the
DPHS Oral Health Program must be notified in writing, receive a copy of the subcontract or
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), and approve the subcontract (MOA) prior to its initiation. In
addition, subcontractors must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant requirements included in this
Exhibit.

2. Minimum Scope of Core Services

2.1, Service Requirements

2.2,

2.3,

The community-based oral health program shall consist of the following components:

2.1.1. Clinical services shall be provided under the supervision of a dentist licensed to practice in New
Hampshire.

2.1.2.  Visual oral screenings or exams by a NH Licensed Dentist or a NH Registered Dental Hygienist
with screening results available to clients or to parents of children screened.

2.1.3. Oral health educational presentations by health professionals to individuals at chair side or to
groups in a classroom setting as part of a health care curriculum.

2.1.4. Topical fluoride application as part of a regular preventive routine or, when appropriate,
through a school-based fiuoride rinse program in schools wishing to participate.

2.1.5. A preventive dental program that includes dental sealants and Interim Therapeutic Restorations
(ITRs) placed by a Certified Public Health Hygienist for students and adults through a school-
based or community-based program that assesses risk of dental disease and tooth eruption.

2.1.6. With the exception of orthodontic care, the program shall provide assistance in obtaining
restorative care for children and adults without an established dental provider.

2.1.7. Oral health data collection to support a knowledge base and dental data surveillance system for
use in policy development, assessment, and capacity building at state and local levels.

2.1.8. Notice to families without access to dental services that a sliding fee scale is available and that
no student will be denied school-based dental services for inability to pay. The sliding fee scale
must be updated annually based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as published in the Federal
Register.

Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to the legal
requirements governing human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the Oral Health Program
prior to initiating any research related to this contract.

Staffing Provisions

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with the New Hampshire Dental Practice Act. All
dental health professionals shall have the appropriate New Hampshire license and certification. The
Contractor shall provide the DPHS Oral Health Program with a resume, a copy of the NH license if
appropriate, and job description for any current professional staff in the program and notify the State in
writing of any staffing changes, along with a copy of the resume of any new staff hired within one month
of date of hire.

Staffing Changes

2.3.1.  New Hires: The Contractor shall notify the Oral Health Program in writing within one month of
hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee and New
Hampshire license if appropriate shall accompany this notification.

2.3.2. Vacancies: The Contractor must notify the Oral Health Program in writing if the dentist or
dental hygienist positions are vacant for more than one month. This may be done through a
budget revision. In addition, the Oral Health Program must be notified in writing if at any time
any program funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to perform all
required services for more than one month.

2.4. Coordination of Services

2.4.1. The agency shall make arrangements for coordination of oral health services and exchange of
information with other health care providers and agencies. Attach copies of appropriate
contractual agreements, memoranda of understanding, or letters of support from the
appropriate persons summarizing the nature of the collaboration and indicating the level of
support.

2.4.2. Agencies that deliver oral health services in communities that are part of a Public Health Region
(PHR) should be active participants in the PHR. As appropriate, agencies should participate in
community needs assessments, public health performance assessments, and the development
of regional public heaith improvement plans, all of which integrate oral health. Agencies should
also engage PHR staff as appropriate to enhance the implementation of community-based
public health prevention initiatives being implemented by the agency.

2,5. Meetings and Trainings

The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to meetings and trainings required by the Oral Health
Program, including but not limited to the Annual Oral Health Forum and Calibration Clinic for School-
Based Hygienists.

3. Quality or Performance Improvement
3.1. Work plans

3.1.1. Performance work plans are required bi-annually for this program and are used to monitor
achievement of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this contract.
The work plans are a key component of the Oral Health Program performance-based
contracting system and of this contract.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall incorporate required performance measures into quality/performance
improvement plan. Reports on Oral Health work plan progress/outcomes shall explain how the
program plans for future improvement describing activities that monitor and evaluate the
program’s progress toward reaching performance measure targets.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall submit a performance-based work plan with this application for funding
and by July 15th of the second contract year.

3.1.4. The Contractor shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the work plan and
annual report format as requested by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program will
provide the Contractor with advance notice of such changes and the Contractor is not expected
to incur any substantial costs relative to such changes.

3.2. Data and Reporting Requirements

in addition to performance work plans, the Contractor shall submit to the Oral Health Program the
following data used to monitor program performance:

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

3.2.1.

3.2.2,

3.2.3.

3.2.4,

3.2.5.

Work plans and work plan outcome reports according to the schedule and instructions provided
by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program shall notify the Contractor at least 30
days in advance of any changes in the submission schedule.

In years when contracts or amendments are not required, the DPHS Budget Form, Budget
Justification, Sources of Revenue and Program Staff List forms must be completed according to
the relevant instructions and submitted as requested by DPHS and, at minimum, by April 30 of
each year.

The Sources of Revenue report must be resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue
threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the planned program.

A copy of the Sliding Fee Scale shall be submitted by March 1st of each contract year. The
sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on the US DHHS Poverty Guidelines as
published in the Federal Register.

An annual summary of feedback from school administrators, families and providers obtained
during the prior contract year and of the method by which the resuits were obtained must be
submitted with the bi-annual work plan.

3.3. On-Site Reviews

3.3.1.

3.3.2,

3.33.

The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the Oral Health Program to
periodically review the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and
submission, clinical, and financial management in order to assure systems are adequate to
provide the contracted services.

The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted
services are not found to be provided in accordance with this Exhibit.

On-Site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of the Oral Health Program,
upon submission of satisfactory reports of reviews such as the Health and Human Services
Administration (HRSA) Office of Performance Review (OPR) or reviews from nationally
accredited organizations such as the Joint Commission, the Community Health and
Accreditation Program (CHAP) or the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care
(AAA). Abbreviated reviews will focus on any deficiencies found in previous reviews, issues of
compliance with this Exhibit, and actions to strengthen performance as outlined in the agency
performance work plan.

3.4. Performance Measures

3.4.1.

Community-Based Performance Measures:

A minimum of 800 pediatric clients (ages 0 <19 years) will receive oral screenings
A minimum of 800 adult clients (19 years and older) will receive oral screenings
Percent of clients receiving prophylaxis (cleanings)

Percent of clients receiving restorative treatment

Percent of children receiving dental sealants

Percent of broken dental appointments

\

A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for costs and expenses incurred in
the performance of services during the period of July 1, 2015 and June 30, 2017 shall not
exceed:

a. $36,100in SFY 2016 and $35,100 in SFY 2017 for oral health initiatives, for a total
amount of $71,200.

b. Funding is available as follows:

o $31,826 —- 44.7% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, CFDA #93.758, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN),
B010T009037

o $39,374 — 55.3% from General Funds

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and
indirect costs and expenses including but not limited to personnel costs and operating
expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the attached SFY 2016 and 2017 budgets
(Exhibits B-1). Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees
not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or
any other costs not approved by the State.

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period.
Reimbursement shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous
month.

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State
for each of the Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty
(20) working days following the end of the month during which the contract activities were
completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later than sixty (60) days after
the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable costs
and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment wiill be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by
the Contractor to cover the costs and expenses incurred in the performance of services.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment limited to
adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers, within the price limitation,
may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds
to purchase any equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a
useful life beyond one year.
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Dental Connection

Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services

Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

Incrementali::

;I'(;t;’l"S‘aléry/AVVégé'sy

36.100.00

36.100.00

Employee Benefits

Consultants

AlwINv~ s

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

o

Travel

~

Occupancy

Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

9

Software

10.

Marketing/Communications

11.

Staff Education and Training

12.

Subcontracts/Agreements

13.

Other (specific details mandatory):

Bank Surcharges

Patient Services Write off

e.eeneﬂmmmmmmmammmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmef
L]

TOTAL

36,100.00

wollen
A4
)

b 36,100.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: Greater Nashua Dental Connection
Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 35,100.00 $ 35,100.00
2. Employee Benefits $ - $ -
3. Consultants $ - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ -
Lab $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ -
Office $ - $ -
6. Travel $ - $ -
7. Occupancy $ - $ -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ -
Telephone $ - $ -
Postage $ - 3 -
Subscriptions $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ -
Insurance $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ -
10._Marketing/Communications $ - $ -
11._Staff Education and Training $ - $ -
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ -
Bank charges $ - $ -
Patient Services Write off $ - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - 3 -
$ - $ -
TOTAL $ 35,100.00 $ 35,100.00 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
NH DHHS
Exhibit B-1 Budget Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; \
\ .
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials M

Amendment #1

06/27/14 Page 1 of 5 Date 3 7‘1 )




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Exhibit C Amendment #1

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

06127/14 Page 3 of 5 Date

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shalll retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shal! be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and h7s 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL. If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Amendment #1
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Renewal:
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewal Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and locai
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 {(Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

3\{{\\\ \I \ )( S\L\{\ \\ &M }S:
' "Namg:
Title:e (Z’)(g Uu»\ N U&B Q.L\kd\

Date
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
20009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. »
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(2)

a.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
iil. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the BusinesE 'i

3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials .
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving@lﬂ

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ’ 'g ?/
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit [, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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€. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

, S~ .
N H Dyt JQE\\L.& Wi Red\ Qﬁmm(é U

The State Name of the.gontr -tor\

Signature of Authorized Representative\._ Signatureof Authorized Representative

=y N N
Ve %6&' , 0 o\ s (‘;R‘(iK
Name of Authorized Representative N of Authorized R&presentative ™
\)(J/W ( / SD);[O A c\-\\/Q = Q—P( L
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized (erresentative
P —
Date Date VA

A
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State of Nefow Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

- certify that GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC. is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed October 7, 1998. I further certify that it is in good standing
as far as this office is concerned, having ﬁled the return(s) and paid the fees required by

law,

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 24™ day of November A.D. 2014

Fy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
L Joswun  OSo5KY , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Oeeader Nashon Dentol  Conedion

(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held ort V\C‘f‘\’\ )i { 00\5 :

(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Exeudive  Dicdor
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the ES _day of \\,m_g

e Contract Sgyned)

RN Exewtivt )\ edor

is the duly elected

ame of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency. ﬁ

(Title of Contract Signatory)

%gig\n‘eﬂur he Elected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of bh (7%

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this qh day of MWN\ 20 (& ,

| By 3 OSWAA %D’QSVAA

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) CL%/VL(/\/
NN

(Notary Pubfic/Justice of fe Peace)

(NCTARY SEAL) 2 N N

L S ‘ ] NOTARY PUBLIC
Commission Expires: 3wl ¥ State of New Hampshire - -
My Commission Expires 3/6/2018

NH DHHS, Office of Business Qperations

Burgau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1,2005



Client#: 36503 GREAT2
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

ACORD.. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0210412015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certlficate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poticy(les) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER cgﬂT_AC‘r
?:;:ITO\NIORMOT" & Everett FHONE £y 603 225-6611 [ A%, noj. 603-225-7935
rport Roa e-mm. )
P o Box 1260 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Concord, NH 03302-1260 INsurer & - CNA Insurance Companies
INSURED INSURER B ;
Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc.
INSURERC ;
31 Cross Street SURER D
Nashua, NH 03064 -
MNSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

W3R
iy TYPE OF INSURANCE ﬁrﬁ_}%ﬂ POLICY NUMBER (DSNTYO) |(RBON PN Lowrs
A | GENERAL LUWBILITY 224044020 09/05/2014|09/05/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE $$2,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BGEQ%EJ fémm) s
Xl CLAIMS-MADE [:] OCCUR MED EXP (Any one parson) $
] PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | $
GENERAL AGGREGATE $$3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $
POLICY l | RO l I Loc 3
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY s s
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SGHEDULED :
Lo ATos BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
- PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident) $
s
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OGCURRENCE $
EXCESS UAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED | ] RETENTIONS $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- I Iom-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY S ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
{(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
1 yes, desaribe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLIGY LIMIT l $
A |Professional 224044020 09/05/2014)|09/05/2015 $2,000,000 / $3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, If more space Is required)
** Other Lines Information **

** POLICY # 224044020 **
Cov/End Code: PROF
Description: Professional Liabllity

(See Attached Descriptions)
CERTIFICATEHOLDER . . — __ . _ . .. CANCELLATION
. SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

Director, Division of Public THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED MN

Health Services, ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NH Department of Health & Human

Services, 29 Hazen Drive AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301-6504

{ M 2
¢ 7= " ©1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of2 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

#5175184/M175183 L8




W GREATER NASHUA

DENTAL

Since 1999, the Greater Nashua Dental Connection has improved the dental health and overall
health of thousands in need. While the quality of care and mission of the GNDC have remained the
same, its service area has dramatically changed. As demand for affordable oral health care has risen
beyond the capacity of some oral health programs, the GNDC has grown from a clinic serving
Greater Nashua residents to an agency that now provides affordable oral health care to those in need
throughout New Hampshire. The strength and success of the GNDC lies in its collaborative design
and its ability to respond and adapt to meet community need

The mission of the Greater Nashua Dental Connection is to provide access to affordable oral health
care to those in need. Governed by a committed seventeen member board, the GNDC provides
comprehensive, preventive, restorative and emergency oral health care to an increasingly diverse
population that includes children, low-income and uninsured persons, veterans, refugees, and
elderly, prenatal, mentally-ill, HIV/AIDS patients and disabled persons. Those who are currently
eligible for services include children and adults living in New Hampshire who: are without
insurance or; eligible for Medicaid of NH or are in need of affordable, quality dental care. Payment
for services is determined on an individual basis and payment plans are encouraged. Although
patients are expected to pay a nominal fee for all services, the GNDC will never refuse a patient
emergency treatment based on their inability to pay. Originally, most GNDC clients were
categorized as below 200% of the national poverty level, but this is typically no longer the case.
There is a growing demand for affordable oral health care specifically within newly identified at risk
populations that include adults between the ages of 18 and 26, refugees, veterans and families- all
who do not have insurance or quality for Medicaid.

31 CROSS STREET, NASHUA, NH 03064 ¢ WWW.NASHUADENTALCONNECTION.ORG o 603.879.9314



GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC.
Financial Statements
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MELANSON HEATH & COMPANY, PC

CeRTIFIED PUBiic ACCOUNTANTS
MaANAGEMENT ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Nashua Dental
Connection, Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2013, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finan-
cial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and mainte-
nance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin-
ion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

" policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial state-

ments.
102 Perimeter Road  » 149 Hanover Street + 10 New England Business Center Drive, Suite 107+ 51 Davis Street, Suite [ = P.O. Box 646
Nashua, NH 03063 Manchester, NH 03101 Andover, MA 01810 Greenfield, MA 01301 Eilsworth, ME 04605

800-282-2440 + wuw.melansonheath.com



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. as of
June 30, 2013, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc.’s fiscal
year 2012 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on
those audited financial statements in our report dated May 13, 2013. In our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Molarson | Hearh *CO"")Q"’“B\ P <.

Nashua, New Hampshire
February 25, 2014



GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2012)

ASSETS

Cument Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Promises to give
Prepaid insurance
Total Cumrent Assets

Property and equipment, net
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Total Current Liabilities

Note payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

June 30, 2013

June 30, June 30,
2013 2012

$ 71,104 $ 144,308
18,005 21,540
15,903 16,152
2,500 8,909
3,903 5,551
111,415 196,460
204,504 193,528
246,901 220,705
$ 562,820 $ 610,693
$ 11,017 $ 1,503
17,775 13,372
28,792 14,875
185,000 185,000
213,792 199,875
331,023 389,278
18,005 21,540
349,028 410,818

$ 562,820 $ 610,693

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC.

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2012)

Temporarily June 30, June 30,
Unrestricted Restricted 2013 2012
Support and Revenue:
Net patient senice revenue $ 402,855 $ - $ 402,855 $ 288,161
Grants and contributions 113,935 - 113,935 171,396
Donated senices 27,656 - 27,656 26,237
Income from special events 74,519 - 74,519 76,987
Net assets released from restriction 3,535 (3,535) - _ -
Total Support and Rewvenue 622,500 (3,535) 618,965 562,781
Functional Expenses:
Program senices 549,108 - 549,108 407,030
General management 140,268 - 140,268 132,094
Fundraising 17,653 - - 17,653 13,732
Total Functional Expenses 707,029 - 707,029 552,856
Retumn (Loss) on Investments:
Interest and dividends 3,248 - 3,248 3,851
Realized gains 4,965 - 4,965 -
Unrealized gains (losses) 18,061 - 18,061 (6,103)
Total Retum (Loss) on Investments 26,274 : - 26,274 (2,252)
Change in Net Assets (58,255) (3,535) (61,790) 7,673
Net Assets, Beginning of year, as restated 389,278 21,540 410,818 403,145
Net Assets, End of year $ 331,023 $ 18,005 '$ 349,028 $ 410,818

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Personnel Expense:
Salary and wages
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits

Accounting fees

Contracted senices

Dental assistance

Dental supplies

Depreciation expense

Fundraising expenses

Grant acquisition

information technology

Insurance

Occupancy

Office expenses

Other expenses

Total Expenses

GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2012)

Program General June 30, June 30,

Senices Management Fundraising 2013 2012
$ 331,764 $ 109,743 $ - $ 441,507 $ 340,035
29,036 9,093 - 38,129 31,056
915 - - 915 2,313
- 13,096 - 13,096 8,765

5,090 - - 5,090 -
29,160 - - 29,160 30,184
64,930 - - 64,930 51,153
26,084 5,365 - 31,449 22,318
- - 14,293 14,293 13,732
- - 3,360 3,360 2,620
3,702 - - 3,702 2,211
9,455 1,504 - 10,959 7,679
27,937 736 - 28,673 21,967
16,886 615 - 17,501 16,129
4,149 116 - 4,265 2,694
$ 549,108 $ 140,268 $ 17,653 $ 707,029 $ 552,856

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2012)

June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets $ (61,790) $ 7,673
Adjustments to reconcile change in Net Assets
to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation ’ 31,449 22,318
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (18,061) 6,103
Realized gain on investments (4,965) -
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net 249 43
Promises to give 6,409 (2,659)
Prepaid insurance 1,648 1,408
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 9,514 (22)
Accrued expenses 4,403 8,896
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (31,144) 43,760
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment ] (42,425) (10,774)
Purchase of investments (3,170) (3,574)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,595) (14,348)
Net increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (76,739) 29,412
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of year 165,848 136,436
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of year $ 89,109 $ 165,848

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Nature of Business

Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. (the “Clinic”) was established to
improve access to affordable dental care for individuals and families who
qualify for services. The primary focus is to provide access to dental care for
residents in the Greater Nashua, New Hampshire area. The Clinic’s primary
source of funding is state and local grants, along with community support.
The availability of funding may vary as a result of government budget con-
straints and changing economic conditions.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Clinic
used in preparing and presenting the financial statements.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation

The Clinic follows Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions
Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations as required by
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") Accounting Stand-

ards Codification (*“ASC”). Under these guidelines, the Clinic is required to
distinguish between contributions that increase permanently restricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and unrestricted net assets. It also
requires recognition of contributions, including contributed services, meeting
certain criteria at fair values. These reporting standards establish standards for
financial statements of not-for-profit organizations and require a Statement of
Financial Position, a Statement of Activities, a Statement of Functional
Expenses, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are
reported when incurred, without regard to the date of receipt or payment

of cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB ASC Accounting
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.

Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period

7



in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions
are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires,

- temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from
restrictions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Clinic considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

investments

The Clinic carries investments in marketable securities with readily determi-
nable fair values in the Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and
(losses) are included in the change in net assets in the Statement of
Activities.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Clinic’'s management and adjusted as
required through the provision for doubtful accounts. In determining the
amount required in the allowance account, management has taken into
account a variety of factors, which include past due status and the age of
the receivable.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. The Clinic charges annual amounts of
depreciation in order to allocate the cost of property and equipment over their
estimated useful lives. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Repairs and mainte-
nance are charged to expense when incurred.

Assets Years
Building ’ 30
Building improvements 3-7
Equipment, furniture, and software 3-5
Vehicles 5

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been sum-
marized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the



Statement of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Donated Services

The Clinic receives donated services from a variety of unpaid volunteers
assisting the Clinic in its programs. No amounts have been recognized in the
Statement of Activities because the criteria for recognition of such volunteer
effort under generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) have not been
satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual amounts could
differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

The Clinic is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the
Internal Revenue Code as an Clinic described in Section 501(c)(3). The Clinic
has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Clinic follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial
statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return. Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, did not
have a material impact on the Clinic’s financial statements.

The Clinic’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax) for fiscal years 2010, 2011, and 2012 are subject to examination by the
Internal Revenue Service, generally for three years after they were filed.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current-year
financial statements.



Concentration of Credit Risk — Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount of the Clinic’s deposits with financial institutions was

- $89,109 and $165,848 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
difference between the carrying amount and the bank balance represents
reconciling items such as deposits in transit and outstanding checks, which
have not been processed by the bank. The bank balance was fully insured by
FDIC at June 30, 2013.

Accounts Receivable, Net

The balance in accounts receivable consisted of the following:

June 30, June 30,
2013 2012

Medicaid receivable ; $ 8,689 $ 7214
Patient receivable 33,921 38,136
Employee advances - (145)
Accounts receivable, gross 42,610 45,205
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (26,707) (29,053)
Accounts receivable, net $ 15,903 $ 16,152

Promises to Give

Promises to give consist of the following for the years ended:

June 30, June 30,

Funding Source 2013 2012
United Way - NPCC $ 2,500 $ 8,909
Total $ 2,500 $ 8,909

Property and Equipment, Net

The balance in property and equipment consisted of the: following:
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June 30, | June 30,

2013 2012

Land oo % 27750 - % 27,750
Building - 157,250 157,250
Building improvements 87,712 87,712
Equipment, furniture, and software 238,302 196,027
Vehicles 20,150 20,000

Property and equipment, gross 531,164 488,739
Less: Accumulated depreciation (326,660) (295,211)
Property and equipment, net $ 204,504 $ 193,528

Investments

The Clinic's investments are reported on the basis of quoted market prices
and consist of the following:

June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Fair market value:
Fidelity Asset Manager $ 146617 $ 220,705
Fidelity Contrafund - 30,279 -
Fidelity Cash Reserves 70,005 -
Total 246,901 220,705
Less: Cost (237,701) (229,565)
Unrealized gain (loss) $ 9200 % (8,860)
Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Accrued payroll $ 8,149 $ 6468
Accrued compensated absences 8,942 6,412
—-Acerued-other------ - - — : 684 - - 492
Total accrued expenses $ 17,775 $ 13,372

11



10.

1.

Note Payable
The Clinic has a note payable dated January 2000, totaling $185,000 to the

- City of Nashua, New Hampshire under a Community Development Block .. _..

Grant. This note is secured by a mortgage on the 31 Cross Street property.
No repayment is required herein as long as the Clinic complies with certain
twenty-year restrictions contained in the loan agreement related to use and
disposition of the property.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

At June 30, 2013, $18,005 of net assets was temporarily restricted for
Gateway Community Services approved clients.

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose. '

Fair Value Measurement

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, provides guidance for using fair
value to measure assets and liabilities. Fair Value Measurements applies
whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured
at their fair market value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value
in any new circumstances. Under Fair Value Measurements, fair value refers
to the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies the principle that fair
value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, the Clinic categorizes its fair value esti-
mates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of
price transparency utilized in measuring financial instruments at fair value.
Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at
the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in
Level 1 are highly liquid instruments with quoted prices;

e Level 2 - Inputs from active markets, other than.quoted prices for
identical instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs
are directly observable from active markets for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability being valued; and

12



12.

13.

14.

e Level 3 - Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unobservable.
Inputs are developed based on the best information available; how-
ever, significant judgment is required by management in developing
the inputs.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those financial instruments. The carrying

* amounts of investments are at fair value using observable market prices in

active markets.

The fair value of the note payable is not available.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Clinic has an agreement with Medicaid that provides for payments at
statewide prospectively determined rates per service. The prospectively

_determined rates are not subject to retroactive adjustment.

Net patient service revenue for the years ended are as follows:

June 30, June 30,

2013 2012
Medicaid $ 210884 $ 86,368
Private pay 191,971 201,793
Net patient service revenue $ 402,855 $ 288,161

Donated Services

Donated services represent the estimated fair value of professional dental
services received. Donated services are reflected in the financial statements
at the fair value of the services received. The contributions of services are
recognized if the services received (a) create or enhance non-financial assets
or (b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing
those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by dona-
tion. The value of services donated by area dentists amounted to $27,656
and $26,237 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

‘ Beginning Net Assets Restatement

Beginning net assets were decreased by $7,762 to properly reflect accounts
receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, at June 30, 2012.

13



15.

Subsequent Events

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC 855, Subsequent

- Events, events and transactions from July 1, 2013 through February 25,

2014, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have
been evaluated by management for disclosure. Management has determined
that there were no material events that would require disclosure in the Clinic’s
financial statements through this date.

14
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April 2007-Present

2004 - 2007

2000 - 2005

1992 - 1995 -

EDUCATION:

DEDRA TWOMEY

Greater Nashua Dental Connection
Business Manager

Responsible for all financial reporting

Prepare and review yearly budget for approval
Prepare end of month, quarterly, and year end reporting
Implement internal Controls

Yearly audit

Grant Management

Accounts Payable/Accounts Receivable

Bank reconciliations

Employee Payroll

Human Resource functions

Property Management

Fundraising

Rockingham Park Race Track
Pari-mutuels Clerk

Deal directly with public
Controller/Money Clerk - reconciling daily cash activity

K.C. Electric Co., Inc.
Office Manager

Accounts Payable/Accounts Receivable

Employee Payroll

Responsible for all incoming and outgoing correspondence
End of month, quarterly, and year end reporting
Reconciliations

Newburg Construction
Office Manager

Accounts Payable/Accounts Receivable

Employee Payroll

Responsible for all incoming and outgoing correspondence
End of month, quarterly, and year end reporting
Reconciliations

Winthrop High School, Winthrop MA
St. Pete College, St. Pete, FL

References available upon request




Nicolette E. Tiner

EDUCATION

Massachusetts College of Pharmacy and Health Sciences, Boston, MA
Forsyth School of Dental Hygiene

Bachelor of Science, Dental Hygiene

TRAINING AND CERTIFICATIONS
HIPAA

CPR Healthcare Provider

Radiology Certification

Trained to administer local anesthesia

Pending certification

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE
Esther M. Wilkins Forsyth Dental Hygiene Clinic, Dental Hygiene Student: Boston, MA

Assessed patients’ oral health status using clinical and radiographic interpretation

Developed various treatment plans appropriate for patients oral health status

Educated patients on oral hygiene home care and recommended evidence based dental products
Used alginate impressions to fabricate whitening trays and athletic mouth guards

Placed pit and fissure sealants

Performed non-surgical periodontal therapy on patients using local anesthesia

Dr. Bickham, DMD - The Dimock Center: Roxbury, MA

Performed prophylaxis as well as SRP patients
Successfully removed biofilm, stain and tenacious calculus from patients teeth
Educated patients on specific oral homecare instructions pertaining to their needs

Franciscan Children’s Hospital: Boston, MA

Observed dental procedures and aided Dentist and dental students when needed
Performed prophylaxis to children and young adults

Developed radiographs

Educated patients on proper oral home care

Treated both patients with special needs and those who were medically compromised

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Oral Health Volunteer/Educator/Provider, Capstone Project, Group Home, Framingham, MA
Oral Health Screener, Benjamin Banneker Elementary School, Cambridge, MA

Oral Health Screener, Roosevelt Towers, Boston, MA

Oral Health Educator, Head Start Fenway, Boston, MA

WORK EXPERIENCE

Empire Restaurant and Lounge, Hostess Position: Boston, MA

Jerry Remy’s Sports Bar and Grill, Fenway, Hostess Position: Boston, MA
T-Bones Great American Eatery, Hostess Position: Salem, NH

Greeted guests in friendly manner

Dec 2012

Sept 2012
Sept 2011
Dec 2010

Sept 2010-Dec 2012

Sept 2012-Oct 2012

Jun 2012-July 2012

Feb 2012-Apr 2012
Oct 2011
Sept 2011
Sept 2011

Aug 2012-Dec 2012
Jun 2010-Sept 2012
Jul 2006-Aug 2008

o In-charge of deciding server sections accordingly and chose seating for guests

s Answered phone and answered any questions about menu or service

o Organized seating arrangements for reservations and walk-in guests during high volume shifts

o Ensured that requirements for guests were met regarding food allergies, children, special needs, etc
RELATED SKILLS

Experienced in Dentrix, Microsoft Word, Excel, and PowerPoint



Lauren R. Johnson, D.M.D.

Objective: A position for a general dentist who has the compassion and skill to be an effective practioner.

Education:

University of Pennsylvania School of Dental Medicine, Philadelphia, Pa
Doctor of Medical Dentistry, awarded May 2012

Franklin & Marshall College, Lancaster, Pa
Bachelor of Arts, awarded May 2006
Anthropology Major, GPA: 3.85
Exploration: Public Health Policy

Overall GPA: 3.82; Class Rank: 26/428

New England Emergency Medical Services Institute, Manchester, NH
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) License, August 2002

Honors and Achievements:

Activities:

Buchanan Scholarship to Franklin & Marshall College

Honor’s List: (Awarded to semester average of 3.7 or better) Fall 2002,
Spring and Fall 2003, Fall 2004, Spring, Fall 2005, Spring 2006

Dean’s List: (Awarded to semester average of 3.25 or better) Spring 2004

Charles Mayard Travel Grant, Spring 2005

Pi Gamma Mu Social Science Honor Society

Black Pyramid Senior Honor Society

Phi Beta Kappa Honor Society

Magna Cum Laude

2009-2012 University of Pennsylvania School of Dental Medicine: Penn Smiles

2009-11 University of Pennsylvania School of Dental Medicine Oral Cancer
Walk Society volunteer

2008 Projects Abroad Volunteer Organization: Limpopo National wildlife
Reserve, Botswana

2006 Brush, Brush Smile Mobile Dental Clinic

2002-2005 Executive Board Member, College Entertainment Committee
2002-2006 Member, F&M Cares Community Service Club
2002-2004 Photographer, College Reporter, Franklin & Marshall’s newspaper

Summer and Part-time Work:

New Boston Dental Care, New Boston, NH

Part-time Associate General Dentist, provide dental care of the highest quality. I
diagnose, prevent, and treat oral maladies. Currently, I am under the mentorship of Dr. R.
C. Brenner & Dr. A. Elliot; I am benefitting greatly from their experience & knowledge.

- July 2012- Present

Greater Nashua Dental Connection (GNDC), Nashua, NH

Part-time Associate General Dentist, provide dental care of the highest qualny GNDC is
a non-profit organization providing access to affordable healthcare to the underserved
populations of New Hampshire. July 2012- Present.

Concord Oral Surgery, Concord, NH



Surgical assistant assist oral surgeons during procedures that may or may not require
intravenous sedation. I was responsible for preparing the patient for surgery, assisting the
surgeon and monitoring the patient’s vital signs during surgery, and post-procedural care
of the patient. April 2007- August 2007

Brush, Brush Smile Mobile Dental Clinic, Lancaster, Pa
Volunteer dental assistant, providing dental care to children under the age of 18,
who are on Medicaid or do not have health insurance. Spring 2006

New Hampshire Division of Historical Resources, Concord, NH

Chosen as an intemn for the New Hampshire State Conservation and Rescue Archaeology
Program to help organize and run an archaeological field school for high school and
college students. Summer 2005

New Boston Dental Care, New Boston, NH

Dental assistant, and laboratory technician, assisted dentist in routine, emergency, and
surgical procedures. | was responsible for preparing impressions of teeth and making
dental appliances. 1997-2006



Christopher Morlarty

Education:
Tufts School of Dental Medicine, Boston, MA
Doctor of Dental Medicine 2012

Saint Joseph's University, Philadelphia, PA
Bachelor of Science in Biology, 2008

Experience: ,

Associate Dentist, Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Nashua NH, October 2012 to’
present

General dentistry in a public health setting providing simple restorative, removable
prosthetics, extractions and dental triage to an in need patient population.

Associate Dentist, John Machell DMD, Nashua NH July 2012 to present
General family dentistry encompassing restorative, fixed and removable prosthetics,
endodontics, simple extractions and socket preservation.

North Shore Community Health Center, Salem, MA 2011
Performed procedures on patients living in the underserved community; gained working
experience in operative, prosthodontics, emergency, oral surgery and endodontics.

Ethics, Professionalism and Citizenship Committee,

Tufts University School of Dental Medicine 2008-2012

As an elected class representative, worked with other committee members to uphold the
school's honor code and promote professional and ethical behavior within the school.

Honors:
Dr. Alfred Osher and Mrs. D. Suzi Osher Scholarship, 2012
Awarded to students with exceptional personal and work ethics
Dr. Robert J. Chapman Scholarship in Ethics, 2011 _
Awarded to students who promote ethics and professionalism within the school
Saint Joseph's University Merit Scholarship, 2004-2008




SUMMARY

April 2007-
Present

May 94-Oct 05

Jan 86-Apr 94

Lisa Lorden Woods

* Excellent administrative support, and customer service experience applied
in dental, corporate, and hospitality settings.

* Experienced in Mictosoft Word, Microsoft Excel, Dentrix, end:Eaglesoft.

* Experience includes non-profit reporting, collections, public speaking
dental insurance billing, and scheduling,

* Versatile, adaptable, dedicated, prbfessibhal and self-motivated.

Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Nashun, NH Non Profit
Office Manager . Dentrix

* Office manager.
* In charge of scheduling, billing, collecuon, donations, fundraising,
some human resources, Medicaid insurance collections, accurate non-profit
clinic spread sheets for auditors, Business Manager, Board of Dmectors, and
some public speaking on behalf of the clinic.
* Work closely with :
Business Manager, superintendants ofﬁc'e hospitals, and Mayors
office.
R. Susan Horsley, D.M.D., Nashua, NH
Office Manager Eaglesoft

* Provided single administrative support.

* Researched and brought the practicc from an appointment book to Eaglesoft
and digital x-rays.

* Duties included all phone support, collection, third party billing, scheduling
bookkeeping, as well as instrument sterilization when needed.

Continental Insarance New England Regional Office, Nashua, NH
Rater Coder, Secretary, Billing Coordinator Administrative '
Support (relocated)

* Sole support to the Bond Department Manager and Senior Underwriter.
* Extensive daily phone contact with agents, bankers, and lawyers.
* Coordinated all travel arrangements and business meetings.

* Obtained D&B and Dodge Reports, prepared all management reports
* Special projects for Personal Lines Director, some involved out of state travel.

Member: Nashua Breakfast Exchange
Volunteer: St. Joseph Hospital




Objective

Education

. Employment

Teresa B. Miller

To secure employrmact as a Registered Dental Hygienist, that
providostlnoppommlyforpenomlandptdmmlm.

Springfieid Todmlcomnulilycwogo .
Springfiekd, MA A
September 1978-May 1960

.AuocgtodeemoDogtuhDuﬁde

WWUMIWCMIM. '
June 1999 - present
Rmmmmmmawm
including denal office practices, case management, referral
processes and dental services in off-ske practices. Responsbie

eoordinate the ey o dey operations oﬂhohnly

MMElounnhrySdmb
Milford, NH
September 1997- June 1999

Responsble for establishment and implementation of '

Novmbenw-Apmm
As a Personne! Assistant, coordinated the compeny's temporary
work forcs; along with the administration of corporate donations.
Responsbie for United Way and Scholarship Campaign.

Dr. Donald M. Humen D.M.D.

Nashua, NH

October 1983-October 1984
HesponsbbfamplmbndTmpmmmdbmaerm A
Promammanonhodormolﬁce

lNeanmpshimBumudDemalHealh

Concord, NH
February 1981-April 1983 :
Responsible for establishment and hrplementahon of




prophylexis and fluoride program rendered to slementary
school children. .

" Dr. Howard Grover DM.D.

Nashua, NH

September 1082-Saptember 1083
Peﬂnnnedddubumqnndunmnddemdhyw\ht.
mndnedhahﬂmbopvm

Dr. Jelftrey ther D.M.D
Moerrimack, NH |

August 1980-October 1082
Pmmmmuawmm

mandstadina fllluvbapndbo

Drs. MngovunnndFomau.hc ;s S
Eastl " :
Dooonborwn-hqu!“‘n '
Pmmmd-wwm

panbbdodhlhlyolﬁum
Refamncn furnished upon request.




AMANDA M. SMITH, DMD, MPH

Education -

UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE SCHOOL OF DENTAL- Louisville, KY
Doctor of Dental Medicine, 2010-2014 '

UNIVERSITY OF NEW ENGLAND- Biddeford, ME
Masters of Public Health, 2008-2010

UNIVERSITY OF NEW ENGLAND- Biddeford, ME
Bachelors of Scien_ce, 2003-2007 '

Professional Experience

FAMILY DENTAL CARE OF MILFORD- Milford, NH
Part Time Associate Dentist, June 2014- Present
* Aprivate practice caring for the dental needs of children and adults.

GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION- Nashua, NH

Part Time Associate Dentist, July 2014- Present _
* Community clinic providing oral health care service to the underserved

population of New Hampshire.

LICENSURE

GENERAL DENTIST
License #04055

MEMBERSHIP IN PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

American Dental Association, 2010- Present
New Hampshire Dental Society, 2014- Present

PUBLICATIONS

Staiti, A, et al. “A microdialysis study of the medial prefrontél cortex of
adolescent and adult rats.” Neuropharmacology. September 2011.
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Community-based oral health services will be provided to underserved people livin

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

g in the greater Nashua area.
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AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

1, IDENTIFICATION.

GENERAL PROYISIONS

1.1 ~ State Agency Name

NH,Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

12 State Agency Address

29 i—lazen Drive
Coticord, NH 03301-6504

1.3  Contractor Name

Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc.

14! Contractor Address

1
31 Cross Street
Nashua, NH 03064

1.6 Account Number
05-95-90-902010-4527-102-
500731

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603) 879-9314

1.7,  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation

Jur}e 30,2015 $71,200

|

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency

Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN
Bureau Chief

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

:’-
603-271-4501
j

1. Contra

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
|

kb@g\%ﬁl */%us 25 Wﬁ\tﬁ

) Woke

7

1.13 Ackmowledgement: State of N ©  County of thl Ls\ayw\"»\

On ?" mr‘ﬁbefbre the undersigned officer, personally appeared the persc[m identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
persan whose name is 51gned in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

P

“\Iamc and Tltle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Linds  Scalzq

UNDA J. SCALZL, Notary Publig

Bl S O (R e RN (SR UO S

My Commizcion Sxpires Aprit 23, 2019
1.14  State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Dﬁq Llisa L. Bujno, Bureau Chief
1.16  Approval by the N.H.'\Department of Administration, Dm;non of Personnel (if applicable)
l
By: Dlrector On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Executlon)
WS <
|.By:, m/’ HNe e, Alfore On: 28 A 20/3
1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council :
By: Oénz
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2, EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the-parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price. . - -
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset ﬁ'om any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6 1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
a.nd orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
whlch impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
mcludmg, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
femployment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
Dnited States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulat1ons of the United States Department of Labor (41

C F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and gu1delmes
‘as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
ppermit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the

‘Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,

and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or

corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State

employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this

| Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or

her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event’

-of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,

the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/JACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.-H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
off' icers, employees, agenfs or members shall have authority to
bmd the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

}2. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
pased or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contamed shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
soverergn immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survrve the termination of this Agreement.

I

?14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assrgnee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14 1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
!of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
‘occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
\Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
‘Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
[expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be

fattached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
hY
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,

certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H, RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers® Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the

requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to

. undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish

the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire,

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
t:or reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modxfy amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
thls Agreement.

22 SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference

23 SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
fms Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

l

24 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understandmg between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

4 4
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Ser\%ices

|
Community-Based Oral Health Services
b

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approvial, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

CONTRACTOR NAME: Creater Nashua Delntal Connection, Inc.

ADDRESS: 31 Cross Street
Nashua, NH 03064

Business Manager: Dedra Twomey !
TELEPHONE: (603) 879-9314 i

The Contractor shall provide community-based oral health services as specified below:

L. General Provisions

A. The contractor shall use one of the followin

B. Eligibility and Income Determination

C. Relevant Policies and Guidelines

1g models to provide the following services:

1. The “clinic model” that provides on-site comprehenswe preventive and/or restorative

treatment.
2. The “combination clinic voucher model”

that provides preventive treatment at one site and

provides care coordination to link clients w1th restorative treatment at another site.

Oral health care services for the targeted

population(s) shall include risk assessment, oral

screenings with appropriate referrals, oral health education, early diagnosis of oral diseases,

preventive care focused on age appropriate

dental sealants, links to restorative treatment and

disease management. Resources shall be directed to providing evidence-based oral health

interventions.

1. The Contractor shall provide oral health services to low-income, uninsured, and underinsured
children and adults within the defined éerwce area who don’t have regular access to oral
health care. Low-income children and farmlles are defined as < 185% of the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (USDHHS), Poverty Guidelines, updated annually and
effective as of July 1 of each year, in the State of New Hampshire.

2. If parental permission forms indicate that the child may be eligible for enrollment in
Medicaid, the Contractor shall assist the family to complete the most recent version of the

Medicaid enrollment form.

The community-based oral health program shall;

1. Require no fee for any Medicaid client.

2. Assist eligible families with Medicaid cnrollment directly or through referral.

3. Become a Medicaid provider for quahﬁed clients.
Standard Exhibits A - J ! Contractor Initials: \
September 2009 ;
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4. Provide a sliding fee scale for children from families without Medicaid, SCHIP or private
dental insurance. ' ;

5. Assist students in finding a dental home ihat will provide ongoing comprehensive oral health
care. l

6. Resources shall be directed to evidence- based interventions.

7. Explore and secure future funding sources.

Numbers Served
Oral screening services are to be provided to a minimum of 1,750 individuals throughout each
year of the contract term. i

Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate gStandards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language
have considerable impact on how consumi;:rs access and respond to public health services.
Culturally and linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access health
services. To ensure equal access to quality héalth services, the Division of Public Health Services
(DPHS) expects that Contractors shall provrde culturally and linguistically appropriate services
accordrng to the following guidelines:

1. Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

2. Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

3. When feasible and appropriate, provide,r clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
mterpretatron services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their
primary language and whose skills in lrstenlng to, speaking, or reading Englrsh are such that
they are unable to adequately understdnd and participate in the care or in the services
provided to them without language assistz':ince

4. Offer consumers a forum through whlch families of children served through the program
have the opportunity to provide feedbac&( to providers and organizations regarding cultural
and linguistic issues that may deserve response

6

5. The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency C1tat10n 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall describe
the way in which the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances
in which interpretation services are provrded and the method of providing service (e.g. trained
interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the client or language line).

}

State and Federal Laws !

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special

attention is called to the following statutory responsibilities:

;I

1. The Contractor shall report all cases of commumcable diseases according to New Hampshire

RSA 141-C and He-P 30, effective 01/05
l

2. Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New
Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protectron Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults
and RSA 631:6, Assault and Related Offenses

i
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I. Minimal Scope of Core Services

A. Service Requirements

. Staffing Provisions

3. The contractor shall comply with standards developed by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

Publications Funded Under Contract ,,

1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original
materials produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures,
resource directories, protocols or gu1dellnes posters, or reports.

2. All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract
shall have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

3. The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materlals produced under this contract following the
instructions outlmed in Exhibit C-1 (5).

l
Subcontractors %
If services required to comply with this Exhibit are provided by a subcontracted agency or
provider, the DPHS Oral Health Program rlnust be notified in writing, receive a copy of the
subcontract or Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) and approve the subcontract (MOA) prior to
its initiation. In addition, subcontractors must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant

requirements included in this Exhibit,

The community-based oral health program shall consist of the following components:

1. Clinical services shall be provided under ‘the supervision of a dentist licensed to practice in
New Hampshire.

2. Visual oral screenmgs or exams by a NH Licensed Dentist or a NH Registered Dental
Hygienist with screening results avallableI to clients or to parents of children screened.

3. Oral health educational presentations by health professionals to individuals at chair side or to
groups in a classroom setting as part of a health care curriculum.

4. Topical fluoride application as part of alregular preventive routine or, when appropriate,
through a school-based fluoride rinse program in schools wishing to participate.

5. A preventive dental sealant program for students through a school-based or school-linked
program that assesses risk of dental disease and tooth eruption.

6. With the exception of orthodontic care,|the program shall provide assistance in obtaining
restorative care for students without an established dental provider.

7. Oral health data collection to support a knowledge base and dental data surveillance system
for use in policy development, assessment, and capacity building at state and local levels.

8. Notice to families without access to dental services that a sliding fee scale is available and
that no student will be denied school-based dental services for inability to pay. The sliding
fee scale must be updated annually basedlon USDHHS Poverty guidelines as published in the
Federal Register. '

Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to
the legal requ1rements governing human sub_]ects research. Contractors must inform the Oral
Health Program prior to initiating any research related to this contract.

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with the New Hampshire Dental Practice Act.
All dental health professionals shall have the appropnate New Hampshire license. The Contractor
shall provide the DPHS Oral Health Program ;w1th aresume, a copy of the NH license if
appropriate, and job description for any current professional staff in the program and notify the

i
¥
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II.  Quality or Performance Improvement (QI/PT)

State in writing of any staffing changes, along with a copy of the resume of any new staff hlred
within one month of date of hire.

Staffing Changes L

1. New Hires: The Contractor shall notify the Oral Health Program in writing within one month
of hire when a new administrator or coordmator or any staff person essential to carrying out
this scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee and New
Hampshire license if appropriate shall aceompany this notification.

2. Vacancies: The Contractor must notify the Oral Health Program in writing if the dentist or

dental hyg‘ienist positions are vacant for ‘more than one month. This may be done through a
budget revision. In addition, the Oral Health Program must be notified in writing if at any
time any program funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to perform all

required services for more than one month.

Coordination of Services

1. The agency shall make arrangements for coordination of oral health services and
exchange of information with other health care providers and agencies. Attach copies of
appropriate contractual agreements, memoranda of understanding, or letters of support from
the appropriate persons summarizing the nature of the collaboration and indicating the level

of support.

2. Agencies that deliver oral health serv1ces in communities that are part of a Public Health
Region (PHR) should be active partlcxpants in the PHR. As appropriate, agencies should
participate in community needs assessments public health performance assessments, and the

development of regional public health 1mprovement plans, all of which integrate oral health.

Agencies should also engage PHR staff as appropriate to enhance the implementation of

community-based public health prevention initiatives being implemented by the agency.

Meetings and Trainings

The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to meetings and trainings required by the Oral
Health Program, including but not limited fo the Annual Oral Health Forum and Calibration

Clinic for School-Based Hygienists.

A. Work plans
1. Performance Work plans are required bi- annually for this program and are used to monitor
achievement of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this
contract. The work plans are a key component of the Oral Health Program performance-

. . }
based contracting system and of this contract.

2. The Contractor shall incorporate required performance measures into quality/performance

improvement plan. Reports on Oral Heagth Workplan Progress/Outcomes shall explain how
the program plans for future improvement describing activities that monitor and evaluate the
program’s progress toward reaching performance measure targets.

|

3. The Contractor shall submit a performance-based workplan with this apphcatlon for

funding and by July 15th of the second contract year.
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B. Data and Reporting Requirements i

Standard Exhibits A —J

September 2009
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The Contractor shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the work plan and
annual report format as requested by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program will
provide the Contractor with advance notlce of such changes and the Contractor is not
expected to incur any substantial costs relatlve to such changes.

|

In addition to Performance Workplans, the Contractor shall submlt to the Oral Health Program
the following data used to monitor program p?rformance

1.

On-Site Reviews

1.

Work plans and Work plan Outcome r.%eports according to the schedule and instructions
provided by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program shall notify the Contractor at
least 30 days in advance of any changes i the submission schedule.

k
k

In years when contracts or amendmentsiare not required, the DPHS Budget Form, Budget
Justification, Sources of Revenue and Program Staff List forms must be completed according
to the relevant instructions and submltted as requested by DPHS and, at minimum, by April
30 of each year.

The Sources of Revenue report must be jresubmitted at any point when changes in revenue
threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the planned program.

A copy of the Sliding Fee Scale shall befsubmitted by March 1st of each contract year. The
sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on the US DHHS Poverty Guidelines as
published in the Federal Register.

An annual summary of feedback from school administrators, families and providers obtained
during the prior contract year and of the method by which the results were obtained must be
submitted with the bi-annual work plan.

The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the Oral Health Program to
periodically review the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection
and submission, clinical, and financial maﬁagement in order to assure systems are adequate to
provide the contracted services. ,

. The Contractor shall make corrective acuons as advised by the review team if contracted

services are not found to be provided in accordance with this Exhibit.

. On-Site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of the Oral Health Program,

upon submission of satisfactory reports of reviews such as the Health and Human Services
Administration (HRSA) Office of Perforrnance Review (OPR) or reviews from nationally
accredited organizations such as the Jornt Commission, the Community Health and
Accreditation Program (CHAP) or the Accredrtatlon Association for Ambulatory Health Care
(AAA). Abbreviated reviews will focus on any deficiencies found in previous reviews, issues
of compliance with this Exhibit, and actlons to strengthen performance as outlined in the
agency Performance Workplan.
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D. Performance Measures

Community- Based Performance Méasures

i

A minimum of 800 pediatric clients (0-less than ':19 years) shall receive oral screenings
A minimum of 800 adult clients (19 years and older) shall receive oral screenings
Percent of clients receiving prophylaxis

Percent of clients receiving restorative treatment!

Percent of children receiving dental sealants

Percent of broken dental appointments (visits)

DD

The remainder of this page is %ntentionally left blank
i
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NH Department of Health énd Human Services

Exhibit B
|
Purchase of Services
Contract Price
i
I
Community-Based Oral Health Services
CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approyial, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015
CONTRACTOR NAME: Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc.

ADDRESS: 31 Cross Street
Nashua, NH 03064

Business Manager: Dedra Twomey
TELEPHONE: (603) 879-9314

Vendor #158470-B001 Job #90072003 Appropriation #05-95-90-902010-4527-102-500731

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses incurred in the performance of the
services during the period of the contract shall not exceed:

$71,200 for oral health initiatives, funded from 44.7% Federal funds from the Centers for Disease Control (CDC)
(CFDA #93.991) and 55.3% from General funds.

TOTAL: §71,200

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and expenses
including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operatmlg expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the
attached budgets. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determmed by the State in accordance with applicable
state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital additions
or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the State.

|

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approveq budget for the contract period. Reimbursement shall
be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous month.

! .

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in.fa form satisfactory to the State for each of the Service
category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) working days following the end of the
month during which the contract activities were completed, fand the final invoice shall be due to the State no later
than sixty (60) days after the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable
costs and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available in the Service category budget line items Submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs and
expenses incurred in the performances of the services. f

6. The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Serv‘ice category through line item increases, decreases, or
the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for that particular
Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upo’n written request to and written approval by the State.
Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20" of each contract year.

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initials:fm:
September 2009 )
Page 7 of 29 Date: 3‘ 5! { 2 ‘ l}



7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the,State prior to using contract funds to purchase any
equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($3QO) and with a useful life beyond one year.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.

R
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit €

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under
the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor: for services provided to eligible individuals and, in the
furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made ih accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. |

]

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility deter?minations shall be made on forms provided by the

Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.
1

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require. !

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding ithat determination. The Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant
or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair heahng in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a payment,
gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence
the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhlblt A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it i$ determined that payments, gratuities or offers of

employment of any kind were offered or received by any of

or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the

document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understo

will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs
1o any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date

as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a}

ficials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor

contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
jod and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
'on which the individual applies for services or (except
determination that the individual is eligible for such

services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such'service, or at a ratejwhich exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess of
such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors,
the Department may elect to:

Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in iavhich event new rates shall be established;

Contractor Initials:&é
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8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs; ;

8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment b)3 the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by
the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

i

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISéLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and 'other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or collected
by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are
acceptable to the Department, and to include, wrthout limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls and other records requested or requ1red by the
Department. i

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include}all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain paymentifor such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Depanﬁnent within nine months after the close of the agency

11.

fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations”

and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions,
issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standardf) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. E
10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any[way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of su'ch an exception.
P
Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, {and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by

- the Contractor; provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations-of the Department regarding the

use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes dlrected connected to the administration of the services and
the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient
for any purpose not directly connected with the admrmstratron of the Department or the Contractor’s
responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the

recipient, his attorney or guardian. ; w/
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to Isubmlt the following reports at the following times if
requested by the Department
i
12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim ﬁnanc1a] reports containing a detailed description of all costs
and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Depamhent to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form de51gnated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department. |

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within sixty (60) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satlsfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated i in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the!/purchase by the Department of the maximum number
of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the
obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the jtermination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the follewing statement;:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services, D1v1510n of Public Health Services, with funds provided in
part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required,
e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Servxces

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulatlons In the operation of any facilities for providing
services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or ofﬁcers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation of&the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any government license or permit shall be requxred for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the terﬁn of this Contract the facilities shall comply with alt
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection

. . 1 ] . .

agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.
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16. Insurance: Select either (1) or (2) below:

As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehenswe General Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form, the
Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable to this contract:

Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) contractors whose annual gross amount of contract work with the
State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, X1V, (Supp. i2006) The general liability insurance requirements of
standard state contracts for contractors that quallfy for nonprofit status under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed $500,000, is comprehensive
general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1 000 000 per claim or occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified. i

]
X (1) The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) coritractor whose annual total amount of contract work
with the State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500 000.

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, X1V, (Supp. 2006),
Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance; land Bond, shall apply: The Contractor shall, at its sole
expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force,
both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comﬁrehenswe general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per incident
or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the State of NH determines contract activities are a risk of lower
liability.

o

- B
O (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV
(Supp. 2006). {

17. Renewal: ,

- v
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional year(s), contingent upof) satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. -
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

i

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 1

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to

the contrary, all obllgatlons of the State hereunder,

including without limitation, the continuance of payments in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or avallablllty of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropnatlon or avallablhty of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event

of a reduction, termination or modification of approj
right to withhold payment until such funds become a

priated or available funds, the State shall have the
available, if ever. The State shall have the right to

reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice

of such reduction, termination or modification. The S

tate shall not be required to transfer funds from any

other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account

Number, or any other account, in the event funds are r

19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this ¢
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time f
days after giving the Contractor written notice that
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor sh

educed or unavailable.

ontract, Termination, is amended by adding the

for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30
the State is exercising its option to terminate the

all, within 15 days of notice of early termination,

develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not

limited to, identifying the present and future needs of}

establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State

clients receiving services under the Agreement and

and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not Iumted to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication

and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as req

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, inc

uested.

luding but not limited to clients receiving services

under the Agreement are transitioned to having servicL;es delivered by another entity including contracted

providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a
Transition Plan.

process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the

: | o
10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifyir;lg clients and other affected individuals about the
transition, The Contractor shall include the proposed'communications in its Transition Plan submitted to

the State as described above.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS - DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the followmg meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting iprinciples established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. '

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submltted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Servnces to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract;

i
UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to ehgxble individuals hereunder, shall mean that period

of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state laws regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time. {

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document grepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of unplementmg State of NH and federal regulations

promulgated thereunder. :

!

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds availablé for these services.

Lk
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisionfs agrees by signature of the Contractor’s representative

as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisionsi to execute the following certification:
K

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all appHeable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. g\ S\
Contractor Name : Date L i
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY, AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply
with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Informatlon 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of
the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As def ned herein, “Business Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor »that receive, use or have access to protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services.

|
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
(1)  Definitions. f

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

b. “Business Associate™ has the meaning given such fenn in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. |

¢. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. ‘;

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meagning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaningias the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. |

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

g “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Réecovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability eind Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Ind1v1dually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164. 1

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the teirm “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall

include a person who qualifies as a personal rf’epresentative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Prive{cy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health and
Human Services. ;

k. “Protected Health Information™ shall have the samfe meaning as the term “protected health information”

in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the infoma{ion created or received by Business Associate from or

on behalf of Covered Entity.
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. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. f

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Depaflrtment of Health and Human Services or his/her

1

designee.

. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health

Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

t
. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by a

technology standard that renders protected health in-'fonnation unusable, unreasonable, or indecipherable
to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is
accredited by the American National Standards Instltute

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise deﬁned herein shall have the meaning established under 45

C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from trme to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the seryices outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule. '

I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
1I. As required by law, pursuant to the thrms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
318 For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entlty

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the thrrd party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.
!

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the %’I—II until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

f’
If the Covered Entlty notlﬁes the Busmess Assoclate that Covered Entlty has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or drsclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and

shall not disclose PHI in violation of such addrtlonal restrictions and shall abide by any additional
security safeguards.

i
I
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3 Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Prévacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.13402.

!

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sectiofns of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and‘ Sec.13404.

X
t

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its mtemal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. |

d. Business Associate shall requ1re all of its busmess associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of
the Contractor’s business associate agreements w1thk Contractor’s intended business associates, who will
be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rlghts of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose
of use and disclosure of protected health mfonnatlon

l

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a writte:n request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s cgjmpllance with the terms of the Agreement.

f.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record !Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirerr'lents under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

;

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrltten request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for a}nendment and incorporate any such amendment to-
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

L

¥
i
i
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h.. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to responid to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Asso'ciate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulﬁll its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

)

j.  In the event any individual requests access to, am:endment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the r%esponsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Pr1vacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as requlred by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable, ;

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entlty, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement and shall not retain any copies or back-up
tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Assoclate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and d1sclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make
the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busmess Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered
Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Busmess Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business
Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

©)] Obligations of Covered Entity
a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy

Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’suse or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Assocjate of eny changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PH] may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

; )
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(6)

Termination for Cause ,
In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Busines$ Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Elitlty determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to t{ie Secretary.

'

;
Miscellaneous ¢
{
Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms usied but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Securlty Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

b

Data Ownership. The Business Associate achowledées that it has no ownership rights wittr respect to the
PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity 1ﬁ the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall notiaffect other terms or conditions which can be given
effect without the invalid term or condition; to this}end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are
declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract prov1510n #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement. !
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit L.

s
t
i

i

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES GREATER NASHUA DENTAL CONNECTION, INC.

The State Agency Name Namie of Contractor

Signature of Authorize}l Representative Slgnature of Authorized Repredentative

LISA L. BUINO, MSN, APRN /7&, A \\J < A 6~\

Name of Authorized Representative : Namie of Authorized Representative

BUREAU CHIEF ;ch; PIRSS Q// W AG (0L

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative . 0
3- 30— 2013 3\] |3

Date Date ’ !
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Agency Name: Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc.

Name of Bureau/Section: Community Health Services/Community and School Based Oral Health Services

Administra’

Christopher Moriarty - Dental

Director $57,600 50.00%}5 7 :
Lauren Johnson- Staff Dentist $57,600 44.00%
Amanda Smith - Staff Dentist $57,600 42.79%

Dedra Twomey - Executive

Director $65,000 0.00% /=
TOTAL SALARIES {Not to exceed $0 0.00%|>

Christopher Moriarty - Dental gt
Director $57,600 45.20% | 4 5$26.0;

Lauren Johnson- Staff Dentist $57.600 45.00% | g
Amanda Smith - Staff Dentist $57.600 45.00%)7

Dedra Twomey - Executive

Director $65,000 0.00%

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 0.00% iU, U)
3509591

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEQ, CFO, etc.), and
individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager, etc.). These
personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name, title, annual salary and
percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 17) dated this 2nd day of February, 2015, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Manchester Health Department (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor”),
a local municipality with a place of business at 1528 Elm Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2013, (Item #93), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may amend
the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and increase
the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:

1) Amend Form P-37, Subject to read Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services
2) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2017

3) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $95,792

4) Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1

5) Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #1

6) Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1

7) Add Exhibit C-1

8) Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1

9) Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

CA/DHHS/100213 - ¢
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

s /915 73/\/\ Q/AD/\/

Date Brook Dupee
Bureau Chief

Manghester Health Depagtment

4(q|20(5

Date

TITLE Mayor

Acknowledgement: ) .

State of New County of H1 K _on_ 4/9 IZO IS __ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s’he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

V'OL..'AMO

Name and Title of Notdry or Justice of the Peace

VICTORIA L. FERRARO, Notary Public
My Commission Expires April 28, 2015

CA/DHHS/100213 .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

el/lS'/] I %_/km
Date ;1;::e i ”\-, Q0

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:
CADHHS/100213 J
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials!
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

Scope of Services

The Contractor shall provide school-based oral health services as specified herein:

1.

General Provisions

The Contractor shall provide oral health assessment, preventive services, and referrals for restorative care for
low-income, uninsured and underinsured children within the defined service area who don’t have regular
access to oral health care.

1.1. Numbers Served

Oral assessment services are to be provided to a minimum of 2,000 students throughout each year of
the contract term.

1.2. Eligibility and Income Determination

1.2.1.

1.2.2.

Low-income children and families are defined as < 185% of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (USDHHS), Poverty Guidelines, updated annually and effective as of July 1 of
each year, in the State of New Hampshire.

If parental permission forms indicate that the child may be eligible for enroliment in Medicaid,
the Contractor shall assist the family to complete the most recent version of the Medicaid
enrollment form.

1.3. The contractor shall use one of the following models to provide the following services:

1.3.1.

1.3.2

The “clinic model” that provides on-site comprehensive preventive and/or restorative
treatment.

The “combination clinic voucher model” that provides preventive treatment at one site and
provides care coordination to link clients with restorative treatment at another site.

1.4. Oral health care services for the targeted population(s) shall include:

14.1.
1.4.2.
14.3.
1.4.4.
1.4.5.

1.4.6.

risk assessment;

oral health education;

oral screening;

early diagnosis of oral diseases;

preventive care focused on age appropriate dental sealants, Interim Therapeutic Restorations
(ITRs) placed by a Certified Public Health Dental Hygienist, and fluoride varnish application; and
care coordination that links children to restorative treatment and disease management in a
“dental home”.

1.5. Relevant Policies and Guidelines

The school-based oral heaith program shall:

1.5.1.
1.5.2.
1.5.3.

Require no fee for any Medicaid client.
Assist eligible families with Medicaid enroliment directly or through referral.
Become a Medicaid provider for qualified clients.

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials Cj
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1
1.5.4. Provide a sliding fee scale for children from families without Medicaid or private dental
insurance.
1.5.5.  Assist students in finding a dental home that will provide ongoing comprehensive oral health
care.

1.5.6. Direct resources to evidence-based interventions.
1.5.7. Explore and secure future funding sources.

1.6. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care
The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access health services. To ensure equal
access to quality health services, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors
shall provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines:

1.6.1.  Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

1.6.2. Promote the knowledge and skilis necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

1.6.3. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their
primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are such that they
are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to
them without language assistance.

1.6.4. Offer consumers a forum through which families of children served through the program have
the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and organizations regarding cultural and
linguistic issues that may deserve response.

1.6.5. The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall describe the
way in which the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances in
which interpretation services are provided and the method of providing service (e.g. trained
interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the client or language line).

1.7. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1.7.1.  The Contractor shall report all cases of communicable diseases according to New Hampshire
RSA 141-C and He-P 30, effective 01/05.

1.7.2.  Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New
Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults and RSA
631:6, Assault and Related Offenses.

1.7.3.  The contractor shall comply with standards developed by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

1.8. Publications Funded Under Contract

1.8.1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original materials
produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource
directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

1.8.2.  All documents {written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract
shall have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

1.8.3.  The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract following Te

instructions outlined in Exhibit C-1 (5).
Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor initials h
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

1.9. Subcontractors

If services required to comply with this Exhibit are provided by a subcontracted agency or provider, the
DPHS Oral Health Program must be notified in writing, receive a copy of the subcontract or
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), and approve the subcontract (MOA) prior to its initiation. In
addition, subcontractors must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant requirements included in this
Exhibit.

2. Minimum Scope of Core Services

2.1.

2.2

Service Requirements
The school-based oral health program shall consist of the following components:

2.1.1. Clinical services shall be provided under the supervision of a dentist licensed to practice in New
Hampshire.

2.1.2.  Visual oral screenings or exams by a NH Licensed Dentist or a NH Registered Dental Hygienist
with screening results available to clients or to parents of children screened.

2.1.3. Oral health educational presentations by health professionals to individual students at chair side
or to groups in a classroom setting as part of a health care curriculum.

2.1.4. Topical fluoride application as part of a regular preventive routine or, when appropriate,
through a school-based fluoride rinse program in schools wishing to participate.

2.1.5. A preventive dental program, that shall at minimum include the requirements of 1.4.5 above,
for children through a school-based program that assesses risk of dental disease and tooth
eruption.

2.1.6. With the exception of orthodontic care, the program shall provide assistance in obtaining
restorative care for children without an established dental provider.

2.1.7. Oral health data collection to support a knowledge base and dental data surveillance system for
use in policy development, assessment, and capacity building at state and local levels.

2.1.8. Notice to families without access to dental services that a sliding fee scale is available and that
no student will be denied school-based dental services for inability to pay. The sliding fee scale
must be updated annually based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as published in the Federal
Register.

Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to the legal
requirements governing human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the Oral Health Program
prior to initiating any research related to this contract.

Staffing Provisions

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with the New Hampshire Dental Practice Act. All
dental health professionals shall have the appropriate New Hampshire license and certification. The
Contractor shall provide the DPHS Oral Health Program with a resume, a copy of the NH license if
appropriate, and job description for any current professional staff in the program and notify the State in
writing of any staffing changes, along with a copy of the resume of any new staff hired within one month
of date of hire.

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials\lj .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

2.3. Staffing Changes

2.3.1.  New Hires: The Contractor shall notify the Oral Health Program in writing within one month of
hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this
scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee and New
Hampshire license if appropriate shall accompany this notification.

2.3.2. Vacancies: The Contractor must notify the Oral Health Program in writing if the dentist or
dental hygienist positions are vacant for more than one month. This may be done through a
budget revision. In addition, the Oral Health Program must be notified in writing if at any time
any program funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to perform all
required services for more than one month.

2.4. Coordination of Services

2.4.1. The agency shall make arrangements for coordination of oral health services and exchange of
information with other health care providers and agencies. Attach copies of appropriate
contractual agreements, memoranda of understanding, or letters of support from the
appropriate persons summarizing the nature of the collaboration and indicating the level of
support.

2.4.2. Agencies that deliver oral health services in communities that are part of a Public Health Region
(PHR) should be active participants in the PHR. As appropriate, agencies should participate in
community needs assessments, public health performance assessments, and the development
of regional public health improvement plans, all of which integrate oral health. Agencies should
also engage PHR staff as appropriate to enhance the implementation of community-based
public health prevention initiatives being implemented by the agency.

2.5. Meetings and Trainings

The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to meetings and trainings required by the Oral Health
Program, including but not limited to the Annual Oral Health Forum and Calibration Clinic for School-
Based Hygienists.

3. Quality or Performance Improvement
3.1. Work plans

3.1.1.  Performance work plans are required bi-annually for this program and are used to monitor
achievement of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this contract.
The work plans are a key component of the Oral Health Program performance-based
contracting system and of this contract.

3.1.2.  The Contractor shall incorporate required performance measures into quality/performance
improvement plan. Reports on Oral Health work plan progress/outcomes shall explain how the
program plans for future improvement describing activities that monitor and evaluate the
program’s progress toward reaching performance measure targets.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall submit a performance-based work plan with this application for funding
and by July 15th of the second contract year.

3.1.4. The Contractor shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the work plan and
annual report format as requested by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program will
provide the Contractor with advance notice of such changes and the Contractor is not expected
to incur any substantial costs relative to such changes.

Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials QJ~
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

3.2. Data and Reporting Requirements

In addition to performance work plans, the Contractor shall submit to the Oral Health Program the
following data used to monitor program performance:

3.2.1. Work plans and work plan outcome reports according to the schedule and instructions provided
by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program shall notify the Contractor at least 30
days in advance of any changes in the submission schedule.

3.2.2.  AYear End Report Form shall be completed annually to describe the reach of the school-based
program beyond the second and third grade target population.

3.2.3. The Sources of Revenue report must be resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue
threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the planned program.

3.2.4. A copy of the Sliding Fee Scale shall be submitted by March 1st of each contract year. The
sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on the US DHHS Poverty Guidelines as
published in the Federal Register.

3.2.5. An annual summary of feedback from teachers, school nurses, administrators and families
obtained during the prior contract year and of the method by which the results were obtained
shall be submitted on request to the DPHS Oral Health Program to accompany the annual work
plan.

3.3. On-Site Reviews

3.3.1. The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the Oral Health Program to
periodically review the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and
submission, clinical, and financial management in order to assure systems are adequate to
provide the contracted services.

3.3.2. The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted
services are not found to be provided in accordance with this Exhibit.

3.3.3. On-Site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of the Oral Health Program,
upon submission of satisfactory reports of reviews such as the Health and Human Services
Administration (HRSA) Office of Performance Review (OPR) or reviews from nationally
accredited organizations such as the Joint Commission, the Community Health and
Accreditation Program (CHAP) or the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care
(AAA). Abbreviated reviews will focus on any deficiencies found in previous reviews, issues of
compliance with this Exhibit, and actions to strengthen performance as outlined in the agency
performance work plan.

3.4. Performance Measures

Second and third grade students represent a group of children whose oral health status can be
compared across New Hampshire programs, with children in other states and in the National Oral Health
Surveillance System.

3.4.1. School-Based Performance Measures:
¢ A minimum of 70% of 2nd and 3rd grade students returning consent forms
¢ A minimum of 1,800 2nd and 3rd grade students shall receive oral screenings
¢ Percent of all 2nd and 3rd grade students in the school screened to assess oral health needs

e Percent of all 2nd and 3rd grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent
molar

e 100% of all 2nd and 3rd grade students screened with untreated decay are referred for
service

e Percent of all 2nd and 3rd grade students screened with a history of decay J g
Exhibit A Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for costs and expenses incurred in
the performance of services during the period of July 1, 2015 and June 30, 2017 shall not
exceed:

a. $22,808 in SFY 2016 and $25,088 in SFY 2017 for oral health initiatives, for a total
amount of $47,896.

b. Funding is available as follows:

o $21,410 — 44.7% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, CFDA #93.758, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN),
B010OT009037

o $26,486 - 55.3% from General Funds

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and
indirect costs and expenses including but not limited to personnel costs and operating
expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the attached SFY 2016 and 2017 budgets
(Exhibits B-1). Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees
not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or
any other costs not approved by the State.

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period.
Reimbursement shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous
month.

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State
for each of the Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty
(20) working days following the end of the month during which the contract activities were
completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later than sixty (60) days after
the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable costs
and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by
the Contractor to cover the costs and expenses incurred in the performance of services.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment limited to
adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers, within the price limitation,
may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds
to purchase any equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a
useful life beyond one year.

Exhibit B Amendment #1 Contractor InitialsJ 8
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Health Dept
Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services
Budget Period: 7/1/15 - 6/30/16

1. Total Salary/Wages 14,676.001 % - $ 14,676.00

2. Employee Benefits 6,5632.001% - $ 6,532.00

3. Consultants - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: - $ - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -

5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ 300.00 | $ - $ 300.00
Lab $ - $ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical 3 1,000.00] $ - 3 1,000.00
Office $ 100.00 ]| $ - $ 100.00

6. Travel $ - 13 - 19 _

7. Occupancy $ - IS - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ -
Telephone $ - IS - 3 -
Postage $ - $ - $ -
Subscriptions $ - 3 - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - 18 - 13 -
Insurance $ - $ - 3 -
Board Expenses $ - 3 - $ -

9. Software $ - $ - $ -

10._Marketing/Communications $ - $ - $ -

11._Staff Education and Training $ 200.001 % - $ 200.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - 3 -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 22808.00]$ - § 22,808.00 |
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS j 4
Exhibit B-1 Budget Contractor Initials: . N
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Health Dept
Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: 7/1/16 - 6/30/17

1. _Total Salary/Wages $ 16,110.00] % $ 16,110.00

2. Employee Benefits 3 7,378.001 $ - $ 7,378.00

3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -

4. Equipment: $ - 3 - $ -
Rental $ - $ - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - $ - 3 -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -

5. Supplies: 3 - $ - $ -
Educational $ 300.001 % - $ 300.00
Lab $ - |$ - $ -
Pharmacy $ - |8 - $ -
Medical 3 1,000.001 % - $ 1,000.00
Office $ 100.00 ] $ - $ 100.00

6. Travel $ - 3 - 3 -

7. Occupancy $ - |s - $ -

8. Current Expenses $ - $ - 3 -
Telephone $ - $ - $ -
Postage $ - 193 - 18 -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal 3 - $ - $ -
Insurance 3 - $ - $ -
Board Expenses $ - $ - 3 -

9. Software 3 - 3 - $ -

10._Marketing/Communications 3 - $ - 3 -

11._Staff Education and Training $ 2000019 - $ 200.00

12._Subcontracts/Agreements $ - 13 - 13 -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): 3 - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

$ - $ - $ -

3 - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 25,088.00|% - [ 25,088.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

NH DHHS 4 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs,;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C Amendment #1

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’'s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, this competitively procured
Agreement has the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory of
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Council.

4. The State determined that the contract activities are of a low risk of liability. The parties waive the
requirement of paragraph 14 of the P-37 that would require the Contractor to provide
comprehensive general liability insurance in the amount of $2 million per incident, and instead
accepts general liability insurance provided by Contractor in the amount of $925,000 per incident.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’'s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

yja|z015

Date ' Ndme: Theodbre
Title: Mayor
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1) Definitions.

a. “‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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(3)
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. &

Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initial
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
Page 5 of 6 Date




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit | Amendment #1

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

,JH D M/// Manchester Health Dept

The m W Na f the Contractor %

Signature of Authorized Representative ignature of Authorized Representative

|y yeo Pupce Theodore Gatsas
Name of Authorized-Representative Name of Authorized Representative
.' i
@U/@M N (‘L‘e 4 Mayor
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
- <
1713 419 [ 201 S
Date Date
3/2014 Exhibit | Amendment #1 Contractor Initial {

Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
Page 6 of 6 Date



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Matthew Normand , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the City Clerk of the Municipality)
1. [ am duly elected City Clerk of the City of Manchester

The following is a true copy of an action duly adopted at a meeting of the Board
of Mayor and Aldermen duly held on _April 7, 2015

L

RESOLVED: That this Municipality enter into a contract with the State of New

Hampshire, acting through its Division of Public Health Services of the Department of
Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That Theodore Gatsas
(Mayor of the City of Manchester)

hereby is authorized on behalf of this municipality to enter into the said contract with the
State and to execute any and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any

amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,
desirable, or appropriate.

3. The foregoing action on has not been amended or revoked and remains in full
force and effect as of _ April 20 ,2015.
4. Theodore Gatsas (is/are) the duly elected
Mayor of the City of Manchester. %
(Signature of the Clerk of the Municipality)
State of New Hampshire

County of ___Hillsborough

The foregoing instrument was acknowledge before me this 20th day of

: ‘ 00, ~
April , 2015 by N AHAL Lo IUW/WM A :
(Name of Person Signing Above)

gy,

&
(NOTARY : | R \“.?%jf %,
SEAL) NANTE 0T | PIOITe)-w- X2
=7 coMmission =
= : EXPIRES
Title: Notary Publlc/Justlce of th@ sPeaees, (,

2019 Q~.~ U./ =
NS

& fo) - &Q
F T
”’//mnm\\\\\\‘



City of Manchester
Office of Risk Management

One City Hall Plaza

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101
(603) 624-6503 Fax (603) 624-6528
TTY: 1-800-735-2964

CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
Division of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive
Concord, New Hampshire 03301-6527

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the
certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage within the
financial limits of RSA 507-B as follows:

Limits of Liability (in thousands 000) -

GENERAL LIABILITY Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Each Person 275
Each Occurrence 925
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Bodily Injury and Property Damage
Each Person 275
Each Occurrence 925

WORKER’S COMPENSATION  Statutory Limits

The City of Manchester, New Hampshire maintains a Self-Insured, Self-Funded Program
and retains outside claim service administration. All coverages are continuous until
otherwise notified. Effective on the date Certificate issued and expiring upon completion
of contract. Notwithstanding any requirements, term or condition of any contract or other
document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the
coverage afforded by the limits described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and
conditions of RSA 507-B.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATION/CONTRACT PERIOD

For the new Oral Health Grant between the Manchester Health Department and
NHDHHS, Division of Public Health for FY 2016.

Issued the 26th day of March, 2015,

Safety Manager




BOARD OF HEALTH
Rosemary M. Caron, PhD, MPH
Robert A. Duhaime, RN, MBA, MSN, Chair
Fernando Ferrucci, MD, Clerk
Elaine M. Michaud, Esq.
Christopher N. Skaperdas, DMD

Timothy M. Soucy, MPH, REHS
Public Health Director

Anna J. Thomas, MPH
Deputy Public Health Director

CITY OF MANCHESTER
Health Department

MISSION STATEMENT

To improve the health of individuals, families, and the

community through disease prevention, health promotion, and
protection from environmental threats.

VISION STATEMENT

To be a healthy community where the public can enjoy
a high qualify of health in a clean environment, enjoy
protection from public health threats, and can access
high quality health care.

1528 Elm Street * Manchester, New Hampshire 03101 » (603) 624-6466
Administrative Fax: (603) 624-6584, Community Health Fax: (603) 665-6894
Environmental Health & School Health Fax: (603) 628-6004

E-mail: health@manchesternh.gov * Website: www.manchesternh.gov/health
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control
Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Required by OMB Circular A-133

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Board of Mayor and Aldermen
City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Manchester, New Hampshire’s (the City) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and matenal effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2014. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The City of Manchester, New Hampshire’s basic financial statements include the operations of the
Manchester Transit Authority and the Manchester School District, component units of the City, which
received $21,114,561 in federal awards which is not included in the schedule during the year ended
June 30, 2014. Our audit described below did not include the operations of the Manchester Transit
Authority or the Manchester School District as these component units engaged other auditors to perform
procedures in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2014.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intenal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
matenal weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Manchester, New Hampshire, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Manchester, New Hampshire's
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 12, 2015, which contained
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our report included a reference to other auditors and
an emphasis paragraph for the adoption of a new accounting standard. Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole. ’

/ZZ% e,

New Haven, Connecticut
March 12, 2015



City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Catalog of
Federal
Federal Grantor Domestic
Pass-Through Grantor Assistance Federal
Program Title Number Expenditures
Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Programs:
Consolidated Health Centers 93.224 $ 686,865
Passed Through the State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services:
Immunization Cluster:
Childhood Immunization Grants 93.268 97,424
Total Immunization Cluster 97,424
Medical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program 93.008 660
Project Grants and Cooperative Agreements for Tuberculosis Control Programs 93.116 34,932
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects - State and Local Childhood
Lead Poisoning Prevention and Surveillance of Blood Lead Levels in Children 93.197 25,608
Centers for Disease Control & Prevention-Investigation and Technical Assistance 93.283 465,235
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - Discretionary Grants 93.576 15,074
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 47,931
Preventative Health Services - Sexually Transmitted Diseases Control Grants 93.977 72,744
Preventative Health & Human Services Block Grant 93.991 55,180
814,788
Total Department of Health and Human Services 1,501,653
Department of Justice
Direct Programs:
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 1,907
ARRA - Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grants 16.710 488,729
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 242,507
JAG Program Cluster:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 359,093
Total JAG Program Cluster 359,093
1,092,236
Passed Through State of New Hampshire Office of the Attorney General:
ARRA-Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 93,693
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program 16.727 (1,076)
92,617
Total Department of Justice 1,184,853

(Continued)



City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Catalog of
Federal
Federal Grantor Domestic
Pass-Through Grantor Assistance Federal
Program Title Number Expenditures
Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs:
Emergency Operations Center 97.052 $ 21,216
21,216
Passed Through State of New Hampshire Department of Safety:
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 4,891
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 96,400
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 117,527
State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) 97.073 172,132
390,950
Total Department of Homeland Security 412,166
Department of Transportation
Direct Programs:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 4,919,658
Airport Improvement Program 97.117 161,317
5,080,975
Passed Through State of New Hampshire Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
Highway Planning & Construction 20.208 9,080
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 9,080
Recreational Trails Program 20.219 13,499
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 25,538
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures 20.601 8,521
interagency Hazardous Matenals Public Sector Training and Planning Grants 20.703 11,967
68,605
Total Department of Transportation 5,149,580
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Programs:
Community Development Block Grant Cluster:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 1,958,264
State-Administered Community Development Block Grant Cluster:
Community Development Block Grants/State's Program
and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 2,233,779
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 368,139
Emergency Shelter Grant Program 14.231 172,790
Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant Program 14.905 1,489,903
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 6,222,875

(Continued)



City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Catalog of
Federal
Federal Grantor Domestic
Pass-Through Grantor Assistance Federal
Program Title Number Expenditures
Environmental Protection Agency
Direct Programs:
Healthy Communities Grant Program 66.110 $ 6,378
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water and State Revolving Funds 66.458 7,822,415
Brownfields Training, Research, and Technical Assistance Grants 66.818 27,820
Total Environmental Protection Agency 7,856,613
Department of Energy
Direct Programs:
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG) 81.128 27,622
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 22355362

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

|
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City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Manchester, New Hampshire (the City) under programs of the federal government
for the year ended June 30, 2014. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in fund
balances, changes in net position or cash flows of the City.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Principles

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
City of Manchester, New Hampshire and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting for
grants which are accounted for in the governmental funds and on the accrual basis of accounting for
grants which are accounted for in the proprietary fund types. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for States, Local
Governments, and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable
and are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3. Subrecipients

Of the expenditures presented in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, the City provided the
following federal awards to subrecipients:

Amount
Provided to
Name of Program/Project CFDA Number Subrecipients
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 51,555
CBDG Grants 14.218 1,878,231
HOME Grants 14.239 577,900
Emergency Shelter Grants 14.231 123,738



City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

l. Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

« Material weakness(es) identified? ____ Yes X __No
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _ Yes X None reported
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? ____ Yes X No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

« Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmaodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133? Yes X No

Identification of Major Programs

CFDA Numbers Program Name or Cluster

14.228 Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program and Non-
Entitlement Grants in Hawaii :

14.231 Emergency Shelter Grant Program

66.458 Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds

93.283 Centers for Disease Control & Prevention ~ Investigation and

Technical Assistance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

type A and type B programs $670,661

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No



City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

it Financial Statement Findings
No matters were reported.
lik. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.



City of Manchester, New Hampshire

Summary of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

There were no prior year findings that pertained to the federal single audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Board of Mayor and Aldermen
City of Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Manchester, New Hampshire (the City) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 12, 2015.
Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the City of
Manchester Employees’ Contributory Retirement System, the Manchester School District and the
Manchester Transit Authority as described in our report on the City’s financial statements. Our report also
included an emphasis paragraph for the adoption of a new accounting standard. This report does not
include the resuits of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance
and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

10
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/?&4&‘47 Ze”

New Haven, Connecticut
March 12, 2015
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TIMOTHY M. SOUCY, MPH, REHS

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

» 22-Year Manchester Health Department Employee, 18-Year Senior Manager

» Recognized Public Health Leader in City of Manchester and State of New Hampshire
» Experienced in Managing Employees and Budgets

» Lifelong Manchester, New Hampshire Resident

EDUCATION

s Master of Public Health Degree May 1998 Boston University School of Public Health, Boston, Massachusetts
Concentration: Environmental Health

» Bachelor of Science Degree May 1989 University of Vermont, Burlington, Vermont
Major: Biology

PROFESSIONAL PUBLIC HEALTH EXPERIENCE
02/90 — Present: Manchester Health Department

12/06 — Present: Public Health Director

As the Chief Administrative Officer provides administrative oversight to all operations and activities of the Manchester Health
Department including exclusive personnel responsibility, supervisory authority and budgetary authority. The Manchester Healt]
Department routinely assesses the health of the community and recommends appropriate policies, ordinances and programs to
improve the health of the community. The Department investigates and controls communicable diseases, completes
environmental inspections and investigations necessary to protect the public health and is also responsible for the provision of
school health services for Manchester school children. The Public Health Director also setves as the Executive Director of the
Health Care for the Homeless Program (330-h) and has overseen the AmeriCorps VISTA Program and Weed & Seed Strategy.

11/02 - 06/06: Public Health Preparedness Administrator

Carried out all functions of Chief of Environmental Health. In addition, planned, directed and supervised all activities to assure
local readiness, interagency collaboration, and preparedness for bioterrorism, outbreaks of infectious disease, and other public
health threats and emergencies. Secured over two million dollars ($2,000,000) in federal public health preparedness funding for
the City of Manchester since 2002. Experienced in Manchester Emergency Operations Center (EOC) operations.

08/94 — 11/02: Chief, Division of Environmental Health

Planned, directed and supervised all environmental health activities carried out within the City of Manchester. Evaluated and
recommended public health standards, ordinances and legislation. Advised governmental leaders, community representatives, a
the general public on environmental health issues. Planned and conducted professional public health training programs.
Coordinated epidemiological investigations for specific disease outbreaks. Supervised division staff and evaluated personnel
performance.

02/90 - 08/94: Environmental Health Specialist / Sanitarian

Performed duties related to a comprehensive environmental health program, including, but not limited to inspection of food
service facilities, investigation of foodborne illnesses, inspection of institutional facilities, swimming pool inspections, indoor ai
quality investigations, inspections of septic systems, investigation of public health nuisances, and investigation of childhood lea
poisoning cases.

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS

» Registered Environmental Health Specialist, National Environmental Health Association, Number 85241 (Inactive)
= Designer of Subsurface Sewage Disposal Systems, State of New Hampshire, Permit number 1273 (Active)

» ServSafe Food Protection Manager Certification Course, National Restaurant Association, 1998 (Inactive)

(W) MANCHESTER HEALTH DEPARTMENT, 1528 EL.M STREET, MANCHESTER, NEW HAMPSIIIRE 03101
(W): (603) 624-6466 X301 FAX (W): (603) 628-6004
E-MAIL (W): TSOUCY@MANCHESTERNH.GOV



COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

Member, Board of Directors, Families in Transition, Housing Benefits, Inc., 2010 — Present

Member, Board of Directors, Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, 2008 — Present (Board Chair 2012 — Present)
Leadership Greater Manchester Steering Committee, Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce, 2008 — Present
Volunteer, Dance Visions Network, 2007 - Present

Member, Seniors Count Collaborating Council, Easter Seals of New Hampshire, 2006 - Present

Member, Board of Directors, New Horizons for New Hampshire, 2004 — 2010 (Board President 2007-2009)
Coach, Parker Varney Gitls Basketball Team, 2004-2005

Assistant Coach, Rising Stars Recreation Soccer League, 2002

Assistant Coach, Manchester Angels Recreation Soccer League, 2001-2003

Member, Advisory Council, Endowment for Health, Inc. 2000-2003

Assistant Coach, Manchester West Junior Soccer League, 2000-2003

Assistant Coach, Manchester West Junior Deb Softball League, 2000

Membet, Allocations Committee, United Way of Greater Manchester, 1998-2003

Health Department Campaign Coordinator, Granite United Way, 1996, 2008 - 2012

CITY OF MANCHESTER ACTIVITIES

Appointee, City of Manchester Labor / Management Committee, 2011 — Present

Appointee, City of Manchester Local Emergency Planning Committee, 2011 — Present
Appointee, City of Manchester Refugee and Immigrant Integration Task Force, 2010 - Present
Appointee, City of Manchester 10-Year Plan to End Homelessness, 2010 - Present

Appointee, City of Manchester Quality Council, 2008 — Present

Appointee, City of Manchester AFSCME Sick Leave Bank, 2006- Present

Timothy M. Soucy, REHS, MPH
Page 3 of 3




NICOLE T. LOSIER, MSN, RN

Manchester Health Department
Work: (603) 624-6466
nlosier@manchesternh.gov

EDUCATION:

Master of Science in Nursing 2007
University of New Hampshire Durham, NH
Sigma Theta Tau International Honor Society of Nursing

Bachelor of Science in Behavioral Neuroscience, Minor in Philosophy 1996
Northeastern University Boston, MA

Magna Cum Laude e Outstanding Co-op Achievement Award e Amelia Peabody Scholar e Carl S. Ell
Scholar e Dean’s List ® Honors Program

NURSING EXPERIENCE:
Public Health Nurse Supervisor March 2014 — Present
City of Manchester Manchester, NH

Supervise Community Health staff including Certified Community Health Nurses, Community Health
Nurses, Public Health Specialist, Registered Dental Hygienist and Dental Assistant e Plan, direct and
evaluate community health programs ¢ Compile monthly, quarterly, semi-annual and annual reports for
community health programs e Develop and prepare budget and grant requests

Community Health Nurse July 2013 — March 2014
City of Manchester Manchester, NH
Conduct case investigations for reported communicable disease cases ® Provide case management for
high-risk latent Tuberculosis infections and active Tuberculosis cases e Provide clinical services
including: child and adult immunizations, STD/HIV counseling & testing, Mantoux skin testing e Point
person for the Tuberculosis program in Manchester

School Nurse 11 August 2011 — June 2013
City of Manchester Manchester, NH
Promote and maintain the health of school children e Obtain student health histories and maintain
cumulative health records ¢ Administer medication to students as prescribed  Develop emergency care
plans and medical alert lists and review with appropriate personnel  Provide first aid e Perform health
screenings and assessments e Develop health portion of Individual Education Plans e Provide individual
and group health education to students and staff ¢ Collect and maintain data on school health issues o
Establish and maintain working relationships with staff, school officials, students and parents

Public Health Nurse 11 November 2007 — August 2011
City of Nashua Nashua, NH
Provide clinical services including: child and adult immunizations, STD/HIV counseling & testing,
Mantoux skin testing, blood lead screening e Conduct case investigations for reported communicable
disease cases ¢ Provide case management for high-risk latent Tuberculosis infections and active
Tuberculosis cases ¢ Manage and coordinate the Tuberculosis program in Nashua (2008-2010) including
producing monthly, semi-annual and annual reports e Review client healthcare records for quality
assurance purposes ® Manage and coordinate the Communicable Disease program in Nashua (2009-
2011) including producing monthly reports e Participate in the planning and exercise of emergency
preparedness activities including written plans, trainings and drills e Develop educational materials o
Provide education regarding healthcare topics to individual clients, area agencies and community groups



Nicole T. (Boucher) Losier 3
PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS:
Losier, N.T. (2007). Lead screening in Nashua, NH. Capstone Project.

Boucher, N.T., Bless, E., Brebeck, D., Albers, D.S., Guy, K., Rubin, L.L., & Dellovade, T.L. (2004).
Treatment with hedgehog agonist reduces apomorphine — induced rotations in 6-OHDA lesioned
rats. 34™ Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience, San Diego, CA, October, 2004.

Dellovade, T.L., Bless, E., Brebeck, D., Albers, D.S., Allendoerfer, K.L., Guy, K., Boucher, N.T., &
Rubin, L.L. (2004). Treatment with hedgehog agonist decreases infarct volume in rat model of
stroke. 34™ Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience, San Diego, CA, October, 2004.

Dellovade, T.L., Bless, E., Albers, D.S., Brebeck, D., Guy, K., Boucher, N., Qian, C., Munger, W.,
Dudek, H., and Rubin, L.L. (2003). Efficacy of Small-Molecule Hedgehog Agonists in Models of
Excitotoxicity. 33" Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience, New Orleans, LA, November
2003.

Waszczak, B.L., Martin, L., Boucher, N., Zahr, N., Sikes, R.W., and Stellar, J.R. Electrophysiological
and behavioral output of the rat basal ganglia after intrastriatal infusion of d-amphetamine: lack of
support for the basal ganglia model. Brain Research, 920 (2001): 170-182.

Martin, L.P., Boucher, N.T., Finlay, H., Stellar, J.R., and Waszczak, B.L. (1997). Correlation of
Electrophysiological and Behavioral Output of the Rat Basal Ganglia after Infusion of Dopamine
(DA) Agonists: A New Approach, New Data. 27" Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience,
New Orleans, LA, October 1997.

Boucher, N. (1996). Effects of Substantia Innominata Lesions on Medial Forebrain Bundle Self-
Stimulation Reward. Honors Thesis.

Stellar, J.R., Johnson, P.I., Hall, F.S., Boucher, N., & Tehraney, P. (1995). Ipsilateral Ventral
Tegmental Area Excitotoxic Lesions Do Not Reliably Disrupt Lateral Hypothalamic Self-
Stimulation Reward. 25™ Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience, San Diego, CA,
November 1995.

Stellar, J.R., Jachn, L., & Boucher, N. (1993). Multiple electrode arrays, HZ-I trade-offs, and MFB
reward anatomy in rats. 23" Annual Meeting of the Society for Neuroscience, Washington, DC,
November 1993.



Andrea Iasillo, RDH, CPHDH

Education

September 1988-May 1990
University of Bridgeport, Fones School of Dental Hygiene.
Bridgeport ,CT . Associate of Science Degree in Dental Hygiene. magna cum laude.

September 1982-May 1986
Slippery Rock University of Pennsylvania. Bachelor of Science Degree.

Professional Licenses and Certifications

Registered Dental Hygienist New Hampshire (current), Connecticut and Florida (inactive)
Certified Public Health Dental Hygienist in New Hampshire — Current
American Red Cross Adult CPR/AED, Child CPR and First Aid- Current

Employment

Aug.2007-present Manchester NH Health Department
Sept 2006-July 2007 Marquee Dental, Manchester, NH

Oct. 2002- June 2006 Dr. Robert Emilio, Norwalk, CT

Oct. 1997-Jan. 2006 Dr. Santo Delallo, Norwalk, CT

Nov. 1993-Oct. 1997 | Dr. Charles Zatzkins, Greenwich, CT
Sept. 1991-Nov. 1993 Peremenis Dental Group, Stamford, CT
June 1990-Sept. 1991 Darien Dental Group, Darien, CT

Responsibilities include adult and adolescent dental prophylaxis, interim therapeutic
restorations, dental health screenings at clinics and schools, periodontal therapy (including root
planing), periodontal charting and evaluations, subgingival irrigation, pit and fissure sealants,
fluoride treatments, radiographs, oral cancer examinations, record and report data collection in
public health setting, organize school based collaborative oral health program, oral hygiene
instruction and recall management
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78 ‘ ~ FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)
| |
Subject: School-based oral health services will be delivered to underserved students living in Manchester, NH
|
AGREEM;ENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contrag:tor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PR(:)VISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. !
11 State Agency Name 12  State Agency Address
{
NH Department of Health and Human Services 29 Hazen Drive
Division of Public Health Services Concord, NH 03301-6504
1.3  Contractor Name 14 Contractor Address
Manchester Health Department
_ 1528 Elm Street, Manchester, NH 03101
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 17  Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-95-90-902010-4527-102-
(603) 624-6466 500731 Tune 30, 2015 $47,896
|
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1;.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN 603-271-4501
Bureau Chief »
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Theodore Gatsas, Mayor

1.13 Acknowledgement: Stat¢ ¢f NH, County of Hillstérough

On"/ 9/ /}, before the undersighed officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1,11, and acknowledged that s/the executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
112, .. 1

1.13;*1; Signature ef Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
R - T e~ y

\\ \-:\ . | ‘ﬂm
327 IReal] “&F W2 ,
= . =

1.13.2  Name and Fitle of Notary or Justice of the Peace

ﬁ/gmﬂsg Ceantr, Cry Sociciro | NP Grrumission Copieo (17 /17

1.14 State Agéncy Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Sigxiatory

Og LisaL. Bujno, Bureau Chief

1.16  Approval by the NH. Department of Administration, Dl'ivision of Personnel (if applicable)

By: E;Director, On:
L

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance alid Execution)

@, ~ |
By: %Wm (Al Ne On: QD Moy 2002

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:

i
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (*State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and -more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price. - : . S
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

g' 5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
‘contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
ino event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
1 made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
!i 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the

. Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,

- and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discrimipate against employees or applicants for

" employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,

i handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
- affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the

. provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal

' Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41

C.E.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines

' as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to

implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to

| permit the State or United States access to any of the

Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,

- and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the

Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

1

|
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds providedyfor that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State. '

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting

Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days-after the date of --- - —-J -

termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

fReport shall be identical to those of any Final Report
Idescribed in the attached EXHIBIT A.
|

111. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
ithe performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

' 12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
: The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any

interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the

' Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the

prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

. indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and

employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,

' liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers

and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,

- based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be

claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the

Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

. sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby

reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and

_inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page

{20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be

I construed to confer any such benefit.

i
!21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
- in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
 reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of

| this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to

be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining

. provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
| effect.

. 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
| be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall

be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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NH Department of Healthiand Human Services
j
Exhibic A
Scope of Seffvices

School-Based Oral I;-Iealth Services

|
CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approv;al, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

!
CONTRACTOR NAME: Manchester Health I;)epartment

ADDRESS: 1528 Elm Street |

Manchester, NH 03 ]}.03
i

Community Health Supervisor:  Susan Myers, RN, MEd
TELEPHONE: (603) 624-6466 |

The Contractor shall provide school-based oral health services as specified below:

f
!

I General Provisions: i
The contractor shall provide oral health assessment, preventive services, and referrals for restorative treatment for
low-income, uninsured, and underinsured children within/the defined service area who don’t have regular access to

oral health care.

A. Numbers Served

B. Elgibility and Income Determination

1.

Oral assessment services are to be provided ito a minimum of 2,000 students throughout each year of

the contract term. ;

!

Low-income children and families are defined as < 185% of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (USDHHS), Poverty Guidélines, updated annually and effective as of July 1 of each

year), in the State of New Hampshire.

If parental permission forms indicate that the child may be eligible for enrollment in NH Medicaid, the
Contractor shall assist the family to complete the most recent version of the Medicaid enrollment

form.

C. The contractor shall use one of the following models:

1.

The “clinic mode]” that provides on-site comprehensive preventive and/or restorative treatment.
2. The “combination clinic referral model” thfat provides preventive treatment at one site and provides
care coordination to link clients with restorative treatment at another site.

D. Oral health services for the targeted population(s) shall include:

1.

Al Al el

Standard Exhibits A — ]
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risk assessment;

oral health education;
oral screening; i

early diagnosis of oral diseases;

preventive care focused on age appropriate dental sealants and fluoride application;

and care coordination thatf links children to restorative treatment and disease

management in a “dental home.”
L
Contractor Initia.lsJ j {ﬂ [ &
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E. Relevant Policies and Guidelines

The school-based oral health program shall:

Require no fee for any NH Medicaid cllent

Assist eligible families with NH Medlcald enrollment directly or through referral.

Become a NH Medicaid provider for qualified clients.

Provide a sliding fee scale for chlldren’ from families without NH Medicaid or private dental
insurance. [

Assist students in finding a dental home that will provide ongoing comprehensive oral health care.
Direct resources to evidence-based inter\?entions.

7. Explore and secure future funding sources.

el e

o

—

F. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Serv1cesr (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populauons experience bamer’s in efforts to access health services. To ensure equal
access to quality health services, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors shall
provide culturally and linguistically appropriate servibes according to the following guidelines:

1.

2.

G. State and Federal Laws

Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources all:ld assets of their community.
I3
Promote the knowledge and skills necessaryf for staff to work effectively with consumers with respect
to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

When feasible and appropriate, prov1de clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their
primary language and whose skills in llstemng to, speaking, or reading Engllsh are such that they are
unable to adequately understand and parnmpate in the care or in the services provided to them without
language assistance.

Offer consumers a forum through which fiimilies of children served through the program have the
opportunity to provide feedback to providers and organizations regarding cultural and linguistic issues
that may deserve response.

The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI, Language
Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFI% 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall describe the way in which
the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances in which interpretation
services are provided and the method of prtoviding service (e.g. trained interpreter, staff person who
speaks the language of the client or language line).

|
5

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is

called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1.

The Contractor shall report all cases of communicable diseases according to NeW Hampshire RSA
141-C and He-P 30, effective 01/05.

Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New Hampshire
RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults and RSA 631:6,
Assault and Related Offenses.

Standard Exhibits A —J Contractor Initialsy 1 3 ‘f’ q [
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3. The contractor shall comply with standardt_s developed by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

H. Publications Funded Under Contract

1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original materials

produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories,

protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

2. All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

3. The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract following the
instructions outlined in Exhibit C-1 (5).

I. Subcontractors
If services required to comply with this Exhibit are provided by a subcontracted agency or provider, the DPHS
Oral Health Program must be notified in writing, receive a copy of the subcontract or Memorandum of

Agreement (MOA), and approve the subcontract (MOA) prior to its initiation. In addition, subcontractors
must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant requirements included in this Exhibit.

L Minimal Scope of Core Services
A. Service Requirements

The school-based oral health program shall consist of the following components:

1. Clinical services shall be provided under the supervision of a dentist licensed to practice in New
Hampshire. E

2. Visual oral screenings or exams by a NH Licensed Dentist or a NH Registered Dental Hygienist
with screening results available to clients'ﬁor to parents of children screened.

3. Oral health educational presentations by health professionals to individual students at chairside or
to groups in a classroom setting as part of a health care curriculum.

4. Topical fluoride application as part of a régular preventive routine or, when appropriate, through a
school-based fluoride rinse program in schools wishing to participate.

5. A preventive dental sealant program for students through a school-based or school-linked
program that assesses risk of dental disease and tooth eruption.

6. With the exception of orthodontic ca%e, the program shall provide assistance in obtaining
restorative care for students without an established dental provider.

7. Oral health data collection to support a knowledge base and dental data surveillance system for
use in policy development, assessment, and capacity building at state and local levels.

8. Notice to families without access to dental services that a sliding fee scale is available and that no
student will be dented school-based dental services for inability to pay. The sliding fee scale must
be updated annually based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as published in the Federal Register.

Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to the
legal requirements governing human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the Oral Health
Program prior to initiating any research related to this contract.

- a3
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B. Staffing Provisions

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with the New Hampshire Dental Practice Act. All dental
health professionals shall have the appropriate New Hampshire license. The Contractor shall provide the
DPHS Oral Health Program with a resume, a copy of the NH license if appropriate, and job description for any
current professional staff in the program and notify the State in writing of any staffing changes, along with a
copy of the resume of any new staff hired within one rnonth of date of hire.

v
[

S

Staffing Changes ':

1. New Hires |
The Contractor shall notify the Oral Health Program in writing within one month of hire when a
new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this scope of
services is hired to work in the program. s A resume of the employee and New Hampshire license
if appropriate shall accompany this notlﬁcatlon

2. Vacancies i
The Contractor must notify the Oral Health Program in writing if the dentist or dental hygienist
positions are vacant for more than one ﬁlonth This may be done through a budget revision. In
addition, the Oral Health Program must be notified in writing if at any time any program funded
under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to perform all required services for more
than one month. |

C. Coordination of Services

!
I
l
1. The agency shall make arrangements for ! oordination of oral health services and exchange of
information with other health care providers and agencies. Attach copies of appropriate contractual
agreements, memoranda of understandmg, or letters of support from the appropriate persons
summarizing the nature of the collaboration and indicating the level of support.

2. Agencies that deliver oral health services in communities that are part of a Public Health Region
(PHR) should be active participants in the PHR. As appropriate, agencies should participate in
community needs assessments, public health performance assessments, and the development of
regional public health improvement plans, all of which integrate oral health. Agencies should also
engage PHR staff as appropriate to enhance the implementation of community-based public health
prevention initiatives being implemented by ’Fle agency.

D. Meetings and Trainings #
The Contractor will be responsible to send staff to meetings and trainings required by the Oral Health
Program, including but not limited to the Annual Oral Health Forum and Calibration Clinic for School-
Based Hygienists.

1. Quality or Performance Improvement (QI/PI)

f
4
I
'
i

A. Work Plans

1. Performance Work Plans are required annually for this program and are used to monitor achievement
of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this contract. The work Plans are
a key component of the Oral Health Program performance- based contracting system and of this
contract.

2. The Contractor shall incorporate requured performance measures into quality/performance
improvement plan. Reports on Oral Health Work Plan Progress/Outcomes shall explain how the
program plans for future improvement descfrxbmg activities that monitor and evaluate the program’s
progress toward reaching performance measﬁre targets.

R e - 183
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3. The Contractor shall submit a perfonnance-b;ased work plan with this application for funding and by
July 15" of the contract year.

4. The Contractor shall comply with minor modlﬁcatlons and/or additions to the work plan and annual
report format as requested by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program will prov1de the
Contractor with advance notice of such changes and the Contractor is not expected to incur any
substantial costs relative to such changes.

B. Data and Reporting Requirements

In addition to Performance Work Plans, the Contractor shall submit to the Oral Health Program the following
data used to monitor program performance:

1. Work Plans and Work Plan Outcome reports according to the schedule and instructions provided by
the Oral Health Program. The Oral HealthiProgram shall notify the Contractor at least 30 days in
advance of any changes in the submission schedule.

2. A Year End Report Form shall be completed annually to describe the reach of the school-based
program beyond the second and third grade population targeted for dental sealants,

3. The Sources of Revenue report must be resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue threaten the
ability of the agency to carry out the planned program

4. A copy of the Sliding Fee Scale provided o participating students’ families shall be submitted on
request to the DPHS Oral Health Program. The sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on
the US DHHS Poverty Guidelines as pubhshed in the Federal Register.

5. An summary of feedback from teachers, scPool nurses, administrators and families obtained during
the prior contract year and of the method by which the results were obtained shall be submitted on
request to the DPHS Oral Health Program tojaccompany the annual work plan.

C. On-Site Reviews

1. The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the Oral Health Program to periodically
review the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and submission,
clinical, and financial management in orderjto assure systems are adequate to provide the contracted
services. [

2. The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted services are
not found to be provided in accordance with this Exhibit.

3. On-Site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of the Oral Health Program, upon
submission of satisfactory reports of reviews such as the Health and Human Services Administration
(HRSA) Office of Performance Review (OPR) or reviews from nationally accredited organizations
such as the Joint Commission, the Commﬁmty Health and Accreditation Program (CHAP) or the
Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care (AAA). Abbreviated reviews will focus on
any deficiencies found in previous rev1ews issues of compliance with this Exhibit, and actions to
strengthen performance as outlined in the agency Performance Work Plan.

|

i
}
i
i
!
t
I
i
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D. Performance Measures

i
School-Based Oral Health Performance Measures
b

!
Second and third grade students represent a group of children whose oral health status can be compared
across New Hampshire programs with children in other states; and with the National Oral Health Surveillance

System. i
}
* A minimum of 70% of 2™ and 3™ grade studénts returning consent forms
e A minimum of 1,800 2" and 3" grade students shall receive oral screenings
® Percent of all 2 and 3" grade students in the school screened to assess oral health needs
e Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent Molars
® 100% of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened with untreated decay who are referred for service
e Percent of all 2* and 3" grade students screehed with a history of decay
The remainder of this page} is intentionally left blank.
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Department of Health anéi Human Services
t
Exhibit B
!
i
Purchase of Services
Contract Pl_:'ice
1

School-Based Oral Health Services

CONTRACT PERIOD: July 1, 2013 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015

1.

TOTAL: $47,896

2.

Standard Exhibits A -J Contractor Initials:
September 2009
Page 7 of 29 Date:

Community Health Supervisor: Susan Myers, RN, M.Ed

CONTRACTOR NAME: Manchester Health Department

ADDRESS: 1528 Elm Street
Manchester, NH 03013

TELEPHONE: (603) 624-6466

Vendor #177433-B009 Job #90072003 Appropriation #05-95-90-902010-4527-500731

The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses incurred in the performance of the
services during the period of the contract shall not exceed:

$47,896 for oral health initiatives, funded from 44.7% Federal funds from the Centers for Disease Control (CDC)
(CFDA #93.991) and 55.3% from General funds. '

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and expenses
including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the
attached budgets. Allowable costs and expenses shall be{determined by the State in accordance with applicable
state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds for capital additions
or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the State.

l

This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period. Reimbursement shall

be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during théy previous month.

!

Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State for each of the Service
category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty (20) workmg days following the end of the
month during which the contract activities were completed and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later
than sixty (60) days after the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all allowable
costs and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the c;ontract period.

Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available in the Service category budget line 1tems submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs and
expenses incurred in the performances of the services. { : :

The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service category through line item increases, decreases, or

the creation of new line items provided these amendmernts do not exceed the contract price for that particular

Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written approval by the State.

Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20" of each contract year.

i
' é
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7. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State prior to using contract funds to purchase any
equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a useful life beyond one year.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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NH Department of Health:

and Human Services

Exhibiti’

C

!
SPECIAL PRdWSIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor under
the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and, in the
furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility det

Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,

erminations shall be made on forms provided by the

Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

Documentation:
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereund

In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall

er, which file shall include all information necessary to

support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall

furnish the Department with all forms and documentation

regarding eligibility determinations that the Department

may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants
and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permltted to fill out an application form and that each applicant
or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair heéaring in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it 1s a breach of this Contract to accept or make a payment,
gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to influence
the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it {15 determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor
or Sub-Contractor.

I

7. Retroactive Payments: Notw1thstand1ng anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior tofa determination that the individual is eligible for such
services. ~

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractor’s costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such sérwce If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has -
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment in excess of
such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors,
the Department may elect to: '

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
Standard Exhibits A —J
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8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
I
costs; i
’ I

83 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder When the Contractor is permitted to determine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds paid by
the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the peric?d of retention of records established herein.
l
RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DI$CLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:
:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility[records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contrac;:t Period:
|
9.1 Fiscal Records: Books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performanﬁ:e of the Contract, and all income received or collected
by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are
acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and drders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. !
|
9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, atftendance, or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each recipi’ent), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as ptrescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient oif services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within nine months after the close of the agency
fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations”
and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions,
issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of thls'Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

I
10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has

been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

i

f
11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports!, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
. __. _connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be disclosed by
the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department regarding the
use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such information in
connection with their official duties and for purposes direéted connected to the administration of the services and
the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient
for any purpose not directly connected with the admlmstratlon of the Department or the Contractor’s
responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the

recipient, his attorney or guardian. : h
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12.

13.

14.

15.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein" the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times if
requested by the Department

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all costs
and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractm to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form des1gnated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the

Department. }

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted v{rithin sixty (60) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form sansfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives statedrm the Proposal and other information required by the
Department. |

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number
of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the
obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive le termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of
such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research feports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document, etc.), was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, with funds provided in
part or in whole by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required,
e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Semces

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for providing
services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and municipal
authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or bfficers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the Contractor with respect to the operation Sf the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any govemnment license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply
with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State G)fﬁce of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

N .4 '{/@/[3
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16. Insurance: Select either (1) or (2) below: ;
As referenced in the Request for Proposal, Comprehensive Ger%eral Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form, the
Insurance requirement checked under this section is applicable tof‘ this contract:

L
Insurance Requirement for (1) - 501(c) (3) contractors \i/hose annual gross amount of contract work with the
State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, X1V, (Supp. 2006): The general liability insurance requirements of
standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit{status under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed $500,000, is comprehenswe
general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $1, 000 000 per claim or occurrence and $2,000,000 in the

aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified. [

0 (1) The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) corrltractor whose annual total amount of contract work
with the State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500 000.

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, X1V, (Supp. 2006),
Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor shall, at its sole
expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subtontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force,
both for the benefits of the State, the followmg insurance: comprehenswe general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per incident
or occurrence. These amounts MAY be modified if the State of NH determines contract activities are a risk of lower
liability.

X (2) The contractor certifies it does NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV
{Supp. 2006). '

The State of New Hampshire determined that the contract activities are of a low risk of liability, and the parties waive
the requirement of paragraph 14 of the P-37 in that the contractor provide comprehensive general liability insurance in
the amount of $2 million per incident and instead, accept general liability insurance provided by contractor in the
amount of $925,000 per incident. ‘

17. Renewal:

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Sectilon this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Colncil.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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18. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of ﬂll‘S contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows: f
i
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by aﬁy state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the apprépnatlon or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the
right to withhold payment until such funds becomé available, if ever. The State shall have the right to
reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any
other source or account into the Account(s) 1dent1f1ed in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.
i
19. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of thisicontract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language; [
I
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any tim%: for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State, 30
days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not lmuted to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as refquested

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, i]fmluding but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as described above.

Standard Exhibits A —J
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS ,
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accountmg principles established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. :

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and settmg forth the total cost and sources
of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide toE: eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period
of time or that specified activity determined by the Dcpaltment and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Whenever federal or state laws regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc., are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc., as they may
be amended or revised from time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative
Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of} implementing State of NH and federal regulations
promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

|
| -9, 4193
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NH Department of Health;zand Human Services
Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICAl‘iI S WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE
3
!

: . .
The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s representative
as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisiorils, to execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contrafct) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

;:
//M%-—M‘gwor

Contractor Signature ' dmtracto"g"s Represze itle
}

Manchester Health Department ! ’q / 3

Contractor Name _ l' patd ' '/
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NH Department of Health:[and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Géneral Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply
with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Informatlon 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those parts of
the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As deﬁned herein, “Business Associate” shall mean the
Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health
information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” sha]l mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services. |

. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
Q) Definitions. ’
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term [“Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given sucﬁ term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal

Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations. 1

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same méanmg as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. f

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaninjgg as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. |

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same méaning as the term “health care operations” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

g “HiTECH Act” means the Health Information [Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitléXIH, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American &(ecovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portabilityg' and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the tenn “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall

i

include a person who qualifies as a personal| representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).
j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Departmént of Health and
Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health information”

in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the informiation created or received by Business Associate from or

on behalf of Covered Entity. i
Standard Exhibits A — J Contractor Initiafe/ " Lf / 13

September 2009
Dona 17 AF70 Nata:



1. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501. 3

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the De]%)artment of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee. :

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standariis for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and alrgendments thereto.

i
0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means !protected health information that is not secured by a

technology standard that renders protected health itnformation unusable, unreasonable, or indecipherable
to unauthorized individuals and is developed or en;dorsed by a standards developing organization that is
!
accredited by the American National Standards Instiitute.
p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise deﬁncfd herein shall have the meaning established under 45
C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from tiI:'ne to time, and the HITECH Act.

£
) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

|
|
i
a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
IL As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
111 For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making aﬁy such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held conﬁdentlally and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the th1rd party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any
breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services under
Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis that it is
required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing thefPHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Assocfiate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or{i disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such addltlonal restrictions and shall abide by any additional
security safeguards. :

: é ‘ ]
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A3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.?

I
a. Business Associate shall report to the designated anvacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act ,}Subtltle D, Part 1, Sec.13402.

|
b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI receivedkfrom, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. |

d. Business Associate shall require all of its businéss associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entltx shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of
the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will
be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by staxi1dard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose
of use and disclosure of protected health infonnatii_on.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wriktten request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business houts at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure lof PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’ s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

L

f.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wntten request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated ReCOI"d Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requuf:ments under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writtlen request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained infa Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity forjamendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations un(}er 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i
i

i
!
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h. Business Associate shall document such djsclosurézs of PHI and information related to such disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Sec!iion 164.528.

i.  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Assoc1ate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to ;fulﬁll its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with [45 CFR Section 164.528.

j.  In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall w1thm two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the respons1blhty of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the anacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable. %

i

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of thie Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Ag‘reement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up
tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business As5001ate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make
the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered
Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Busmess Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business
Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PIHI has been destroyed.

C)] Obligations of Covered Entity
a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance w1thk45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’ ? use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Assomate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164 506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

r

¢. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Assomate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or dllsclosurc of PHI.

i
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(5) Termination for Cause !

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered !Entlty determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

6) Miscellaneous
a. Definitions and Regulatory Referencés. All terms hsed, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Slecurity Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended from
time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the

Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in éffect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assomate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
" the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and applicable federal and state law.

¢. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect to the
PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given
effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are
declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding th‘e use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreenﬁcnt in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract[provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement. i

i

1
i
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly exeCuted this Exhibit .

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Manchester Health Department

The State Agency Name

e

Name of Contractor

Signature of Authorizéd Representative

LISA L. BUINO, MSN, APRN

Signature of Authorizeﬁnesentaﬁve 0

Theodore Gatsas

Name of Authorized Representative

BUREAU CHIEF

Name of Authorized Representative

Mayor

Title of Authorized Representative

5- 30—2013

Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

Agency Name: Manchester Health Dept
Name of Bureau/Section: Community Health Services/Community and School Based Oral Health Services
Andrea lasillo, Dental Hygienist $51,048 28.75%}:
Timothy Soucy, Public Health Director $142,050 0.00%}.
Nicole Losier, Community Health Nurse Supervisor $72,011 0.00%|:

$0 0.00%).
$0 0.00%]. -

$0 0.00%) .
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request)

Andrea lasillo, Dental Hygienist $51,558 31.25%
Timothy Soucy, Public Health Director $143,471 0.00% 7
Nicole Losier, Community Health Nurse Supervisor $77,160 0.00% i
$0 0.00%|
$0 0.00%
50 oo
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) e

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc.), and
individuals directly involved in operating and managing the program (project director, program manager, etc.). These

personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name, title, annual salary and
percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



